
 

 

 
 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, November 18, 2014 

 
Meeting Location:  City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree City Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30pm. At 
6:00pm and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene in Executive 
Session. If an Executive Session is not necessary, Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Session will be 
convened at 7:00pm. Study Sessions and Regular Sessions are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not. 
Comments from the public are welcome at these occasions: 1. Public Comment (brief comments on items not 
scheduled for a public hearing) 2. Public Hearings. Contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed to 
attend (at least 24 hours in advance).

 
4:30pm Study Session Agenda 

1. Living & Aging Well in Lone Tree Semi-Annual Report  
2. Community Garden Update  
3. Parking in Residential Areas 
4. CAP 14-XX, Lone Tree Arts Center Fundraising Committees  
5. Construction Defect Plat Note Discussion  
6. Conceptual Design RFP for Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge  
7. Emergency Snow Route Plan  
8. Ordinance 14-05, ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AND AMENDING THE 2012 

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE (2014 EDITION) AND THE 2009 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY 
CONSERVATION CODE; AND TO PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR CODE 
VIOLATIONS (Second Reading) Project #ZR14-56  

 
6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 

1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session 

 
7:00pm Regular Session Agenda 

3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda 
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry 
6. Public Comment 
7. Announcements 

a. Youth Commission Update 
b. Upcoming Events 

8. Consent Agenda 
a. Minutes of the October 21, 2014 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the Period of October 13, 2014-November 10, 2014 
c. Treasurer’s Report for September, 2014 

9. Community Development 
a. Approval of Morning Star SIP #SP14-30R 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 201



 

 

10. Administrative Matters 
a. Public Hearing: City of Lone Tree 2015 Budget  
b. Public Hearing: Ordinance 14-05, ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AND 

AMENDING THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 
2012 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE, THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE (2014 EDITION) AND THE 2009 
INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE; AND TO PROVIDE 
PENALTIES FOR CODE VIOLATIONS (Second Reading) Project #ZR14-56  

c. Public Hearing: Ordinance 14-06, RECONSTITUTING THE BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS  (Second Reading)  

d. Public Hearing: Beer & Wine Liquor License for 5 to 1 Enterprises, LLC d/b/a 
Painting with a Twist (7600 E. Park Meadows Dr. Ste 950)  

e. Approval of Library Agreement w/Douglas County Libraries, Rampart Range 
Metropolitan District No. 1 and Lincoln Commons South, Inc.  

f. Resolution 14-19, REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
PLANNING COMMISSION  

g. Resolution 14-20, REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
AUDIT COMMITTEE  

h. Resolution 14-21, REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE 
CITIZENS’ RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE  

i. Resolution 14-22, REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE ARTS 
COMMISSION  

11. Council Comments 
12. Adjournment 

 
City of Lone Tree Upcoming Events 

More info available at www.cityoflonetree.com and www.lonetreeartscenter.org 
 City Offices will be closed on Thursday, November 27 & Friday, November 28 in 

observance of Thanksgiving 
 Duo Classica - German Inspirations, Wednesday, November 12, 2014 at 1:30 PM, LTAC 
 Seedlings: Funny Bunny Magic Show, Tuesday, November 18, 2014 at 9:00 & 11:00 

AM, LTAC 
 2014 Lone Tree Art Expo, November 17 – January 5, 2014, LTAC 
 2014 Lone Tree Art Expo Opening Reception, Saturday, November 22, 2014, 4:30 – 6:30 

PM, LTAC 
 Passport to Culture: Birds and Dogs and Pigs - Oh My!, Sunday, November 23, 2014 at 

3:00 PM, LTAC 
 LTAC Guild Holiday Kick Off and Tree Lighting Festivities, Sunday, November 30th at 

5:00 PM, LTAC 
 Judy Collins, Sunday, November 30, 2014 at 7:30 PM, LTAC 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 201



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 4 October 21, 2014 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

October 21, 2014 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
October 21, 2014, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers located 
at 8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem, was absent 
 
Also in attendance were: 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Steve Hebert, Deputy City Manager 
Jeff Holwell, Economic Development Director 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Kelly First, Community Development Director 
Lisa Rigsby Peterson, Lone Tree Arts Center Director 
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TTG Corp. 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 6:04 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Executive Session 

Mayor Gunning announced City Council intends to convene in Executive Session.  
Neil Rutledge, City Attorney, stated the Executive Session is for a conference 
with the City Attorney for the purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal 
questions under C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) relating to construction defect 
legislation. Council Member Anderson moved, seconded by Council Member 
Squyer, for City Council to recess and convene in Executive Session for the 
reasons stated.  The motion passed with a vote of 4-0 by those members present. 
 
Council adjourned to an Executive Session at 6:05 p.m. 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 201



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 4 October 21, 2014 

The Executive Session was adjourned at 6:25 p.m. 
 
Mayor Gunning reconvened the meeting in Regular Session at 7:00 p.m., 
following a short recess. 
   

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

There were no amendments to the agenda.  
______ 

 
Conflict of Interest 

There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Public Comment 

Ricky Martinez, 305 S. Alcott St., Denver CO, stated he previously worked for 
Rocky Mountain Reinforcement (RMR) and voiced his concerns with the 
company. Mr. Martinez asked the City to not allow RMR to work on the SE rail-
line extension. 
 
Jim Tolin, Jobs for Justice, 4980 Monaco St., Commerce City, CO, stated his 
concerns with Rocky Mountain Reinforcement and requested the City express 
those concerns to RTD.  
______  
  

Announcements 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
______ 
  

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of: 

 
§ Minutes of the October 7, 2014 Regular Meeting 
§ Minutes of the October 15, 2014 Special Meeting 
§ Claims for the period of September 29 – October 13, 2014 
§ Treasurer’s Report for August, 2014 

 
Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to 
approve the Consent Agenda. The motion passed with a vote of 4-0 by those 
members present. 
   

 
Community Development 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 201



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 4 October 21, 2014 

Ordinance 14-05, ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AND AMENDING THE 
2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL 
RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE 
CODE, THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE (2014 EDITION) AND THE 
2009 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY CONSERVATION CODE; AND TO 
PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR CODE VIOLATIONS (First Reading)  
 
Matt Archer, Chief Building Official, introduced the item. Mr. Archer asked 
Council to amend the ordinance as presented and remove Article 3 Section 18-3-
40 (12) on page 31 of 60 of the packet. 
 
Kevin Milan, Fire Marshall, South Metro Fire, answered questions from Council 
regarding fire protection of floors. 
 
Jeff Stuart, National Fire Sprinkler Association, gave Council a presentation on 
sprinklers and explained the need for them. 
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to 
approve Ordinance 14-05, ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AND AMENDING 
THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL 
MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE 
(2014 EDITION) AND THE 2009 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY 
CONSERVATION CODE; AND TO PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR CODE 
VIOLATIONS on first reading as amended with the removal of Article 3 
Section 18-3-40 (12). The motion passed with a vote of 4-0 by those members 
present. 
  
Ordinance 14-06, RECONSTITUTING THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
AND APPEALS (First Reading) 
 
Kelly First, Community Development Director, introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Monson seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 14-06, RECONSTITUTING THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
AND APPEALS on first reading.  The motion passed with a vote of 4-0 by those 
members present. 
  
 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
8:04 p.m. 
 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 201



 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of 4 October 21, 2014 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 201



 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   November 18, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
 
Project Name: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 21, Lot 1 
   Site Improvement Plan (MorningStar at RidgeGate) 
 
 
Location: The property is located in RidgeGate in the area known as Lincoln 

Commons South. The property is between RidgeGate Parkway and 
Arts Center Drive (now under construction).   

 
 
Project Type / #: Site Improvement Plan (SIP), Project #SP14-30R 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Kelly First, Community Development Department Director 
 Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
  
Meeting Type: Public Meeting  
 
 
Summary of Request:   

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a 224-unit senior 
living facility on 4.824 acres. 

 
Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Unanimous recommendation for approval, with conditions. 
 
  
Suggested Action:  
 Approval, subject to two conditions noted in staff report.  
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 201



 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: November 12, 2014 
 
FOR:  November 18, 2014 City Council Meeting 
 
SUBJECT: RidgeGate Section 15, Filing 21, Lot 1 
 Site Improvement Plan, Project File #SP14-30R 
  
 
Owner:      Representative: 
RidgeGate Investments, Inc.   Redland Consultants, Inc. 
10270 Commonwealth St., Suite B.  8000 S. Lincoln St., Suite 206 
Lone Tree, CO  80124    Littleton, CO  80122     
 
 
Planning Commission Meeting Date:   October 14, 2014    
City Council Meeting Date:      November 18, 2014  
  
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Approval of a Site Improvement Plan (SIP) for a 224-unit senior living 
facility on 4.824 acres.      
 
 

B. LOCATION: 
 
The property is located in RidgeGate in the area known as Lincoln 
Commons South. The property is located between RidgeGate Parkway to 
the south and Arts Center Drive (now under construction) to the north.  
The adjacent land uses are as follows: 
 
East:    Future townhomes (New Town Builders) 
West:   Lone Tree Arts Center 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 201



North: Undeveloped land (planned for the future Lone Tree Library and 
townhomes north of Arts Center Drive) 

South:   RidgeGate Parkway, residential uses 
 

 
C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS: 

 
The property had been overlot graded.  There is no vegetation remaining 
on site.  The property gently slopes down from south to north with 
approximately 10 feet of grade change.   
 
 

D. SERVICE PROVIDERS:   
 
Water:   Southgate Water District 
Sanitation:  Southgate Sanitation District 
Police:  Lone Tree Police 
Fire:   South Metro Fire Rescue Authority 
Special Districts: Rampart Range Metropolitan District 

 
 

E. BACKGROUND: 
 

The property was originally planned in 2008 as part of a mixed-use retail 
area.  Since then, for a variety of reasons, the master developer for 
RidgeGate has said that the retail concept in this area is not feasible. 
Instead, the new plan includes a senior living facility proposed with this 
application, recently approved townhomes, and a new public library 
expected to be heard by the Planning Commission this fall. In April of this 
year, an amended Sub-Area Plan for Lincoln Commons was approved, 
laying the groundwork for the revised development plan.   
 

 
F. DESCRIPTION: 

 
Zoning.  The proposed senior living facility is permitted by zoning. The 
property is zoned PD and is within a Commercial-Mixed Use (C/MU) 
Planning Area in the RidgeGate Planned Development. The zoning allows 
residential as a permitted use.  
 
Access.  The property is proposed to be accessed via Commons Street, 
as well as Arts Center Drive and Belvedere Lane (both streets now under 
construction).   The west driveway accesses the main entrance to the 
building; the north driveway accesses parking (surface and underground); 
and the east driveway accesses the memory care units. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 201



Parking.  Staff finds the proposed amount of parking is adequate to meet 
the needs of the facility, based on staff research and documentation from 
the applicant.  
 
The parking proposed is provided both in surface and underground 
parking.  The exterior parking is located on three small surface lots and in 
underground parking, thereby minimizing the visual impact of parking 
fields.  Environmental impacts are also minimized in this way through the 
reduction in the heat-island effect (heat gain and re-radiation of heat of 
large pavement areas). 
 
The parking section of the City’s Zoning Code lists a parking standard for 
nursing homes based on .5 parking spaces per bed.  However, it does not 
specifically address parking for this type of facility that provides a 
continuum of care (a mix of independent living, assisted living and 
memory care).   
 
Staff has consulted the Parking Generation manual, 3rd Edition, published 
by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE).  Of similar facilities 
surveyed by ITE, parking of .5 spaces per unit on were provided on 
average for independent, assisted living and skilled nursing facilities.   
 
MorningStar at RidgeGate is proposing a total of 224 units. At .5 spaces 
per unit, 112 parking spaces would be required.  The developer is 
proposing 156 on-site parking spaces. This calculates to .70 spaces per 
unit.   
 
Staff asked the MorningStar representative to address parking needs in a 
separate letter (see attached).  MorningStar calculates parking demand 
based on their experience at their other facilities and based on the 
resident level of care (for example, MorningStar concludes that few 
assisted living residents and no memory care residents drive).  Also taking 
also into account parking demand for these residents, plus independent 
living residents, visitors and staff parking needs, they conclude that there 
will be more than adequate parking to meet the demand. 
 
Building Design.   Staff finds that the proposed building design is 
consistent with the City’s Design Guidelines and applicable Sub-Area 
Plan.   
 
The architectural context of the overall area will consist of a mix of both 
traditional and contemporary styles, complementing each other through  
careful transitions in massing and the use of quality materials and earth 
toned colors.  
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 201



Considerable effort has been made to transition the building mass and 
scale with the nearby residential units and the Lone Tree Arts Center.  
This has been accomplished by limiting building heights to a maximum of 
three stories in these areas.  The building transitions up to a height of five 
stories on middle portion of the north and west sides of the building.  
However, these taller areas are generally stepped back from the street to 
help reduce building mass and relate with adjacent development. 
Additionally, the floor level of the building along RidgeGate Parkway is 
lower than the road, again, minimizing building’s visual impact from the 
road and for residents living in the Lincoln Park townhomes to the south. 
The building heights are compliant with zoning. 
 
Vertical elements, such as brick and stucco features, window orientation 
and architectural embellishments are also added to help break up the 
generally horizontal building form.  
 
As this building is visible on all four sides by public streets, “360 degree” 
architectural treatment has been applied to this building design, with 
building materials and colors wrapping the building. 
 
Considerable attention has been given to the northwest corner of the 
building where an outdoor patio and seating area has been added to help 
activate this area adjacent to the City’s Art Center and future Library. 
 
Building colors are generally earth toned, with orange, yellow and red 
colors limited to building accents, in keeping with the City’s Design 
Guidelines.  Building materials include stucco and brick veneer that are 
durable and provide architectural variety.   
 
All service areas, trash receptacles, and generators are screened from 
public view.  All rooftop mechanical is screened from public view. 
 
Landscaping.  The proposed landscape and irrigation plans are 
compliant with the City’s requirements and that of the applicable Sub-Area 
Plan. Landscaping proposed is adapted to this climate, and is generally 
low-water intensive.   
 
Retaining and screen walls are located along the south, southwest, 
northeast and northwest corners of the property.  No wall is taller than 5 
feet.  Walls at the northwest corner are tiered to reduce the visual impact.  
Retaining walls along RidgeGate Parkway are planned downslope from 
the street, minimizing visual impact.  Landscaping has also been added in 
areas to help soften the visual impact of the walls.   
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 201



Lighting.  Street lights and pedestrian lights are compliant with the 
RidgeGate standard. Security lighting is fully cut-off to minimize light 
pollution.   
 
Snow Storage. Snow storage areas are designed in various portions of 
the surface parking lots throughout the site, and noted on the SIP. 
 
Local Park Dedication.  The requirement for local park dedication is 
calculated based on provisions of the approved Sub-Area Plan. Staff 
recommends that credit be given toward the park requirements, based on 
the large central courtyard, fitness center, pool and spa, art room, 
game/card room, and theater.  Consistent with the Sub-Area Plan 
provisions related to consideration of credits, the recommended cash-in-
lieu fee is $19,200.  Payment will be required to the City prior to issuance 
of a building permit, as recommended through a condition of approval.   

 
 

G. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW: 
 
The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning 
Commission meeting held on October 14, 2014: 
 
Ms. Jennifer Drybread provided a brief introduction of the project that 
proposes a senior living facility consisting of 224 senior units on 4.8 
acres.  Ms. Drybread summarized the general location, zoning, and the 
extensive public outreach provided about the project by the applicant, 
Coventry Development Corporation and planning staff.  Ms. Drybread 
stated that staff finds the application is in compliance with City regulations 
and zoning and recommends approval, subject to final approval by the 
Public Works Department and submittal of the cash-in-lieu of parks at the 
time of Building Permit issuance. 
 
Keith Simon, Director of Development for Coventry Development 
Corporation, stated that MorningStar is positioned as an anchor for the 
Lincoln Commons mixed use district.  He described the overall street 
network, stating they incorporated a small block pattern.  Arts Center 
Drive will serve as an “arts to parks connection” linking the Arts Center 
with the future park at Willow Creek, linked by a highly-landscaped 
promenade.  The surrounding uses include townhomes under contract 
with New Town Builders.   
 
Mr. Simon stated that they have been working for a long time to get a 
senior housing project in RidgeGate and they are pleased to have 
MorningStar, who they feel has a great track record.  He added that the 
additional residential in this area will help nearby retailers, including 
restaurants, particularly on the evenings and weekends. He described the 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 201



anticipated schedule for street construction by the Rampart Range Metro 
District and the City, and the timing of improvements to Willow Creek.  He 
concluded saying that taken together it is all part of creating a “place.” 

 
Darryl Jones, Development Manager for Coventry Development 
Corporation, discussed the process that preceded the hearing by the 
Planning Commission, including the RidgeGate Design Review 
Committee meetings, the community and neighborhood meetings and 
presentations before the Lone Tree Living and Aging Well group.  He 
stated that MorningStar took the comments to heart and made many 
changes as a result. 
 
Mr. Simon provided additional background regarding the parcels in front 
of the Lone Tree Arts Center, once proposed as restaurant pads.  He 
said that Coventry Development Corporation had tried for four years to 
market these properties and were unsuccessful.  They now plan to 
convey the properties to the City and the City will relocate the access 
drive to line up with the new alignment of Arts Center Drive.  It is 
anticipated that the properties will be used by the City as a public space.   
 
Matt Turner, the Chief Financial Officer for MorningStar, provided an 
overview of their company.  He stated that they expect 100 new jobs to 
be generated by the facility, with 2.3 million in salaries annually.  He 
added that they are a low-impact development, due to low traffic volumes 
(1 car/1.5 minutes) and minimal use of city resources and infrastructure.  
The development will generate little noise, as they contract with 
emergency response companies that are directed to not use sirens that 
may be disruptive to their residents.  He concluded that deliveries will be 
made on the north side of the development, away from residents to the 
south of RidgeGate Parkway.   
 
Dennis Boggio, President of Lantz-Boggio Architects, P.C., discussed the 
building architecture.  He talked about the variation in building heights 
along the façade to relate to the surrounding neighborhood.  He also 
talked about the building courtyards and amenities, and the architectural 
treatment at the northwest corner of the building including the addition of 
awnings added to “descale” the building.  He elaborated on the quality 
and quantity of landscape materials as an amenity for residents.  A 3-D 
SketchUp model was shown, providing a clearer presentation of building 
mass, height and articulation.  He presented the material sample board, 
and discussed the building materials and colors. 
 
Commissioner Godden stated that the project was thoughtfully designed, 
and said he was glad to see senior housing.  He asked if the main 
courtyard would be enclosed or otherwise secured.  Mr. Boggio 
responded that it would.  Commissioner Godden asked about the rooftop 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 201



screening.  Mr. Boggio answered that they have designed wells on the 
pitched roofs to screen mechanical, and that mechanical on flat roofs 
would be screened.  Commissioner Godden responded that there needs 
to be documentation for that on the SIP. 

 
Commissioner Steele stated he thought there was a demand for senior 
housing, and that there was a good deal of thought and work on the 
project.  He expressed support for the west elevation entry as it is 
juxtaposed to the Lone Tree Arts Center entry.  He observed that most of 
the parking would be on the north side of the project.  Mr. Boggio 
confirmed that, and said that the visual impact of that north parking lot will 
be lessened as the parking would be 2-3 feet lower than the street, and 
landscaping would help to screen the cars.  Resident parking will be 
underground and the north lot is primarily for staff, with visitor parking on 
the west and east side.  Mr. Boggio elaborated that service and venders 
will park on the north lot, and there will be no loading docks constructed. 
 
Commissioner Steele inquired about the red roofing on the building.  Mr. 
Boggio responded that the red roofs were placed strategically on the 
building as accent colors.  Commissioner Steele asked how much of the 
red roof would be visible from the street and Mr. Boggio answered that it 
depends on your vantage point (the closer to the building, the less of the 
roof you will see).   
 
Commissioner Steele asked about the lighting.  Michelle Lorenzten, from 
MEP Engineering discussed the various fixtures.  She said there will be 
low intensity lighting on the building.  There will not be landscape lighting, 
with the exception of monument sign lighting.  The down lit lighting will 
have a more residential feel to the building. 
 
Commissioner Kline asked what the output would be for the DD lights on 
the north side.  MS Lorentzen responded that those are sconce lights, are 
intended to be more decorative and will have an output of 13 watts. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner asked what kind of lighting will be used at the 
northwest monument sign, and Ms. Lorentzen responded that it will be a 
type JJ flood light, intended only to spot light the sign. 
 
Commissioner Carlson expressed her appreciation for the outreach and 
due diligence efforts by the applicant.  She felt the lighting was nicely 
done.  She asked how the property’s slope would impact the neighbors to 
the south, and what the neighbors would see.  Mr. Boggio showed the 
SketchUp model and how the ground slope will help reduce building 
heights on the south side of the building thereby reducing the visual 
impact to the residents to the south.  He said some residents in Lincoln 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 201



Park will still be able to see the Lone Tree Arts Center, while others will 
not, once MorningStar is constructed.   

 
Commissioner Kline stated that they provided a great presentation.  He 
liked the quality of the project and what went into that to make it happen.  
He asked what the red columns were made of at the entry.  Mr. Boggio 
replied that they are painted metal, and are intended to add color and 
provide contrast and interest to the building.  Commissioner Kline asked 
how the large areas of stucco on the north elevation will be broken up.  
Mr. Boggio answered that the use of 3 stucco colors, coupled with the 
joint design that provides a more finished look and pattern (with more 
joints added than needed to control cracking of the stucco).  
Commissioner Kline added that it would be helpful to have the SketchUp 
model in color given the complexity of the project. 
 
Commissioner Kline asked where the trash enclosure is located and how 
it will be treated.  Amy Deinis, from Lantz-Boggio, responded that the 
trash enclosure is located at the northwest side of the building.  The wall 
material will match the retaining wall, and will have vines growing over it 
to minimize the visual impact. Commissioner Kline inquired how the 
building height will affect the future townhomes to the north.  Mr. Boggio 
replied that their building adjacent to future townhomes will be one to 
three stories in height, and that the five story portion of the building is 
more in the center of the site. 
 
Commissioner Mikolajczak commented that he was excited initially about 
the use and relationship to the arts center and felt seniors will like the 
location.  He stated the design was amazing, with lots of variety and that 
people will feel proud to call it home.  He asked Jennifer Drybread if the 
Fire Department was ok with the application, as they appeared to have 
more comments than usual.  Ms. Drybread responded that there were no 
major issues with the Fire District, and they must ultimately be satisfied 
with their plan, as they are a sign off on the building permit.  
Commissioner Mikolajczak expressed support for the balconies and the 
seasonal landscaping. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner stated he was also very excited about the project, 
and appreciated the efforts to step back the building to mitigate (though 
not eliminate) the visual impacts.  He added that MorningStar is a great 
addition to the community and knows a lot of people who live here that 
would like to stay here.  He asked if the grading and utility plan is subject 
to approval, and Ms. Drybread replied that it was.  Commissioner 
Kirchner asked why the retaining wall note on the SIP stated that the wall 
locations were temporary.  The answer is that there may be minor 
tweaking of the wall location and that the stepping and elevation may 
change but the height will remain the same. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 201



Commissioner Kirchner also commented that the Statement of Design 
Intent referred to City landscaping, and Keith Simon responded the 
statement was in error and that the landscaping along the street is the 
responsibility of the Rampart Range Metropolitan District.  Commissioner 
Kirchner concluded that he likes the 3-D perspective, and that it helps to 
see how the project will relate to other projects in the area. 

 
Planning Commission Chair, Martha Sippel, expressed her appreciation 
for the thought that went into the design of the project, and for the 
community engagement effort.  She also appreciated the fact that the 
building heights were stepped down and inquired about the construction 
schedule.  She complimented the applicant on their landscape plan.  She 
asked if the snow storage areas were depicted on the plan, and staff 
answered yes.  She inquired about the red roof areas and whether they 
will be significant.  Mr. Boggio responded that they will be visible accents.   
 
Commissioner Carlson asked whether the Bistro restaurant inside 
MorningStar will be open to the public.  Mr. Boggio responded that no, 
but there is flexibility for resident activities to coincide with community 
activities.    
 
Bill Robertson, of 9278 E. Aspen Hill Place, said that he had researched 
retirement communities in the region.  He felt that this is an excellent 
location, that MorningStar has a good reputation, is good for Lone Tree, 
and he is in favor of it.  No other members of the public requested to 
speak. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner motioned to recommend approval of #SP14-30R 
with the following two conditions: 
 
1. Final approval by the Public Works Department; and 
2. The local park cash-in-lieu dedication of $19,200 for the property be 

paid to the City by the applicant, prior to issuance of a building 
permit. 

 
Commissioner Mikolajczak seconded the motion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.   

 
 

H. REFERRALS:  The following community meetings were held by Coventry 
Development Corporation on the application: 

 
• September 9, 2013 – meeting with 7-8 residents living closest to the 

MorningStar site to get initial feedback 
• October 8, 2013 – meeting with Living and Aging Well in Lone 

Tree.  Approximately 30 people in attendance 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 201



• October 8, 2013 – first community evening meeting with RidgeGate 
residents to present project and Lincoln Commons South Area 
development.  Approximately 110 people in attendance 

• December 11, 2013 – second community evening meeting with 
RidgeGate residents regarding MorningStar project.  Approximately 60 
people in attendance 

• May 6, 2014 – third community evening meeting to provide project 
update.  Approximately 40 people in attendance 

• June 10, 2014 – second meeting with Living and Aging Well group 
regarding project.  Approximately 30 people in attendance. 

 
Staff received a referral response from Dan Clawson, representing the 
RidgeGate West Village Community Association stating that the RWVCA 
had no comment, but he added that he was “impressed with Morningstar’s 
approach to mitigating resident concerns especially with regard to the 
height of the buildings on the SW of the property where it has the most 
impact on existing residents.  By moving the taller buildings to the north 
along with the parking entrances, this should help.”  Although not a 
requirement of the SIP process, staff also mailed notifications to each of 
the adjoining residents in the Lincoln Park neighborhood, containing 
general project information, staff contact information, and the date and 
time of the public meetings. 
 
The RidgeGate Design Review Committee has reviewed and approved 
the design plans (meeting notes are included in the packet). 
 
South Metro Fire Rescue Authority responded with a number of technical 
issues that are being addressed by the applicant. Sign off on the building 
permit by South Metro will be required prior to permit issuance.  

 
The applicant will address Public Works Department referral comments 
(who conclude with no overall objection to the proposal) prior to final 
approval of the SIP (a condition of SIP approval).   
 

 
I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements 
of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive 
Plan, and the RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial Mixed-Use Sub-
Area Plan.   
 
Staff notes that the Comprehensive Plan supports senior friendly housing 
development, including “assisted living facilities, [located] near social 
services, public facilities, and commercial areas to reduce feelings of 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 201



isolation and to ensure access to employment, education, and other 
activities.” 
 
Staff recommends approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to: 

 

1. Final approval by the Public Works Department 
2. The local park dedication for the property in the amount of $19,200 will 

be paid to the City by the applicant, prior to issuance of a building 
permit 

 
 
END 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 201



 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                      Lantz     Boggio Architects, P.C. 
  
                                                     5650 DTC Parkway, Suite 200 
 Englewood, CO 80111 
 (303) 773-0436 
 (303) 773-8709 Fax 

 
September 10, 2014 
 
 

MorningStar at RidgeGate – Project Narrative (Section 16-27-60) 
 
Project Team: 
 

Owner:   
Haselden/MorningStar Lone Tree, LLC 
6950 South Potomac Street 
Centennial, Colorado 80112 
Contact:  Jerry Blocher 
 

Civil Engineer:  
J3 Engineering Consultants 
6505 South Paris Street, Suite B 
Centennial, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Jason Margraf 

Architect:  
Lantz-Boggio Architects, P.C. 
5650 DTC Parkway, Suite 200 
Englewood, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Dwight Miller 
 

Landscape Architect:  
Blu Design Group 
1238 South Broadway 
Denver, Colorado 80210 
Contact:  Ariel Gelman 

Electrical Engineer:  
MEP Engineering, Inc. 
6402 South Troy Circle 
Centennial, Colorado 80111 
Contact:  Mardi Jones 
 

 

 
Project Name: 
 
MorningStar at RidgeGate 
 Lot 1, Filing 21 of Rampart Range Metropolitan District 1 
 A portion of Lot-2A, RidgeGate Section 15 Filing No. 5 – 1st Amendment,  
 Located in the Northwest Quarter of Section 15, Township 6 South, Range 67  
 West of the Sixth Principal Meridian, City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas,  
 State of Colorado 
 
The MorningStar at RidgeGate project is a high-quality continuing care senior living 
campus in the Mixed Commercial/Mixed Use Planning Area as part of the RidgeGate 
Planned Development District, located in Lone Tree, Colorado.  The project will include 
124 independent living, 71 assisted living, and 29 memory care resident units for a total 
of 224 total units comprising approximately 265,000 square feet of enclosed space.  
Situated on 4.824 acres, the varying height structure has been designed to place the 
tallest and highest density portion of the project toward the northern side of the site, 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 20 of 201



MorningStar at RidgeGate Page 2 of 2 

September 10, 2014  

thereby, minimizing the most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and 
other residences to the south of RidgeGate Parkway.  Additionally, the design takes 
advantage of the natural topography of the site that slopes downward from the south to 
the north.  This slope allows the first floor of the building to be approximately 13-feet 
lower than the floor level of the existing townhouses; thereby, lowering the roofline of 
the building by a story when viewed by the neighbors to the south. 
 
The purpose of this project is to provide a first-class home for its residents where they 
are able to maintain dignity and independence in a comfortable and familiar residential 
environment even after they require assistance with activities of daily living.  The 
location for this project was specifically selected for its prominence in the RidgeGate 
development, as well as its proximity to the surrounding residential neighborhoods.  
This immediacy allows the residents to continue to live in a residential setting and, quite 
often, close to their families.  Both inside and out, the project design works 
synergistically with the operating principles of MorningStar to promote the livelihood of 
the residents and the community as a whole. 
 
This SIP submittal includes the required drawings, documents, and narratives to 
demonstrate compliance with the Intent and Approval Standards of the Zoning Code. 
 
Construction is anticipated to commence with grading operations in November, 2014, 
foundations in December, 2014, and full construction activities by April, 2015.  
Anticipated project opening is in the first quarter of 2016.   
 
Sustainable features of the MorningStar at RidgeGate project include: 

• Close proximity to existing housing.  Families and staff who live in surrounding 
neighborhoods will have limited commutes to and from work, to the point that 
they could walk or bike to visit or for work. 

• Convenient access to local pedestrian and bike trails.  The local trail system 
helps facilitate low environmentally impactful means of transportation. 

• Energy Star appliances specified. 

• Most lighting will utilize LED lamps. 

• White membrane roofing used at low slope roof is specified to be used and has 
a higher reflectivity than darker colored membrane roofs. 

• In addition to locations required by Code, occupancy sensors are specified at all 
of the resident unit bathrooms.  This will lower energy use. 

• All paints are specified to be low VOC. 

• Surface parking lots have been limited in size, in favor of a parking structure 
beneath the building, allowing more area for landscaping. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 21 of 201



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
City of Lone Tree  
Design Guidelines  

 
 

Statement of Design Intent 
Using this form, or a separate page, please describe how the project meets the intent of the City of Lone Tree 
Design Guidelines, including the City’s Core Design Principles. (If the project is located within a Planned 
Development that is governed by additional design standards or guidelines, please address how the project 
satisfies the intent of those standards and guidelines as well).  
 
Please use the outline below as a guide in formulating your response. You may also use this opportunity to 
describe particular strengths, unique features, sustainable practices, or innovations that distinguish the design 
of the project, as well as any particular opportunities or challenges that should be considered. This Statement 
of Design Intent is intended to encourage thoughtful consideration of design guidelines and to give project 
reviewers and decision makers a more thorough understanding of the project.  
 

 
Project Name: MorningStar at RidgeGate 
 
Location:  RidgeGate Parkway and Commons Street                           
              
 
 

1. Overall Design Concept: 
Briefly describe the use and overall concept for the project as a whole.  
 
The MorningStar at RidgeGate project is a high-quality continuing care senior living campus in the Mixed 
Commercial/Mixed Use Planning Area as part of the RidgeGate Planned Development District, located 
in Lone Tree, Colorado.  The project will include 124 independent living, 71 assisted living, and 29 
memory care resident units for a total of 224 total units comprising approximately 265,000 square feet of 
enclosed space.  Situated on 4.824 acres, the varying height structure has been designed to place the 
tallest and highest density portion of the project toward the northern side of the site, thereby, minimizing 
the most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and other residences to the south of 
RidgeGate Parkway.   
 
As safety and security are of great concern to the residents and their families, the building is designed to 
provide enclosed courtyard.  One space is specifically for the memory care residents, and a second that 
is shared between the independent and assisted living residents.  This shared courtyard is located to the 
middle of the project site and helps to provide the buffer between the tallest portion of the building and 
adjacent neighboring residences.    
 
Finally, this project is designed and will operate in many hospitality aspects found in luxury resorts.  The 
wellness center includes a swimming pool, hot tub, massage room, and spaces for a physicians to 
provide treatment.  The dining facilities include a display kitchen similar to those found in many 
contemporary restaurants with both indoor and outdoor seating and a bar and lounge space appointed 
with soft seating for intimate gatherings with friends. 
 
 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 201



Page 2 of 3 

 

2. Context and Site: 
Describe how the project relates functionally and visually to the context of the surrounding area 
(consider issues of form and character; the natural environment; vehicular and pedestrian access and 
circulation systems, etc.). 

  

As noted above, the MorningStar at RidgeGate project has been designed such that the tallest and 
highest density portion of the building is located at the northern side of the site, thereby, minimizing the 
most immediate massing impact to the existing townhouses and other residences to the south of 
RidgeGate Parkway.  Additionally, the design takes advantage of the natural topography of the site that 
slopes downward from the south to the north.  This slope allows the first floor of the building to be 
approximately 13-feet lower than the floor level of the existing townhouses; thereby, lowering the 
roofline of the building by a story when viewed by the neighbors to the south. 
 
The parking lots at the East and West entrances to the building are intentionally small in both size and 
number of spaces, forcing most of the parking to be centralized to the larger parking lot to the north 
side of the site and beneath a portion of the building accessed off of the northern parking lot.  As noted 
in the attached parking narrative from MorningStar, the number of drivers who reside in these types of 
projects are far fewer than other multi-family type projects, therefore, the traffic generated by this 
project is generally considered to be minimal. 
 
 

3. Public Realm 
 Describe how the project contributes to an inviting, safe and functional public realm (consider public 
 spaces, street/sidewalk – level experience, lighting, landscaping and signage).  
 

The MorningStar at Ridgegate landscaping is based on the following planting design principles:  
 
The planting palette provides a wide range of colors, textures, and heights all year long (see flowering 
chart). The intensive of use perennials and ornamental grasses provide a comfortable pedestrian scale.  
They were carefully selected not only for water and light requirements but also as soft elements 
defining circulation, and providing a vertical barrier (for views or safety).  
 
Trees and shrubs provide the upper layers with a lot of character and structure. During the wintertime, 
evergreens and most importantly ornamental grasses deliver color, texture and soft architectural edges 
at specific locations. From the urban perspective, large deciduous trees frame the entire site along with 
future Rampart Range Metro District plantings. Large evergreens used in specific locations where a 
focal point was sought or as a complement to the building volume. Main entries to buildings are the 
focal point where the use of perennials, flowering trees, and ornamental grasses is most intense. 
Planting design defines spaces, complement signage, and hide undesirable views from public realm.  
Retaining walls are softened with cascading perennials as well as evergreen vines in order to soften its 
mass and at the same time to produce a ‘garden-like-feeling’. 
 
The building design specifically addresses each of the site corners.  At the southwest corner, the 
building is stepped in plan around the corner to relate to the roundabout at RidgeGate Parkway and 
Commons Street.  The southeast corner of the building has been set into the ground to reduce the 
exposed portion of the building immediately at this corner to a single story, which is also set back from 
both the road and the detached sidewalk to allow landscaping to interact with retaining walls and the 
signage wall.  The building notched at the northeast corner to allow the integration of low retaining walls 
that can serve as seating walls.  Finally, a pedestrian plaza space is integrated into the northwest 
corner.  Planter walls step down as the building approaches this corner to allow plantings to soften the 
building edges and form a seating area for pedestrians and residents.  The private dining room with 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 201



Page 3 of 3 

 

balconies has been located at this corner of the building to overlook the plaza and intersection and 
create an interaction between the street level and the building space that is perched a story above. 
 
The vehicular plaza at the West entry to the building is designed to emulate a European motor court.  
Scored concrete is used to identify the main entry, to distinguish this area from the asphalt paving at 
the parking area and to integrate it with the pedestrian circulation.  The pedestrian path to the West 
entry is lit with lantern fixtures mounted to the top of brick bollards that protect the path. 

 
 

4. Architectural Design 
Describe how the architectural design contributes to the unique qualities of the area and how design 
concepts result in a unified, functional and high quality design (consider building form and composition, 
façade composition and articulation, materials and colors and lighting).  
 
The exterior of the building is finished in a combination of brick and varied colors of stucco, and has 
sloped asphalt shingle roofs, low slope roofs with parapets, and accent roofs with red standing seam 
metal roofing.  The brick veneer is a strong and heavy material that is generally applied at the lower 
stories to form a “grounded base” for the building.  The mixture of stucco colors, interplay with the 
varying building heights and “ins and outs” of the façade to break down linear nature of the building.  
The placement and depth of the balconies is strategically done to create vertical stacking of elements to 
create further interest at the building’s façade.  Large windows are used throughout to offer views from 
the inside to the surrounding buildings, streetscape, and in the distance both downtown Denver and 
mountain scenery to the West.  These windows, with the stucco control joints, also create a rhythmic 
pattern at the exterior.   
 
To promote liveliness at the dining plaza located near the northwest corner of the building, vibrant 
yellow canopies are located above windows and doors creating an eye-catching and inviting outdoor 
space for residents to enjoy their dining experience. 
 
The story and a half tall wellness center, located at the southern portion of the site, is centralized 
between the independent living, 5-story building and the 3-story assisted living building so that it can be 
shared by all residents.  The exterior design includes large expanses of glazing to take advantage of 
the natural light and views toward RidgeGate Parkway.   

        
  

 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 34 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 201



�� ��

��

�� �� �� ��

��

��

��

��

��

��

����		
 �	���	


��
���



	���
 ����
 	���


�
	�����	�

�
	�����	�

�
	�����	�

�
	�����	�

�
	�����	�

�
	�����	�

	�
��
��



	�
��
�	
	


�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
	



�

�

�


�

	

�
��
�



��



�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��

	
��

	���
���
���	����

��
��



	�
��



�����


	
��
��
�	
��



���


����	�	�


		����	�
� 		����	�

�

	���������
������

����������������

	��
��������
���� !"�#$�%�$&��
�����$���������'��$

�#�%������� (�

�%��)��!�$�*����)
$ ������% ��$��

���$ �&�����������$�%�(���

���$ �&
����������$

%�(���

���$ �&������$���%�(���

���$ �&������$���%�(���

���$ �&�����������$�%�(���

	��$ �&��  %�����%�$&

	��$ �&�'�' �&�����

��$��� �
� #�$&���

��$��� ��'�' �&
������ #�$&���

�#�%����%�+�

	�����������������,�-��
�!������-��
����%�

��% ��$����%��)
�!�$�*����)

$��������$�������!�%%�

�.�$

�.�$

�.�$
�.�$

�.�$

'������$�&
'������$�&

�.�$

�.�$

�.�$

���(�$����������%�+�

����' #�$���%�$$���
 ��������!�%%

' �#'��$������������' #�$��
%�$$���� ���$�������% ���!�%%
/��*%�����$$����0

' �#'��$�������
����' #�$��
%�$$���� �
�$�������% ��
!�%%�/��*%��
��$$����0

�����$� ��%
����

������$��$�����% ��
��$�������!�%%���/��*%��
��$$���0

�
�*)��������!�%%��
�$�������% ���!�%%
/��*%�����$$����0

	
.�	
��1)
%��*$���� %%���
/-�$&�)0�����2��%��)

��
.��
��1)�������$
� ��)��%��$���/�
$&�)0

$�������$�

$���*
���% �#��

���$� ����$���
���#�%
���$���

������
���$���

��������%��$���
�������������$ 
%����������%��

�.��$����'��* %�

��!��$ �'���%�$

�.�$

��������%��$����������
������$ �%����������%��

�.�$

������$��$�����
�% �����$�������!�%%
/��*%�����$$���0

$������������$
�$�������% ��
��$�������!�%%�
/��*%�����$$���0

$������������$
�$�������% ��
��$�������!�%%�
/��*%�����$$���0

�.��$������$�
#$�%�$���

���$ �&
����������$
%�(�����#�%����

��������%��$���
�������������$ 
%����������%��

������$��$�����% �����$������
!�%%��/��*%�����$$���0

��������%��$����������
$ �%����������%��

��!�� ����$������!�%�����&� $*���

������$��$���
�% �����$������
!�%%��/��*%��
��$$���0

��!�� ����$�
����!�%�����&
 $*���

������$ �

�
�$*�)��� ���
� ��)�' $ �������
��2�� �%����� �$

�)�
�$*�)����*�%$������)
% $�����2�� �%����� �$

	�����������������,�-��
�!���

	�����������������,�-��
�!���

� �$*���������% $
�����������������

���������
������
,�-��

!���

�.�$

�.�$

$����� �'��

�	����
��
	��	�

��

���
��������
	��

�%��$�������
/�$������0��������$ 
%����������%��

���(�$��������
��(��$����%� ����

��$���#���$#��

�#�%������!)�� ��)
����!�%�����&
 $*���

��!�� ��)
�����$�����!�%�

������$��$�����% ��
��$�������!�%%���/��*%��
��$$���0

��������%��$���
�������������$ 
%����������%��

������$��% ���(������ �
� #����� ��)�!�%%���/��*%��
��$$���"�$ �'�$�*���3)
��$�������!�%%�0�,�������
����

������)�'�$�%��#������%�,
�����������

�)�
�$*�)����*�%$������)
% $�����2�� �%����� �$

/	0���!�(�����������
/�������0����&�(��$ �
�$��%�&"���&�%�
���$�&�� %%��$� ��
/ ������ ()��1)0

�)�
�$*�)����*�%$�,���(��%���

/	0���(��$����#�
����������/�
�����0����&
(��$ ���$���%&"
��&�%�����$�&
� %%��$� ���/ �
���� ()��1)0

	����$�'�$��� ���$���$��������
�������/���% ���4����!����������0

,�-��!)

��������
	���


-��
 ��)5

-��


-��



� ��)�!*��%��$ ���/$&�)	�0

���������$�&��.�$

�$������

	�
.	�
�������$
� ��)��1)�� %%���
/��$&�)0

���
 -��


,�-��
�!���

��������
����


,
�-
��

�!

��
�

��
��
�
�
�
�

��
��



���
�� ��)�!�%�
� ��)��$����
!��*������%�
� $*������

� ��)��$�����!�
*������%��� $*������

���
�!)�� ��)�!�%�

���
�!)�� ��)�!�%�

� ��)��$����
!��*������%�
� $*������

� ��)��$�����!�
*������%��� $*������

$���*������$��%�����&
(��$ ���$��%�&"
�$���$��$���� %%��$� �
/$���0�/ ������ ()��1)0

��$��$�����%�

��$��$�����%�

��$��$�����%�

�����*&����$�����2���(�%

����
*&����$��
��2���(�%

�� � ��������
*&����$�����2���(�%

�$ �'���!��
����'��$�����2���(�%

�%��)�����'��$�����2
��(�%

�� !��$ ������
��2���(�%

�� !��$ ����
����2���(�%

�� !��$ ���������2���(�%

���
� ����$� �

�����*&����$�����2���(�%

�#�%����%�+�

����' #�$��
%�$$���� �������
!�%%

������$��$�����% ��
��$�������!�%%�
/��*%�����$$���0

$�������$�

$���*
���% �#��

���(�$����������%�+�

�%��$�������
/�$������0�
������$ 
%��������
�%��

���(�$��������
��(��$����%� �&

��������%��$���
�������������$ 
%����������%��

!�)��%�$
����*����
(��$ ���$��%�&"
��%�����
� %%��$� ��
/��	��0�/ �
���� ()��1)0

���$ �&
����������$
%�(�����#�%����

���$ �&
����������$
%�(�����#�%����

�#�%�����!)�� ��)
����!�%�����&� $*���
/�#������$���$'��$
�� � ����$ �'�$�*
�#�%����%�+�0

�#�%������!)�� ��)
����!�%�����&� $*���

	
.�	
��1)�%��*$��
� %%����/-�$&�)0�����2��%��)

��
4��
�������$
� ��)��1)��%��$���

��!�� ��)
�����$�����!�%�

� ��)��' $ �����

%������������������
$ �%����������%��

%������������
������$ 
%����������%��

��������%��$����������
������$ �%����������%��

������$��$�����% �����$������
!�%%���/��*%�����$$���0

��������%��$���
�������������$ 
%����������%��

������$��% ��
(������ ���
��'#��
/��*%�����$$���"
$ �'�$�*���3)
��$�������!�%%�0
,������������

������)�'�$�%
�#������%�,
�����������

����
 ����		
 �����


���(�$�
��������
�(��$���  '

$���*������$��%�����&
(��$ ���$��%�&"
�$���$��$���� %%��$� �
/$���0�/ ������ ()��1)0

��
���



	
��



��
�	



��
��



�-
���



�	
���



��
���



��
�



��
��	



	�
��
��



��
�



������$ �

/	0���!�(������
�����/�������0����&
(��$ ���$��%�&"
��&�%�����$�&
� %%��$� ���/ �
���� ()��1)0

� ��)��$�����!�
*������%��� $*
�����

��$��� �
� #�$&���

������$��$�����% ��
��$�������!�%%��/��*%��
��$$���0

��������%��$��
��������$ 
%��������
�%��

��!)�� ����$������!�%�����&� $*���

�� ���$&�%���

������$��$���
�% �����$������
!�%%��/��*%��
��$$���0

	��$ �&
'�' �&�����

��!�� ����$�
����!�%�����&
 $*���

-��
 ����


��
��



�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
J G
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
< 8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J 7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

�	
�N����
	 ���*�$��$#��%���$���%��

�
�
�
*
�$
��
$#
�
�%
��
�$
��
�%
��

� �$*

		
� 
��
	�

�	
�N����
� �8G7=;@H��G78������=9?C@A9��G7:7

�	
�N����
� �8G7=;@H��G78������=9?@7A9���=8@=
� �$*

� �$*

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 201



�� ��

#�

�� �� �� ��

��

��

��

� �

� �

% %

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

� �

� �

�

�

�

�

�

�

		

		

� �

� �

#
#

( (

-

-

	

	

�
�

	�

	�

	�

	�

	�

	�

	�

	�

� �

� �

� �

	-

	-

	�

	�

	�

	�

' '

� �

  

1 1

�
�

$

$

� �

* *

	�

	�

	

	

�������
������
	

� ��)
�

(��$)
�

�%��$)
�

'��*)
�

���$��%
�$ ����

-

'���$������
 �����
	�

�#�$)
�

���
 ����
 ����
 ����
 �����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ���
 -���
 ���������
 ����
 ����
 ����
 ����
 	����
 ����
 ����


��
��



	�
��



��
�



��
��



��
���



��
��



��
�



�

�	
���



��
��



��
��



�
��



��
�



��
��



��
�



��
��



��
�



�
���



��
��



��
��



-�	��
 ����-�	��
 ������	��
 -�	��
 �������	��
 ����-�	��
 -�	��
 ����
 -�	��
 ������	��
 ����


-�	��


���


�
���
�	
��



-�
	�
�


��
��-
�	
��



��
��	
	


	�
���



��
�



��
���



�	
���



��
���
�	
��



�	
���
�	
��



-�
	�
�


�
��-
�	
��



�
��



	�
���
�	
��



-�
	�
�


��
��



	�
��



��
�



��
��



��
���



��
��



��
�



�

�	
���



��
��



��
��



�
��



��
�



��
��



��
�



��
��



��
�



�
���



��
��



��
��



		
	�
��



�
���



	
�
�



�
���



	�
	�
��
��
�


�	
���
�	
��
��
��



'��*)
	�

'��
�

����
��$�&��
�����
�

-	���������������

%�#���&
	

���(���
�%�()
��	

�%�()
���

�$���
���

�$���
��	

$���*
���% �#��

	�

�$ �)
	�

�$ �)
	�

�$ ����
	�

$ �%�$
		

- 	 	� 	� 	��

���� �� �� �	 � �- �� �� �� �� �� ��������

-	-

�	 � �-

�

��

	-	�	�	�		

�� ���� ��

� �� � �	�-

��

�	

��

��

��

��

�-

�

��

��

��

��

��

	�

�� �� ��

�	�

�	

�

�-

��

��

��

��

��

�

�	

��

�	

�-

��

��

��

��

��

�-

�

��

��

��

��

��

����

	-��������,�-��
�!���

	�	��


���������,�-��
�!���

����


����������,�-��
�!���

����


	�
���
�
�
�
�
�
�,
�-
� �

�!

��
�

	�
��
�



	�
���
�
�
�
�
�
�,
�-
� �

�!

��
�

�	
��



-�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�,
�-
��

�!

��
�

�	
��



���������,�-��
�!���

����


/	0�-������!��������%�

	���


/�0�-�������������!��������%�

����


�%�()
���

	�����������������,�-��
�!������-��
����%�

	�����������������,�-��
�!���

	�����������������,�-��
�!���

� �$*���������% $
�����������������

���������
������
,�-��

!���

�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
J G
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
< 8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J 7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

� �$*

�
��
�
'
��
$�
%�
(�
%�
�%
 
 
�
��
%�
�

	�
� 
��
	�

�	
�N����
� ����'��$�%�(�%��%  ���%���/�-���0

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 201



$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


����� ��		 -		�	� 	�	�	- 	� 	�

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


	�

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


	
�		 ���	�

�� �	��	��	� �	

��

���

�	�

�	

��
��



�	�

��
��



��
�



	�
���



		
���



		
��



��
��



��
��



��
��



	�
��	



��
�	
	


�	� �	� �	� �	� �	� �	� ���	����	 �	�	��	�� �	�	�	

�		

�	

���	 �	 �	 O�� �� ������� ��� ����� �������� ��� ��� ��� ������ ��� ���

��

��-

��-��-��-

��- ��

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


��% � ���#( � ���' � 1�$

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


� *

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


��
�


	�
���



		
���



		
��



��
��

�
���


	�
��	



��
�	
	


�	 �	� �	�		�	 �	� �	 �� �	��	� ���	 �� ���� �	�� �����	�

�		
�����	

��� ������ ���
��-

��-

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����
 $) )��$*��%  �

	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


� � %�� � � # (�� � � '�  1 � $

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


�*

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


��
�	
	


	�
��	



��
��



	�
�



	�
��



		
��



		
���



	�
���



��
�



��
��



��

�	 �		 �	� �� ��

�	� �	 �	��	�

�� ��

�	

������	��

���� �	�

���	

�	�

�	�

�	�

���� �	�

�	 �	 �� �	 �	� �	� �	 ��

�� �� �	� �	

��

�	�

�	�

�	� �	���� �� �	 �	� �	��	���������� ��� ������ ��� ��� ������ ���

��-����

��-

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


� � � � �� � 		- 	 	� 	�	� 	� 	-	�	�

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


	�

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


	

$) )��!�������$
	����


��
�	
	


	�
��	



		
��



		
��



		
���



	�
���



��
�



��
��



�� �	 �� �� �	 �	�

�		 ��

��

�-

�� ���� �	

��	 ��

��

�	

�	��� �	���� �� ����

�� �	

�	� �	��� �	��- ��� �	� �	� �	����������� ������ ���

��

�� ��

�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
J G
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
< 8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J 7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

�
.$
�
�
� 
�
��
#
�%
�
��
�
��
%�
(�
$�
 
�
�

�
����
��
�
��

�	 ����������$���$�$����������� ��$ ���
�� �$#�� �	����)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�� �$#�� ������)')��%�� .�$����/*����0
�� �$#�� ������)')��$�.���%��$*����/����0
�� �$#�� ����������$�� % �"��)!))���������&���/����0
�� �$#�� �$��'����)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�� ������� %������ #��������$���$�$�������������$
�� �������)�'�$�%�� ����������.�%�'�$�%�������$ ���
�- !  ������������)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�	 '�$�%���  ����������.�%�'�$�%���� % ���%�����
�		 ���*�%$��*���%��������$�'���%�����!��$*�����!  ��
�	� '�$�%�% #(���������$���$ �'�$�*���3)��#�����
�	� ���(����!��������#����%%������������#��% !���&�%% !�
�	� '�$�%���%� �&����%������/� % ���%����0
�	� *)')��  ����$ �'�$�*���3����$��$#�� 
�	� �� �)��%#'��#'��$ ���� �$
�	� � ''�����%���������  �
�	� (��&%�!��� !
�� �% �����$�������!�%%�������%�$�"���*%�����$$���"�$����%���
��	 �$#�� �� ���������)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
��� �����$�� %#'�������.�%�'�$�%���� % ���%�����
��� ������� !% �����%%�����$���$�$�������������$
��� �������$�� ����$��!�$��$��%�
��� �.$��� ��%��*$���.$#��P����2��%��$����%
��- ���������*���'�$�%�� !��� #$�$���$ ��$ �'P����2���(�%)������$�$ 

'�$�*����%��� % �
�� '��*�����%��������!�%%�/�$#�� �$ �'�$�*���3)��$#�� ��%��)

� % �0

	�
� 
��
	�

�	
�N����
	 � �$*��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� ���$��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� !��$��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� � #$*��%�(�$� �

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 201



$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


������
 	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��
 $) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0

	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����
$) )��$*��%  �

	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


�(�)��������%���
-���


	����
 �����
 �-���


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


	�-���
 	����


������
�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�
����������	�����	�����������	���	����
��
	��	�


�
��������������
����������������
��	��	���
���
���	����

�
��������������
����������������
��	��	���
���
���	����

�
�������������	�����
�
��
��������
�����������	��	���
���
���	����

�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
J G
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
< 8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J 7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

�	
�N����
� �#�%�������$�����$� ���

�	
�N����
� �#�%�������$�����$� ���

�	
�N����
� �#�%�������$�����$� ���

�
�$
�
��
�
 
��
��
��
$�
 
�
�

	�
� 
��
	�

�	��
�N�	��
� �<9@��@>9<�8A

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 201



������$��% ���(������/$ 
'�$�*���3)���$�������!�%%�0
 ���
��'#����$)���$)�����

����$���'$%)���$��
��� % ��$ �'�$�*
'�$�%������$�� �
�%��)

	����
	�

�

*)')��  �����$)�$ 
'�$�*���3)��$ ��

�

��
��



��
�	



��
��



�

	�
��



��
��



��
��



��
��



	�����	��


�#'��$�����
�&� !���

�#�%����

������$ �
���

�

	-
���



	�
���



���


���
 	����
 ����


�
�$*�)�� ��)
!�$*������% �#��
����2�� �%����� �$

�
����)�� ��)
� %%����

�
����)�� ��)
� %%����

��	�
��

���$�%%��$%��*����%�
,���$)������ ��$���*
���% �#��

��
�



	����
 �
 ����
 ����
 ����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


������$�/��*%��
��$$���"�$ �'�$�*
��3)���$������
!�%%�0��% ��
(������ ���
��'#��
����$���$��� ������

����$���'$%)
��$���������$
$ �'�$�*
�$��%������$�
 ���#�%����

������$����

�$����$ !�����& ��




��
�



����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


������$����

������$�/��*%��
��$$���"�$ �'�$�*
��3)���$������
!�%%�0��% ���(�����
 ���
��'#�������$
��$��� ������

!�%%� ���$����$ !��

����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


������$�/��*%��
��$$���"�$ �'�$�*
��3)���$������
!�%%�0��% ��
(������ ���
��'#��
����$���$��� ������

������$����

�$����$ !�����& ��

������$�/��*%��
��$$���0��$�����
�% �����$������
!�%%����������$ ���$�
�%��

*)')��  �����$)�$ 
'�$�*���3)��#��)

������$����

�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
J G
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
< 8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J 7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

�	��
�N�	��
	 $=7A?��8>G�AF=@��G78

�	��
�N�	��
� $=7A?��8>G�AF=@����=�89��G@K79<�8

�	��
�N�	��
� $=7A?��8>G�AF=@����7>B��G@K79<�8

	�
� 
��
	�

$�
��
*
��
�
�
% 
�#
�
��
�
�$
��
%�

�	��
�N�	��
� $=7A?��8>G�AF=@��<H@

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 201



$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


����� ��		 -		�	� 	�	�	- 	� 	�

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


	�

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


	
�		 ���	�

�� �	��	��	� �	

��

���

�	�

�	

��
��



�	�

��
��



��
�



	�
���



		
���



		
��



��
��



��
��



��
��



	�
��	



��
�	
	


�	� �	� �	� �	� �	� �	� ���	����	 �	�	��	�� �	�	�	

�		

�	

���	 �	 �	 O�� �� ������� ��� ����� �������� ��� ��� ��� ������ ��� ���

��

��-

��-��-��-

��- ��

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


��% � ���#( � ���' � 1�$

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


� *

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


��
�


	�
���



		
���



		
��



��
��

�
���


	�
��	



��
�	
	


�	 �	� �	�		�	 �	� �	 �� �	��	� ���	 �� ���� �	�� �����	�

�		
�����	

��� ������ ���
��-

��-

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����
 $) )��$*��%  �

	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


� � %�� � � # (�� � � '�  1 � $

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


�*

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��!�������$
	����


$) )��!�������$
	����


��
�	
	


	�
��	



��
��



	�
�



	�
��



		
��



		
���



	�
���



��
�



��
��



��

�	 �		 �	� �� ��

�	� �	 �	��	�

�� ��

�	

������	��

���� �	�

���	

�	�

�	�

�	�

���� �	�

�	 �	 �� �	 �	� �	� �	 ��

�� �� �	� �	

��

�	�

�	�

�	� �	���� �� �	 �	� �	��	���������� ��� ������ ��� ��� ������ ���

��-����

��-

$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )	�$��%  ��/�-��)	��0
	��


$) )������%  �
		����


$) )������%  �
		����


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


����'��$�%�(�%�/�-���0
����	


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )������%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )��$*��%  �
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


$) )����$ �&
	�����


� � � � �� � 		- 	 	� 	�	� 	� 	-	�	�

�(�)��������%���
-���


�(�)��������%���
-���


	�

�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


�(�)��  ��*$)�/'�.)�����(�)0
	�����


$) )��  ��/�����$���%�(���0
	�����


	

$) )��!�������$
	����


��
�	
	


	�
��	



		
��



		
��



		
���



	�
���



��
�



��
��



�� �	 �� �� �	 �	�

�		 ��

��

�-

�� ���� �	

��	 ��

��

�	

�	��� �	���� �� ����

�� �	

�	� �	��� �	��- ��� �	� �	� �	����������� ������ ���

��

�� ��

�������	�
����
���������
���	�
����	���������������
���
��
�	
�	�������������
�	����
�����������������	�
����

�	�����������
��������������
�����
������
��
������
��������
��������	������� ���������������
������ �

����
�������������� �������������
��	�!�������
����

�
��
�����	

��������
����

�������	

��	�������	�	�����������	�����������

32
6�
	
�)
	�
�'
 
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
$�
�
��
�
�
�
�
$�
6
��
�
�
$�
$%
�
'
��
$�
6�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
��
 
��
�
�
(
�
�
�!
�
$�
�
��
% 
�
�
)�
!
�
���
��
��
'
&
��
�
��
�
�

���� ��! �� "!�#$��%&�'�(�$��)�&�(#!��
��*+	��	������	*��	�	����	�&��������+���	���

�������

��
��
��

�
�
�
	


�
�

��


�
�
�


�
�

�

	

�

�
��

���
�

�
��

	
��




�
��

�
��

�
	


�
��

�
��

�
��

	


�
��

��
��

��
	


�
��

��
��

�
�

�
��




�
��

��
��

��
��

�
��


 �
�
�

�� �



,
#
�
$
�$
�
�!
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
 
�
�
!
 

��
!
 
��
,
��
#
-
 
,
 
$
!
��
(
�
$

�
�

�
�

 �
!

�"
#

�
�$

"%
�$

$�

&'
()

��
�
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

�*
�

��
��

��
�

+��
�

�,
(-

-.
�

��
��


�/
(/

01
.,

0/
,/

(
�

�
��

��
�

�2

��
�	

��
+�

��
��

��
���

��
�

���
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

�
��

��
��

���
��

� !
��

��
��

"�
#

��
�

��
��

��
�$


%
�


&
'

��
��

��
��

��
(�

��
��

���
��

� #
��)

�#
��

��
���

*




���
"'

��
��

+�
��

%789:���;;<�
�=>?<9@>9A"��)�)

�����$���BCD)�E��F<9@���E
�8;G@C��H�E�� ��			

�?2���)���)����E
�742���)���)��-

�
�
��
�

�
�$
?@
A@
�H
�>
FI
@8
9A
�7
=@
�<8
A9
=F
I
@8
9A
��
��J
=�
�@
AA
<�
87
G�A
@=
K<
>@
"�7
8H
�<8
��
=I
79
<�
8�
>�
89
7<
8@
H�
9?
@=
@<
8�
<A
�<8
>�
I
JG
@9
@�
F8
G@
AA
�F
A@
H�
<8
�>
�8
LF
8>
9<�
8�
C
<9?
�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
<8
9@
=J
=@
97
9<�
8A
"�H
@>
<A
<�
8A
"��
MA
@=
K7
9<�
8A
�7
8H
�7
HI
<8
<A
9=7
9<�
8A
)�#
A@
��
=�=
@J
=�
HF
>9
<�
8�
��
�9?
@A
@�
H�
>F
I
@8
9A
�<8
�C
?�
G@
��
=�<
8�
J7
=9�
C
<9?
�F
9�%
78
9:
��
�;
;<
��
A�
>�
8A
@8
9�<
A�
<8
�K
<�
G7
9<�
8�
��
�>
�I
I
�8
�G7
C
"�>
�J
D=
<;
?9
A"
�A
97
9F
9�
=D
�7
8H
��
9?
@=
�=@
A@
=K
@H
�=<
;?
9A
)��
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
�

#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=)�
�	
	�
/	
--
	0
"�C
?<
>?
�J
=@
@I
J9
A�
A9
79
@�
78
H�
G�
>7
G�J
FM
G<>
�=@
>�
=H
A�
7>
9)�
�
@�
@=
�9�
��
>9
�	
��
#
)�
)�
)"�
J7
=��
	
�/	
--
	0
)

�
.$
�
�
� 
�
��
#
�%
�
��
�
��
%�
(�
$�
 
�
�

�
����
��
�
��

�	 ����������$���$�$����������� ��$ ���
�� �$#�� �	����)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�� �$#�� ������)')��%�� .�$����/*����0
�� �$#�� ������)')��$�.���%��$*����/����0
�� �$#�� ����������$�� % �"��)!))���������&���/����0
�� �$#�� �$��'����)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�� ������� %������ #��������$���$�$�������������$
�� �������)�'�$�%�� ����������.�%�'�$�%�������$ ���
�- !  ������������)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
�	 '�$�%���  ����������.�%�'�$�%���� % ���%�����
�		 ���*�%$��*���%��������$�'���%�����!��$*�����!  ��
�	� '�$�%�% #(���������$���$ �'�$�*���3)��#�����
�	� ���(����!��������#����%%������������#��% !���&�%% !�
�	� '�$�%���%� �&����%������/� % ���%����0
�	� *)')��  ����$ �'�$�*���3����$��$#�� 
�	� �� �)��%#'��#'��$ ���� �$
�	� � ''�����%���������  �
�	� (��&%�!��� !
�� �% �����$�������!�%%�������%�$�"���*%�����$$���"�$����%���
��	 �$#�� �� ���������)')����(������!$����/*��	��0
��� �����$�� %#'�������.�%�'�$�%���� % ���%�����
��� ������� !% �����%%�����$���$�$�������������$
��� �������$�� ����$��!�$��$��%�
��� �.$��� ��%��*$���.$#��P����2��%��$����%
��- ���������*���'�$�%�� !��� #$�$���$ ��$ �'P����2���(�%)������$�$ 

'�$�*����%��� % �
�� '��*�����%��������!�%%�/�$#�� �$ �'�$�*���3)��$#�� ��%��)

� % �0

	�
� 
��
	�

�	
�N����
	 � �$*��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� ���$��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� !��$��%�(�$� �

�	
�N����
� � #$*��%�(�$� �

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 201



 
RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Pre-Submittal Meeting 
July 11, 2013  
 
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, Coventry Development/RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The project is a senior living community consisting of two Independent Living buildings, one of which is 5 
stories, two Assisted Living buildings (3-4 stories), memory care buildings and an aquatic/fitness building.  
Living units range from 500-1,500 square feet.  The site is bounded by Commons Street on the West, Village 
Way to the north, Belvedere Lane to the east and RidgeGate Pkwy on the south.  The Assisted and 
Independent Living buildings create a central courtyard for those residents while the Assisted Living and 
Memory Care buildings create and enclosed courtyard for the memory care residents.  Site plans include 
plaza bistro space at the northwest corner of the site along Commons Street ending mid-way up the 
Independent Living building.  The grade change from Village Way to RidgeGate Pkwy is approximately 15 
feet.  The applicant presented architecture character studies. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

• Give consideration to elevations along RidgeGate Parkway that face existing homes to the south.   
• Current architectural forms are somewhat arbitrary, particularly the urban design form along 

RidgeGate Parkway where the form is lost.  Reconsider the shape of the aquatic/fitness center or 
consider architecture that reinforces the round-a-bout. 

• Consider the materials and forms. Multiple materials and layers; Pitched roof and shorter buildings 
with unique features; balcony elements on Independent Living units. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 201



Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
• Consider opportunities to strengthen the street edge.   
• Double driveway ingress/egress (Commons and Belvedere) should be studied in consultation with 

City Public Works staff. 
• Consider revising the Independent Living entry to work with the utility cabinet.  Possibly a straight 

in design with round-a-bout. 
• Consider extending the outdoor plaza up to Commons and Village Way to blend with the existing 

and future retail. 
• There was discussion regarding City parking requirements and the process for a variance.  Consider 

opportunities for parallel parking in order to meeting City parking requirements.   
• Coordinate streetscape with the Rampart Range Metropolitan District. 

Next Meeting: 
• Provide cross sections 
• Continue to develop site plan and architecture 
• Provide conceptual landscape plans 
• Provide grading plans 

 
The meeting ended at 4:30pm.  The applicant was approved to the Schematic Design phase of the Design 
Review process.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 201



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Schematic Design Meeting 
September 13, 2013  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ben Jenkins, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Salazar, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
Per the Pre-Submittal meeting, the applicant proceeded forward with formal Site Plan and Architecture 
design. 
 
DRC Comments: 
 
Architecture 

• Consider ways to break up massing on long wall planes (especially the north side) with additional 
roof forms and materials such as brick, roof skirts, brackets or stucco color changes.  Provide 
contrasting roof materials. 

• Consider widening the north elevation center tower element or accentuate this element by using a 
contrasting material or provide more separation between the two shorter building elements. 

• Address the transition between the 2nd and the 5th story portions of building at the building 
corners. 

• Clarify the portions of the roof where RTU’s will be placed. 
• Bring the masonry level higher on the building (high waist it) elevation and consider a base-middle-

top solution to visually reduce the building height. 
• Use the influence of the Lone Tree Arts Center building for the entry arcade to this building. 
• Provide a version of the building in sketch up model. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 201



Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
• Study the 4 to 5 site and topographic conditions along RidgeGate Pkwy and provide site sections for 

DRC review. 
• Study the relationship of the building to the round-a-bout.  The building should adapt and parking 

should not be visible.  Consider increasing landscaping at the round-a-bout and give consideration 
to pedestrian connection and experience. 

• Provide detailed landscape plans, including species and call outs, at next meeting. 
• Strengthen streetscape and urban edge especially along RidgeGate Pkwy and Village Way.  

Consider double esplanade of trees with screen wall on Village Way. 
• Provide site cross sections at key points along Village Way at next meeting. 
• Provide a detail of the plaza site at the northwest corner.  Consider pedestrian connection at the 

intersection versus a midblock connection and consider ways to create an urban statement. 
• Identify and label snow storage locations. 
• Provide detail of the 11 foot wall at the site pinch point on RidgeGate Pkwy.  Break up the wall with 

color and materials.  Consider benching the wall and adding ivy.   Consider straightening this 
portion of the building to relieve the tight pinch point against the curvature of RidgeGate Pkwy and 
enhancing the public view/landscaping. 

• Consider signage revisions such as incorporating into site retaining walls. 
• Consider corner monumentation and signage as a function of the landscape, especially in the 

pedestrian plaza areas. 
• Identity and provide on street parking on Commons Street, Village Way and Belvedere Lane.  
• Integrate the RRMD provided sidewalks and tree lawns around the site perimeter as appropriate. 

 

Next Meeting: 
• Provide site cross sections as identified in the notes above 
• Continue to develop site plan and architecture 
• Provide developed landscape plans 
• Provide grading plans 
• Provide material and color boards including retaining wall materials 
• Provide 3D renderings (sketch up model) 

 
The meeting ended at 11:00am.  The applicant was conditionally approved to the Design Development 
phase of the Design Review process.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 201



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Meeting 
February 6, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Craig Karn, Consilium Design 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Steve Hebert 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matt Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ariel Gelmans, BW Design Group 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Salazar, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
Dennis Boggio reviewed the comments from the Schematic Design meeting.  Their responses to and 
modifications made are as follows: 
 

• Modified the grade and architecture of the building at the southeast corner of the site to allow 
room between the building and the garden retaining wall.  This modification reduced the height of 
the wall to 6 feet maximum.  A guard rail will be installed along the points closest to the sidewalk 
and landscape material at the farther points to act as a guard rail. 

• Added trees along Village Way and along RidgeGate Pkwy to create urban edge. 
• Added landscaping details at the corners where signage is located. 
• Signage locations designated at the RidgeGate Pkwy and Commons Street round-about, Village 

Way and RidgeGate Pkwy intersection, and Commons Street and Sky Ridge Ave intersection. 
• Building materials and colors were identified.  Brick will wrap the base of the building stepping up 

at areas to break up the mass of the stucco material.  Three different hues of beige stucco colors 
were selected and were drawn from the neighboring Lincoln Park townhomes and Lone Tree Arts 
Center and one trim color was chosen.  The colors were meant to be subtle to help scale the 
building down, create a clean appearance, and help the building fade into the background.  Vertical 
details on the front entry building facade are burgundy colored metal.  Awnings are added for 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 201



accent, consisting of terra cotta colored fabric.  Roofs are a combination of asphalt composition 
shingles and painted standing seam metal. 

• Landscape plans call for perennials around the building with ornamental grasses and other low 
maintenance materials.  Ornamental grasses are meant to screen vehicle parking areas from public 
streets.  There are no plans for turf lawn areas inside the project’s property line. 
 
 

DRC Comments: 
• In general, the submittal was not felt to be at the Design Development level of detail required, 

especially the landscape plans. 

Architecture 
1. Study and consider more contrast in the proposed color schemes for the body of the building, 

including metal railings and vertical elements that have more color or punch to them.  The color 
scheme is too subtle and washes out, especially at the upper levels and the excitement in the 
building is lost. 

2. Large panels of stucco walls need reveals and windows or other detail where possible. 
3. Study and consider ways to break up the southern elevation and upper floor of the eastern 

elevation by adding a window at the end of that hallway, as it is not engaging.  Consider a bay 
window or other architectural detail to break up the building massing.  Currently the building has 
an institutional appearance because of the massing, scale and color scheme. 

4. The project is suburban and introverted within a mandate for strong edge and urban design 
principles.  The architecture should incorporate contributions to the public realm especially the 
building and site at the northwest corner of the site where there is a lack of activation.  Let the 
urban design imperative influence the architecture of the building. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 

1. The DRC is not comfortable with the current site plan for the northwest corner of the site and it is 
not consistent with applicant’s verbal description of the “community connection”.  Study and 
consider opportunities to activate the corner with the public.  If no viable alternative is found, 
consider expanding the landscape wall around the building. 

2. Provide a 3D model of the street scene at the round-about.  Consider the addition of landscape 
elements to reinforce round-about form. 

3. Consider opportunities to enhance the corner at Village Way and Belvedere Lane and consider 
using landscape and/or structural features to enhance the project and the pedestrian transition to 
the future open space to the east. 

4. Add landscaping and/or low retaining walls to screen vehicle parking where close to sidewalk 
(Village Way and Commons Street in particular). The RidgeGate Design Standards and Guidelines 
require that parking areas are screened with a low walls or berm. 

5. Consider seeding areas around lower walls and keeping color materials at the corners.  Continue to 
explore mix and refine the landscaping palate. 

6. Add evergreen trees where there is an opportunity and explore using other columnar evergreens to 
substitute for the arborvitae.  

7. Reflect Rampart Range Metro District tree lawn landscaping and pedestrian lighting on plans. 
8. Provide cross sections of parking conditions to show prototypical site conditions. 
9. Consider opportunities for pedestrian connections from the Independent Living building to the 

perimeter sidewalk, especially at Commons Street. 
10. Provide details and material of trash enclosure. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 201



 
Next Meeting: 

• Provide site cross sections as identified in the notes above 
• Provide developed landscape plans 
• Provide revised material and color boards including retaining wall materials 
• Provide 3D model and renderings (sketch up model) as noted above. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 3:45pm.  The applicant was asked to resubmit to the Design Review Committee in 
the Design Development phase of the Design Review process.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 65 of 201



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Resubmittal Meeting 
April 8, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matthew Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Dennis Boggio, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Ariel Gelman, BW Design Group 
Jason Margraf, J3 Engineering Consultants, Inc. 
Mardi Jones, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The following was presented: 
 

• A revised 3D model showing increased window size, addition of windows along the eastern wall, 
stucco detailing on that wall as well to help break up the solid plane and the revisions to the 
northwest corner. 

• Revised color board.  Metal roofing detail was modified to a brick red color, awnings were changed 
from orange to yellow, building body colors are now beige and tans with an orange accent color 
and the brick is a dark brown/red color. 

• Revised landscape plans for the northwest corner were presented.  The internal program was 
adjusted to push the dining/community room to the northwest corner, balconies above the corner 
extended to allow for more public space outside, awnings, benches and terraced landscape planter 
walls were added.  One planter wall will be brick where signage will be mounted and the other two 
will be rough faced retaining wall material.  The signage wall is 6 ½ to 7 feet tall.  Landscape 
materials in the walls will cascade over to soften. 

• Modifications to the northeast corner include a curvilinear plant bed around the corner of the 
building creating a connection between the two sidewalks. 

• Trash enclosure details were presented.  The trash enclosure is faced with stone to match the 
building materials. 

• Signage will be pin detail with no back lighting. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 66 of 201



 
DRC Comments: 

• Consistency of drawings and projection with material board needs to be confirmed for PC/CC 
Presentations. 

 
Architecture 

1. **The City prefers a terracotta color over the orange stucco color presented. 
2. **Confirm the yellow awning presents as yellow. 
3. **Provide detail of awning attachment. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 
Northwest Corner: 

1. Consider ways to soften the 90 degree angle of the signage wall. 
2. **Continue ground planting bed around the corner planter wall. 
3. **Reorient the two benches 90-degrees from planter wall in paired groupings and add  additional 

bench grouping . 
4. **Add a rectangular tree bed rather than tree grates. 
5. Consider using color and/or patterned materials for planter walls.  Consider using brick on all low 

walls. 
6. Re-Study # of parking lot light fixtures in North Lot. 

 
Northeast Corner: 

1. **The DRC favors eliminating the path element. 

Overall Site: 
1. **Consider opportunities for year round color landscape, i.e. evergreens. 
2. **The DRC will provide Craig Karn’s comments regarding species and other detailed landscape 

comments separately. 
3. **Consider potential conflicts of ornamental trees with pedestrians and vehicles. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 3:30pm.  The applicant was approved to the Construction Document phase of the 
Design Review process and approved to submit their SIP to the City of Lone Tree SUBJECT TO 
INTEGRATION OF THE COMMENTS ABOVE W/**. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 67 of 201



RidgeGate  
Residential Design Review Committee 
Morningstar Haselden 
Lincoln Commons South 
Design Development Resubmittal Meeting 
September 10, 2014  
 
In attendance for the Design Review Committee: 
Jon Hindlemann, Hindlemann Architects 
Steve Lane, Kephart Architects 
Dick Marshall 
Keith Simon, RidgeGate 
Kevin Yoshida, The Abo Group 
 
In attendance for the City of Lone Tree: 
Jennifer Drybread 
 
In attendance for Morningstar Haselden: 
Matthew Turner, Morningstar 
Jerry Blocher, Haselden Construction 
Amy Deines, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Dwight Miller, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Jeff Shera, Lantz-Boggio Architects 
Mardi Jones, MEP Engineering 
 
Applicant Presentation: 
 
The applicant reviewed modifications made since the April DRC meeting and subsequent work sessions. 
 

• 34 units were added to the project.  Those units came from the addition of a 5th story on the north 
elevation and a 3rd story to the east Assisted Living elevation. 

• The northwest corner remains 3 stories. 
• Parking spaces were added.  39 in the garage and 5 surface spaces between the west and north 

parking lots.  There will be controlled access entry at night. 
• The emergency generator was moved to the northwest corner of project and is screened by an 8 

foot enclosure.  The enclosure material will be the same as the retaining wall material. 
• The retaining wall along the north of the site was extended west, it is about 3’ to 4’ in height, and a 

retaining wall was added along the south side of the site.  
• A low retaining wall was added on the east elevation in front of the memory care center. 
• The west and south architectural elevations were unchanged. 
• The east elevation was changed to include the 3rd story on the Assisted Living building. 
• The north elevation was modified by extending the 5 story elevation east. 
• The northwest corner elevation has the added generator enclosure with a small landscape strip 

between the enclosure and the sidewalk. 
• LED lighting will be provided with a thin edge to the light fixture so that they are less visible and be 

a warm color. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 68 of 201



• Pedestrian light fixtures are at 15’ in height.  Pedestrian lights will be at assisted living and 
independent living entries. 

• Building mounted sconces will be dark bronze. 
• Seasonal lighting will be used. 

 
DRC Comments: 

• Consistency of drawings : 
o Correct landscape colors to match landscape plan materials. 
o Coordinate landscape renderings to include RRMD landscape. 
o Update context site plan on the cover of the SIP package.   Darryl will send Amy a new 

plan. 
 

• Items of note for Planning Commission and City Council hearings: 
o Be aware of the possible push back from Planning Commission regarding the use of 

Honey Locust trees. 
o Create a presentation board with the landscape site plan in color. 
o Include 3D models in presentation materials. 

 
Architecture 

1. Consider opportunities to enhance the east tower element on the north elevation due to the new 
street alignment and now that it is a focal point.  Consider adding windows or spandrel glass as 
reveals and scoring is not enough given the mass of the wall. 

 
Site Plan/Landscape Plan 

• Consider a third tree species to the plant scheme for additional variety. 
 

Northwest Corner: 
1. Consider vines (and a trellis element) or columnar junipers in the planting area around the 

generator enclosure. 
2. Consider alternative retaining wall material, colors or pattern of materials for the leading walls at 

northwest corner.  At a minimum change the color or add a decorative coursing of the building 
brick or wall cap. 

3. Coordinate outdoor furnishing with the Metro District improvements. 
 

North Parking Lot: 
1. Increase plant material in the islands to add as much material as possible. 
2. Consider lowering the hedge or trim low at driveway ingress/egress due to possible sight distance 

issues. 
3. Consider a lighter colored textured pole for light poles and fixtures in the parking lot to help make 

them disappear. 
 
Southeast Corner: 

1. Delete the sod in front of signage monument.  Consider additional planting material or ornamental 
grasses. 

 
Signage: 
Signs were approved as presented and clarified that there is ground mounted lighting, but no up lighting.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 69 of 201



 
The meeting ended at 12:00pm.  The applicant was conditionally approved to the Construction 
Document phase of the Design Review process and approved to submit their SIP to the City of Lone Tree. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 70 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 71 of 201



 

 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
      

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director 

DATE:  November 12, 2014 

FOR:   November 18, 2014, City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: 2015 Draft City Budget 

Summary 
 
Pursuant to State Statute, the City will hold its annual public hearing which is scheduled 
for Tuesday November 18th at 7:00 PM.  A draft of the budget will be distributed Friday to 
Council with the Treasurer’s report for September.  Staff wanted to evaluate sales tax 
information as well as other revenues and expenses before distributing the public 
hearing version of the budget.  Please keep in mind that the 2015 budget is still in draft 
form and that substantial changes/modifications to the current draft will be discussed 
and considered with Council prior to adoption.  The final budget version will be adopted 
by City Council on Tuesday, December 16, 2014 at 7:00 PM.   
 
Cost 
N/A 
 
Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
No motion at this time.  This is the public hearing meeting.  Council will approve 
the final 2015 budget and related resolution on December 16, 2014 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 72 of 201



  
  

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCES  13,701,060$         15,133,444$         15,797,988$         15,797,988$         18,643,319$         

REVENUE
   TAXES 25,333,948           26,013,850           18,513,593           26,150,000           26,449,900           
   FRANCHISE FEES 973,986                980,450                728,005                1,038,000             1,059,200             
   INTERGOVERNMENTAL 7,317,985             4,878,760             3,926,736             5,561,872             8,381,769             
   LICENSES, FEES AND CHARGES 1,743,385             1,572,580             1,887,230             1,911,000             1,286,500             
   FINES AND FORFEITURES 648,298                652,300                375,549                519,000                626,300                
   ARTS CENTER 1,369,871             1,763,570             1,238,509             1,649,128             1,834,730             
   OTHER 1,760,167             527,900                348,720                551,139                1,411,086             

      Total revenue 39,147,640           36,389,410           27,018,342           37,380,139           41,049,485           

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund 1,024,170             793,885                -                           1,005,954             676,828                
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           
   Special Revenue Fund - Arts Center 717,851                914,024                601,336                924,496                1,029,436             

        Total transfers in 1,742,021             1,707,909             601,336                1,930,450             1,706,264             

      Total funds available 54,590,721           53,230,763           43,417,666           55,108,577           61,399,069           

EXPENDITURES
   GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,775,878             5,291,431             3,462,416             4,940,474             5,165,659             
   MUNICIPAL COURT 210,388                222,075                156,901                213,170                226,466                
   COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,222,385             1,275,207             721,714                1,047,360             913,242                
   POLICE DEPARTMENT 6,142,980             7,408,888             4,774,815             6,786,230             7,457,825             
   PUBLIC WORKS 3,962,754             4,384,500             3,088,807             4,386,750             4,430,000             
   ARTS AND CULTURAL 2,143,423             2,929,710             2,067,218             2,885,124             2,988,666             
   PARKS AND RECREATION 18,034                  253,500                1,439                    5,000                    165,000                
   CAPITAL OUTLAY 16,206,114           16,210,428           7,051,641             11,835,881           19,457,806           
   DEBT SERVICE 2,368,756             2,445,000             459,909                2,434,819             2,505,000             

      Total expenditures 37,050,712           40,420,739           21,784,860           34,534,809           43,309,666           

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 717,851                914,024                601,336                924,496                1,029,436             
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate 887,569                620,385                -                           830,954                549,328                
   Debt Service Fund - Arts and Cultural Facilities 136,601                173,500                -                           175,000                127,500                

        Total transfers out 1,742,021             1,707,909             601,336                1,930,450             1,706,264             

        Total appropriation 38,792,733           42,128,648           22,386,196           36,465,259           45,015,930           
 

ENDING FUND BALANCES 15,797,988$         11,102,115$         21,031,470$         18,643,319$         16,383,139$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
SUMMARY

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 73 of 201



  
  

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

FUNDS RESERVED FOR:
   Emergency reserves (TABOR) 795,975                783,000                554,000                794,000                838,000                
   Emergency maintenance and repair  52,601                  52,601                  52,601                  52,601                  52,601                  
   Prepaid items 295,760                250,000                -                           300,000                300,000                
   Emergency disaster management 89,730                  99,273                  99,273                  99,273                  108,930                
   Capital projects - County - transportation 414,198                -                           -                           -                           -                           
   Bond proceeds - Park and Rec Improvements 934,020                733,714                934,700                934,020                794,020                
   Park fee in lieu of land 46,125                  46,125                  74,194                  74,194                  74,194                  
   Conservation Trust Fund 115,118                136,063                158,855                177,118                240,118                
   Brick fence replacement reserve 986,200                226,821                986,200                986,200                986,200                
   Lone Tree Link Partnership funds -                           -                           634,453                283,305                -                           
   Kaiser Walk/Wheel grant -                           -                           56,856                  -                           -                           
   Debt Service - Arts and Cultural Facilities 568,947                636,962                1,489,961             649,141                766,141                
   Debt Service - Park and Recreation Improvements 682,980                778,248                1,253,216             776,367                868,767                
FUNDS DESIGNATED FOR:   
   Working reserve 2,805,000             3,528,000             3,528,000             3,853,000             4,583,000             
   Capital reserve - capital projects 4,412,000             3,725,000             3,725,000             7,672,000             6,605,000             
   Capital reserve - vehicles replacement -                           92,000                  92,000                  92,000                  133,333                
   Subsequent year's expenditures 2,561,001             -                           -                           1,868,181             -                           
UNDESIGNATED AND UNRESERVED FUNDS 1,038,333 14,308 7,392,161 31,919 32,835

15,797,988$         11,102,115$         21,031,470$         18,643,319$         16,383,139$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
SUMMARY

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 74 of 201



  
REVENUE DETAIL

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 12,927,111$         13,852,033$         14,447,335$         14,447,335$         17,165,210$         

REVENUE  

TAXES
   Sales tax 17,533,355           18,178,000           12,518,040           18,130,000           18,577,000           
   Use tax-retail 282,421                286,250                210,202                270,000                275,400                
   Use tax - building materials 143,259                166,000                140,839                191,000                195,000                
   Lodging tax 616,644                622,000                545,598                720,000                734,000                
   Admissions tax 357,294                330,000                414,799                514,000                374,000                

TOTAL TAXES 18,932,973           19,582,250           13,829,478           19,825,000           20,155,400           

FRANCHISE FEES
   Electric and gas 674,777                678,300                568,370                710,000                725,000                
   Cable TV 184,726                187,200                96,573                  199,000                202,000                

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 859,503                865,500                664,943                909,000                927,000                

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
   Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 229,850                227,585                173,594                268,897                322,394                
   Conservation Trust Fund (Lottery) 62,006                  63,000                  43,737                  62,000                  63,000                  
   Cigarette tax 202,452                203,000                146,598                193,000                193,000                
   County Road & Bridge shareback 978,642                1,074,200             1,079,540             1,085,000             1,178,700             
   Douglas County Shareback - transportation 2,274,156             2,280,000             1,380,942             2,400,000             2,435,000             
   Motor vehicle registration fees 39,404                  39,000                  32,639                  44,000                  45,000                  
   Regional improvements contribution - RRMDs 91,518                  104,400                -                           104,400                128,900                
   Reimbursable costs 3,332,376             710,400                808,722                1,127,400             3,838,600             
   Grants 23,128                  18,000                  113,185                118,000                18,000                  

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 7,233,532             4,719,585             3,778,957             5,402,697             8,222,594             

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 75 of 201



  
  

REVENUE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

REVENUE (Continued)  
LICENSES, FEES AND CHARGES   
   Sales and use tax and business license fees 22,645                  23,500                  17,400                  23,500                  23,500                  
   Liquor license fees 22,100                  12,000                  9,452                    12,000                  13,000                  
   Building permit fees 291,228                349,000                242,311                315,000                322,000                
   Planning and zoning fees 17,580                  19,080                  17,298                  22,000                  25,000                  
   Engineering fees 64,305                  40,000                  27,821                  33,000                  35,000                  
   Other 39,300                  36,000                  500                       37,000                  38,000                  

TOTAL LICENSE, FEES AND CHARGES 457,158                479,580                314,782                442,500                456,500                

FINES AND FORFEITURES
   Court fees 70,038                  73,400                  54,047                  72,000                  73,400                  
   Vehicle and other code violation fines 534,619                535,000                287,275                402,000                507,000                
   Victims assistance surcharge 43,641                  43,900                  34,227                  45,000                  45,900                  

TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITURES 648,298                652,300                375,549                519,000                626,300                

OTHER
   Net investment income 16,744                  20,000                  7,801                    11,150                  13,970                  
   Miscellaneous 1,443,809             243,000                105,391                247,000                1,141,000             
   Police Department fees and other charges 22,958                  25,000                  27,979                  30,000                  25,000                  
   Tenant rental income 249,904                232,000                171,538                223,000                218,000                

OTHER 1,733,415             520,000                312,709                511,150                1,397,970             

        Total revenue 29,864,879           26,819,215           19,276,418           27,609,347           31,785,764           

TRANSFERS IN
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate 887,569                620,385                -                           830,954                549,328                
   Debt Service Fund - Arts and Cultural Facilities 136,601                173,500                -                           175,000                127,500                

        Total transfers in 1,024,170             793,885                -                           1,005,954             676,828                

        Total funds available 43,816,160$         41,465,133$         33,723,753$         43,062,636$         49,627,802$         

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 76 of 201



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES  

GENERAL GOVERNMENT  
    City Council expenditures 27,482$                48,000$                20,049$                33,000$                48,000$                
    City Council stipend 56,757                  59,600                  43,842                  59,500                  61,300                  
    Administrative Services - salaries and benefits 582,688                675,613                401,561                544,359                567,582                
    City Clerk 15,056                  63,500                  26,525                  29,575                  40,000                  
    Human Resources 50,241                  72,200                  66,224                  89,800                  79,770                  
    Information Technology 265,757                394,720                252,297                378,655                403,950                
    Municipal office building 344,971                341,380                228,115                336,400                401,550                
    Civic Center maintenance & utilities 56,105                  55,960                  40,914                  56,300                  74,700                  
    LTAC maintenance & utilities 205,537                204,160                158,317                199,360                301,910                
    Restroom maintenance 5,433                    8,315                    4,383                    7,000                    8,500                    
    Fountain maintenance -                           -                           -                           -                           23,500                  
    Insurance 343,212                311,100                298,130                305,000                320,250                
    Finance - salaries and benefits 285,989                371,352                255,064                360,999                371,876                
    Finance - consulting 256,287                100,000                7,345                    12,000                  -                           
    Audit 13,658                  27,600                  27,935                  27,935                  27,600                  
    City Manager's Office - salaries and benefits 571,658                665,316                479,948                712,924                630,242                
    Dues and memberships 84,038                  100,095                99,136                  99,666                  100,611                
    Legal - general 539,313                573,200                484,079                620,000                470,000                
    Legal - special 216,623                100,000                8,672                    20,000                  100,000                
    Consulting 23,238                  45,000                  10,400                  20,000                  80,000                  
    Community support 46,808                  54,000                  43,831                  51,200                  53,000                  
    Community garden -                           3,000                    -                           3,000                    -                           
    Youth initiatives 19,800                  19,800                  19,800                  19,800                  19,800                  
    Housing Partnership 35,000                  35,000                  35,000                  35,000                  35,000                  
    Community education programs 694                       1,000                    1,025                    1,025                    1,000                    
    Citizen survey -                           -                           -                           -                           27,800                  
    Communications and newsletter 61,810                  68,000                  55,615                  65,000                  68,000                  
    Economic development 144,952                278,000                108,130                268,500                276,000                
    Miscellaneous 13,641                  50,066                  30,699                  49,001                  53,059                  

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 4,266,750             4,725,977             3,207,036             4,405,000             4,645,000             

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

GENERAL FUND
CITY OF LONE TREE

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 77 of 201



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
MUNICIPAL COURT
    Municipal Judge 23,986                  26,500                  19,528                  23,000                  26,500                  
    Legal 36,000                  36,000                  27,000                  36,000                  36,000                  
    Administration 133,677                137,575                96,713                  136,170                140,966                
    Office supplies and software 3,932                    2,000                    2,716                    3,000                    3,000                    
    Victims assistance 12,792                  20,000                  10,944                  15,000                  20,000                  

TOTAL MUNICIPAL COURT 210,388                222,075                156,901                213,170                226,466                

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
    Salaries and benefits 572,445                621,068                369,930                476,642                543,295                
    Contract services -                           1,500                    -                           3,878                    1,500                    
    Field supplies 3,228                    3,875                    3,591                    4,200                    3,625                    
    Planning Commission 1,799                    2,500                    1,854                    2,500                    2,500                    
    Document scanning 6,735                    6,500                    224                       6,500                    6,500                    
    Plan review and other inspections 32,359                  25,000                  5,900                    25,000                  25,000                  
    Elevator inspections 17,982                  41,760                  18,100                  41,960                  43,560                  
    Engineering 56,480                  50,000                  20,554                  28,000                  30,000                  
    Sustainability program 362                       3,000                    -                           500                       3,000                    
    ROW mowing -                           -                           -                           -                           7,100                    
    Miscellaneous 7,563                    11,980                  5,344                    10,356                  12,048                  

TOTAL COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 698,952                767,183                425,497                599,536                678,128                

POLICE DEPARTMENT
    Salaries and benefits 3,848,765             4,256,110             3,004,519             4,188,737             4,438,665             
    Office and administration 175,052                175,642                95,768                  137,667                149,101                
    Uniforms and equipment 38,115                  54,710                  35,723                  48,199                  50,487                  
    Vehicles and equipment 379,700                465,195                315,388                450,566                423,535                
    General equipment 12,740                  107,714                9,735                    20,819                  191,056                
    Dispatch 366,154                581,936                293,932                392,090                435,666                
    Training 76,177                  101,583                42,335                  87,527                  100,571                
    Community outreach and miscellaneous 91,314                  109,681                51,649                  75,862                  102,562                

TOTAL POLICE DEPARTMENT 4,988,017             5,852,571             3,849,048             5,401,467             5,891,643             

WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED

 

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 78 of 201



  
  

EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)
PUBLIC WORKS
    Public Works Department 485,760                520,000                467,661                520,000                520,000                
    Street lighting 380,078                360,000                295,891                385,000                390,000                
    Street maintenance 565,269                650,000                462,474                650,000                650,000                
    Drainage maintenance 5,414                    90,000                  5,234                    90,000                  60,000                  
    Street  & sidewalk sweeping 35,702                  50,000                  18,280                  50,000                  50,000                  
    Traffic signal energy cost and maintenance 123,382                130,000                89,984                  130,000                135,000                
    Signal timing -                           9,500                    -                           -                           19,000                  
    Snow removal 968,042                885,000                694,532                1,044,500             832,000                
    Landscaping maintenance 137,807                100,000                59,355                  83,000                  50,000                  
    Trash and recycling service 533,938                580,000                379,476                510,000                512,000                
    Household hazardous waste program 3,067                    7,500                    3,360                    6,000                    6,500                    
    Engineering 237,440                310,000                186,581                240,000                275,000                
    Fence maintenance 7                           20,000                  -                           -                           80,000                  
    Geographic Information System (GIS) 142,785                140,000                99,408                  140,000                140,000                
    Website mapper 5,000                    5,000                    5,000                    5,000                    -                           
    Materials and equipment 355                       14,000                  -                           14,000                  14,000                  
    EPA Phase 2 Drainage 54,260                  110,000                42,443                  65,000                  110,000                
    Noxious weeds control 9,733                    20,000                  21,297                  22,000                  20,000                  
    Signage and striping 52,383                  120,000                82,237                  130,000                120,000                
    Accident repairs 35,917                  20,000                  1,391                    20,000                  20,000                  
    Public Works Facility operations and equipment 26,216                  40,000                  28,759                  45,000                  45,000                  
    Software and support 11,954                  16,000                  9,071                    16,000                  17,000                  
    Street amenities 1,587                    5,000                    -                           5,000                    5,000                    
    Mutt mitts contract 10,727                  12,000                  7,753                    10,500                  10,500                  
    Habitat control -                           2,500                    -                           -                           -                           
    Holiday lighting and decorations 17,473                  35,000                  1,673                    20,000                  20,000                  
    Miscellaneous -                           3,000                    1,697                    3,000                    3,000                    

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 3,844,296             4,254,500             2,963,557             4,204,000             4,104,000             

ARTS AND CULTURAL
    Arts Center repairs and maintenance -                           78,616                  61,999                  136,500                72,000                  
    Arts Center capital improvements 55,701                  173,500                165,374                175,000                52,500                                                                                               

TOTAL ARTS AND CULTURAL 55,701                  252,116                227,373                311,500                124,500                

PARKS AND RECREATION
    Recreational activities and support 10,696                  -                           -                           -                           -                           
    Joint recreational projects with South Suburban 7,337                    53,500                  1,439                    5,000                    65,000                  
    Park and recreation capital improvements -                           200,000                -                           -                           100,000                

TOTAL PARKS AND RECREATION 18,034                  253,500                1,439                    5,000                    165,000                

 

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 79 of 201



EXPENDITURE DETAIL - Continued

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES (Continued)

CAPITAL OUTLAY

    Software packages 59,824                  75,110                  12,447                  80,110                  15,000                  
    CarteGraph/ArcServer Upgrade -                           -                           -                           -                           50,000                  
    Website redesign -                          -                         -                         -                          100,000               
    Overlay/reconstruction projects 1,555,338             1,100,000             999,271                1,215,000             1,200,000             
    Traffic signalization 65,210                  121,000                51,122                  70,000                  50,000                  
    Traffic and other improvements - joint projects 4,140                    -                           -                           -                           -                           
    Pedestrian lights 234,468                -                           205,230                206,000                -                           
    Monumentation and signage 7,302                    80,000                  43,287                  80,000                  250,000                
    City Office building 1,535,258             17,600                  18,817                  24,000                  20,500                  
    City Office building - capital leases 951,972                1,136,962             757,048                1,015,000             1,290,000             
    City Office - letter of credit fees/remarketing fees 48,428                  31,000                  28,956                  31,000                  -                           
    Civic Center capital improvements 59,153                  84,023                  26,646                  84,000                  10,000                  
    Concrete panel replacement 344,808                295,000                471,020                472,000                250,000                
    Entertainment District improvements 103,674                590,000                69                         20,000                  730,000                
    Park Meadows Dr. traffic improvements 81,112                  -                           -                           -                           -                           
    Park Meadows Drive median improvements 3,459                    -                           3,230                    4,000                    -                           
    Park Meadows Dr. regional pond upgrade -                           30,000                  -                           -                           -                           
    Landscaping PM Center Dr/County Line 4,542                    60,000                  31,250                  32,500                  -                           
    Transportation study -                           50,000                  -                           50,000                  -                           
    Landscape improvements 10,779                  55,000                  56,704                  57,000                  -                           
    County Line improvements 40,000                  60,000                  -                           -                           -                           
    Yosemite landscaped medians -                           85,000                  115                       1,000                    10,000                  
    C-470 Coalition - Douglas County 100,000                500,000                -                           -                           100,000                
    Storm sewer improvements 95,685                  -                           39,805                  40,000                  135,000                
    Park Meadows Reconstruct (W of Acres Green) 1,698,888             -                           -                           -                           -                           
    Park Meadows Medians (W of Acres Green) -                           150,000                9,011                    10,000                  -                           
    Parkway Drive crossing Willow Creek -                           50,000                  -                           50,000                  -                           
    Light Rail Extension -                           3,000,000             -                           -                           -                           
    Lone Tree Link -                           500,000                40,643                  250,000                500,000                
    Walk and Wheel Study -                           -                           43,143                  90,000                  -                           
    Brick fence 13,800                  750,000                -                           -                           -                           
    Lincoln Pedestrian Bridge -                           -                           -                           -                           4,000,000             
    Parkway Drive Reconstruction -                           -                           -                           -                           1,200,000             
    Yosemite Turn Lane (Maximus to PMD) -                           -                           -                           -                           850,000                
    Lincoln/I-25 Ramp Improvements -                           -                           -                           180,000                250,000                
    County Line/PMCD Intersection Improvements -                           -                           -                           -                           450,000                
    LTAC Road Construction -                           -                           -                           -                           128,000                
    LTAC Pad enhancements -                           -                           -                           -                           25,000                  
    Town Ridge Drive Construction -                           -                           -                           -                           300,000                
    Public art project -                           225,000                10,616                  14,500                  210,500                
    Police Department substation -                           -                           -                           -                           60,000                  
    Schweiger Ranch preservation -                           75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  
    Retail retention agreement 75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  75,000                  
    Service provider shareback agreement -                           10,000                  -                           10,000                  10,000                  
    Annexation shareback agreement 732                       27,188                  -                           27,188                  30,000                  
    County public improvements shareback 2,200,000             -                           -                           -                           -                           
    Reimbursement of sales taxes to PMBID 5,090,889             5,160,000             3,524,206             5,360,000             5,479,000             
    Reimbursement property taxes-PMBID for PMMD 184,379                196,000                209,962                209,962                215,000                

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 14,568,838           14,588,883           6,732,598             9,833,260             18,068,000           

        Total expenditures 28,650,974           30,916,805           17,563,449           24,972,931           33,902,737           

TRANSFERS OUT
   Special Revenue Fund - Arts Center 717,851                914,024                601,336                924,496                1,029,436             
   Special Revenue Fund - RidgeGate -                           -                           -                           -                           -                           

        Total transfers out 717,851                914,024                601,336                924,496                1,029,436             

        Total appropriation 29,368,825           31,830,829           18,164,785           25,897,427           34,932,173           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 14,447,335$         9,634,304$           15,558,968$         17,165,210$         14,695,630$         

CITY OF LONE TREE
GENERAL FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/201411/18/14 City Council Packet Page 80 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE (273,873)$          52,601$             98,726$             98,726$             52,601$               

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,396,339          1,818,000          1,485,424          2,039,000          1,895,000            
    Use tax-retail 384,846             687,000             320,282             410,000             420,000               
    Use tax - building materials 1,761,686          965,000             782,311             904,000             944,000               
    Lodging tax 149,586             158,100             146,001             190,000             195,000               
    Franchise fees - electric and gas 110,007             110,250             61,517               125,000             128,000               
    Franchise fees - cable 4,476                 4,700                 1,545                 4,000                 4,200                   
    Highway Users Tax (HUTF) 84,453               84,175               72,779               84,175               84,175                 
    Building permit fees 1,140,934          963,000             1,513,253          1,381,000          717,000               
    Planning and zoning fees 18,359               20,000               6,000                 12,500               13,000                 
    Engineering fees 126,934             110,000             53,195               75,000               100,000               
    Schweiger Ranch grants and contributions -                         75,000               75,000               75,000               75,000                 
    Net investment income 2,256                 1,500                 1,405                 1,520                 1,716                   
    Developer reimbursement -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          
    Reimbursable costs -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          
    Other 23,552               5,000                 33,544               37,069               10,000                 

            Total revenue 5,203,428          5,001,725          4,552,256          5,338,264          4,587,091            

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          

        Total transfers in -                         -                         -                         -                         -                          
 
            Total funds available 4,929,555$        5,054,326$        4,650,982$        5,436,990$        4,639,692$          

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 81 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - RIDGEGATE

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES
    City Administration - salaries and benefits 167,699$           203,554$           136,282$           193,475$           209,609$             
    Legal 39,298               20,000               6,300                 20,000               20,000                 
    Finance - consultant 50,709               -                         -                         -                         -                          
    Administration and overhead costs 157,284             220,000             -                         200,000             200,000               
    Insurance 89,340               76,900               79,720               81,000               85,050                 
    Audit 4,799                 5,000                 5,000                 5,000                 5,000                   
    Engineering 323,291             300,000             172,097             250,000             250,000               
    Community Development 200,142             208,024             124,120             197,824             235,115               
    Consulting -                         35,000               28,068               35,000               -                          
    Police Department 1,154,963          1,556,317          925,767             1,384,763          1,566,182            
    Street lighting 5,137                 5,000                 3,521                 5,500                 6,000                   
    Snow removal 113,322             125,000             121,729             177,250             70,000                 
    Schweiger Ranch Preservation -                         75,000               75,000               75,000               75,000                 
    Retail shareback 353,512             480,675             244,043             556,041             567,162               
    Service provider shareback -                         200,000             -                         200,000             -                          
    Developer revenue shareback 1,283,765          865,870             -                         1,171,580          747,644               
    Reimbursement related to annexation agreement -                         -                         -                         -                     -                          
    Miscellaneous -                         5,000                 10                      1,000                 1,000                   

          Total expenditures 3,943,260          4,381,340          1,921,657          4,553,434          4,037,763            

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 887,569             620,385             -                         830,954             549,328               

        Total transfers out 887,569             620,385             -                         830,954             549,328               

      Total appropriation 4,830,829          5,001,725          1,921,657          5,384,388          4,587,091            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 98,726$             52,601$             2,729,325$        52,601$             52,601$               

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 82 of 201



 CITY OF LONE TREE
 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CULTURAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

311   BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          

312   REVENUE  
313   LONE TREE ARTS CENTER
314     Operating
315       Ticket sales 684,923                 1,034,750              740,857                 956,997                 1,060,180              
316       Handling fees 93,296                   67,500                   70,076                   93,500                   93,000                   
317       Rental fees 108,951                 110,000                 94,851                   108,900                 100,900                 
318       Labor fees 78,508                   78,000                   42,211                   65,943                   59,500                   
319       Concessions and catering 86,826                   75,000                   49,719                   87,000                   91,000                   
320       Miscellaneous 4,128                     150                        4,508                     5,000                     3,000                     
321       Education 20,546                   31,920                   -                            -                            -                            

322     Non-Operating
323       Individual, corporate and foundation contributions 137,925                 205,000                 96,551                   151,500                 210,000                 
324       Government grants 110,625                 124,250                 99,389                   137,288                 197,150                 
325       Fundraising -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

326   TOTAL LONE TREE ARTS CENTER 1,325,728              1,726,570              1,198,162              1,606,128              1,814,730              

327   OTHER
328     Annual Events 26,820                   22,000                   33,994                   34,000                   11,000                   

329     Arts and cultural events 17,323                   15,000                   6,353                     9,000                     9,000                     

TOTAL OTHER 44,143                   37,000                   40,347                   43,000                   20,000                   

330               Total revenue 1,369,871              1,763,570              1,238,509              1,649,128              1,834,730              

331   TRANSFERS IN
332      General Fund - Lone Tree Arts Center 425,340                 595,324                 366,282                 650,424                 674,804                 
333      General Fund - Annual events 169,011                 193,500                 190,139                 191,000                 270,732                 
334      General Fund - Arts and cultural events 118,188                 106,200                 44,017                   68,072                   68,900                   
335      General Fund - Park and recreation 5,312                     19,000                   898                        15,000                   15,000                   

336           Total transfers in 717,851                 914,024                 601,336                 924,496                 1,029,436              
  

337               Total funds available 2,087,722$            2,677,594$            1,839,845$            2,573,624$            2,864,166$            

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 83 of 201



 CITY OF LONE TREE
 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - CULTURAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICES FUND

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

338   EXPENDITURES
339   LONE TREE ARTS CENTER
340       Administration   119,419                 122,830                 110,660                 158,860                 160,217                 
341       Programming 1,170,687              1,608,456              1,150,268              1,617,747              1,682,014              
342       Marketing 359,214                 394,733                 274,879                 407,802                 432,308                 
343       Education 42,666                   49,550                   5,772                     5,772                     -                            
344       Miscellaneous 15,889                   22,500                   13,654                   19,741                   21,000                   
345       Development 43,193                   123,825                 9,211                     46,630                   153,995                 
346       Contingency -                            -                            -                            -                            40,000                   

347   TOTAL LONE TREE ARTS CENTER 1,751,068              2,321,894              1,564,444              2,256,552              2,489,534              

348   OTHER
349       Annual events 195,831                 215,500                 224,133                 225,000                 281,732                 
350       Arts and cultural events 135,511                 121,200                 50,370                   77,072                   77,900                   
351       Recreational activities and support 5,312                     19,000                   898                        15,000                   15,000                   

TOTAL OTHER 336,654                 355,700                 275,401                 317,072                 374,632                 

352             Total expenditures 2,087,722              2,677,594              1,839,845              2,573,624              2,864,166              

353   TRANSFERS OUT

354           Total transfers out -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

355           Total appropriation 2,087,722              2,677,594              1,839,845              2,573,624              2,864,166              

356   ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                      -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 84 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE
DEBT SERVICE FUND - ARTS AND CULTURAL FACILITIES

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 450,224$          548,162$          568,947$          568,947$          649,141$             

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,577,027         1,640,000         1,137,248         1,624,000         1,658,000            
    Use tax - retail 29,804              22,800              19,177              25,000              25,500                 
    Use tax - building materials 17,897              18,900              13,628              20,000              20,400                 
    Net investment income 352                   600                   564                   600                   600                      

            Total revenue 1,625,080         1,682,300         1,170,617         1,669,600         1,704,500            

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                        -                        -                        -                        -                           

        Total transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        -                           
 
            Total funds available 2,075,304         2,230,462         1,739,564         2,238,547         2,353,641            

EXPENDITURES
    Bond interest 524,556            499,206            249,603            499,206            471,756               
    Bond principal 845,000            915,000            -                        915,000            985,000               
    Paying agent fees 200                   200                   -                        200                   200                      
    Contingency -                        5,594                -                        -                        3,044                    
          Total expenditures 1,369,756         1,420,000         249,603            1,414,406         1,460,000            

TRANSFERS OUT
   General Fund 136,601            173,500            -                        175,000            127,500               

        Total transfers out 136,601            173,500            -                        175,000            127,500               

        Total appropriation 1,506,357         1,593,500         249,603            1,589,406         1,587,500            

ENDING FUND BALANCE 568,947$          636,962$          1,489,961$       649,141$          766,141$             

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 85 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE
DEBT SERVICE FUND - PARK AND RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS

FORECASTED 2015 BUDGET AS PROJECTED
WITH 2013 ACTUALS AND 2014 ESTIMATED

2013 2014 9/30/2014 2014 2015
ACTUAL BUDGET ACTUAL ESTIMATED PROJECTED

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 597,598$          680,648$          682,980$          682,980$          776,367$            

REVENUE  
    Sales tax 1,051,984         1,094,000         758,165            1,082,000         1,105,000           
    Use tax - retail 19,881              15,300              12,785              17,000              17,300                
    Use tax - building materials 11,925              12,500              9,094                14,000              14,300                
    Net investment income 592                   800                   498                   800                   800                     

            Total revenue 1,084,382         1,122,600         780,542            1,113,800         1,137,400           

TRANSFERS IN
   General Fund -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          

        Total transfers in -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          
 
            Total funds available 1,681,980         1,803,248         1,463,522         1,796,780         1,913,767           

EXPENDITURES
    Bond interest 443,800            420,213            210,106            420,213            394,713              
    Bond principal 555,000            600,000            -                        600,000            645,000              
    Paying agent fees 200                   200                   200                   200                   200                     
    Contingency -                        4,587                -                        -                        5,087                   
          Total expenditures 999,000            1,025,000         210,306            1,020,413         1,045,000           

TRANSFERS OUT

        Total transfers out -                        -                        -                        -                        -                          

        Total appropriation 999,000            1,025,000         210,306            1,020,413         1,045,000           

ENDING FUND BALANCE 682,980$          778,248$          1,253,216$       776,367$          868,767$            

"Draft - Subject to Revision" 11/14/2014
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 86 of 201



 

 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kelly First, Community Development Director 
   Matt Archer, Chief Building Official 
 
DATE:  October 15, 2014 

FOR:   November 18, 2014 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 14-05, an ordinance adopting by reference and 
amending the 2012 International Building Code, the 2012 
International Residential Code, the 2012 International Plumbing 
Code, the 2012 International Mechanical Code, the 2012 
International Fuel Gas Code, the 2012 International Fire Code, 
the National Electrical Code (2014 Edition) and the 2009 
International Energy Conservation Code; and to provide 
penalties for code violations. (Second Reading) 

Summary 
Staff proposes adopting, by reference, the 2012 International Building Code and other 
related codes along with local amendments to the codes.  

Cost 
No direct cost to the City is anticipated other than the purchase of new building code 
books, which has been budgeted.   
 
Recommended Action 
I move to approve Ordinance 14-05, an ordinance adopting by reference and amending 
the 2012 International Building Code, the 2012 International Residential Code, the 2012 
International Plumbing Code, the 2012 International Mechanical Code, the 2012 
International Fuel Gas Code, the 2012 International Fire Code, the National Electrical 
Code (2014 Edition) and the 2009 International Energy Conservation Code; and to 
provide penalties for code violations, on second reading. 
 
Background 
The City of Lone Tree currently uses the 2009 International Code Council (ICC) Codes, 
adopted in November 2011.  The ICC updates the codes on a three-year cycle.  The 
2012 edition of the ICC codes reflects the concerted effort of code officials, industry 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 87 of 201



Mayor Gunning and City Council 
November 18, 2014 
 

 

representatives and the public. During this time, proposed code changes are debated 
by various groups who have an interest in the outcome of the proceedings. Committees 
hear the debate and vote whether or not the provision should be added to the code. 
Results of hearings are published and subject to a final vote by the Class A members of 
the ICC (officials representing public code enforcement agencies). The various 
approved changes reflect the following:  acceptance of new products on the market, 
new techniques in construction, the results of analyzing various natural catastrophes 
with a loss control perspective, as well as ever changing societal demands. 
 
The following is a brief summary of the most significant changes from the 2009 to the 
2012 codes: 
 
2012 – International Residential Code (IRC) 

• Added a floor protection requirement (see amendment below) 
• Deleted the hail map.  This allows for a roof overlay of up to 2 layers. 
• Requires ‘kick-out’ and rake flashing for new roofs. 
• Added a requirement for whole house ventilation. 

 
2012 – International Building Code (IBC) 

• New requirements for high rise buildings over 75 ft., 120 ft. and 420 ft. above fire 
department access. 

• Added a new section for ambulatory care facilities 
• Added a new section for play structures inside buildings 
• Clean up the language and scoping for live work units 
• Adoption of the 2012 IBC will bring us in line with the State and their 

requirements for licensing for medical facilities. 
 
2012 –Int’l Mechanical Code (IMC), Int’l Plumbing Code (IPC) and Int’l Fuel Gas 
Code (IFGC) 

• Require identification of manufacturer and third party certification of applicable 
reference standards on all materials 

• Added requirements for grey water recycling systems to the body of the code 
 
A more detailed summary of all the various changes between the 2009 and the 2012 
versions is available upon request. 
 

Proposed Local Amendments 
It is common for a jurisdiction to adopt local amendments to the codes to address local 
concerns.  Our goal is to limit the number of amendments to the most essential issues.  
The most significant amendments proposed include: 

1. Amending Requiring Carbon Monoxide Detectors in the Residential Code – 
The 2012 IRC requires carbon monoxide detectors in one- and two-family 
dwellings.  Adopted in 2009, the Colorado Revised Statutes, Title 38, Article 45 
requires carbon monoxide detectors for certain single family homes and multi-

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 88 of 201



Mayor Gunning and City Council 
November 18, 2014 
 

 

family units.  Staff is proposing blending the two requirements into one document 
that is easier to follow and administer. 

2. Deleting the Requirement of Residential Fire Sprinklers – While fire 
sprinklers can react much quicker than humans and prevent significant spread of 
fire prior to the fire department’s arrival, staff and South Metro Fire and Rescue 
understand that more work needs to be completed before the State of Colorado 
can effectively administer the requirements of residential sprinkler installation in 
one- and two-family dwellings (IRC).  Just as the City removed the requirement in 
the 2009 IRC, staff is recommending the same for the 2012 version, with a 
requirement for all new construction of dwelling units to submit a “Lone Tree 
Sprinkler Option” Form. A draft form is attached, for example. 
 
Staff has met with representatives of South Metro Fire and Rescue and the 
Home Builders Association and this change reflects their comments. Both entities 
support this measure. These groups have been invited to attend the October 7th 
Study Session. 

3. Fire-Rated Walls in Townhouses and Two-Family Dwellings – The proposed 
amendment allows for and regulates fire-rated walls in townhouses and two-
family dwellings.  The 2012 IRC does not contain this provision because it was 
anticipated that the building would be protected by a fire sprinkler system. Since 
we are not adopting the provision for sprinklers at this time, it is important to keep 
this requirement (the requirement exists in the 2006 Edition, IRC). 

4. Postponing Fire Protection of Floors – Staff recommended postponement of 
this requirement until January 1, 2015 in the previous study session. However, 
now with a target date of January 1, 2015 for adoption, a delay is no longer 
needed. Century Homes and Berkeley Homes will have the entirety of their 
current project submitted for permitting before this new code becomes a 
requirement.  

Floor protection is a result of building materials changing over time, increased fire 
loading in a home, and fire fighter safety.  The intent of protecting floors is to 
provide an extended time (roughly 20 minutes) for the occupants to evacuate and 
for the fire department to enter the building to perform a rescue. The requirement 
for floor protection will add additional cost to the construction of a home and the 
delayed implementation was intended to give our customers the necessary time 
to price, budget and comply with the new requirement in the 2012 IRC. 

5. Energy Conservation - Staff is recommending the City remain on the 2009 
Energy Conservation Code (IECC) and postpone adoption of the 2012 version.  
This is consistent with many, but not all jurisdictions in the Denver Metro area. 

6. Electrical Code – Staff is recommending the adoption of the 2014 National 
Electrical Code (NEC) to match the adoption of the State wide electrical code.  
No new amendments are proposed. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 89 of 201



Mayor Gunning and City Council 
November 18, 2014 
 

 

 

Building Permit and Plan Review Fees 

No changes are proposed to the fee schedule. 

Building permit fees, plan review fees, and use taxes are based on the value of a 
building project.  The permit applicant is required to state the value of the work on the 
permit application.  The codes allow for the Building Official or his designee to 
determine whether or not the stated value is reasonable.  Typically, building 
departments use “cost per square foot multipliers” to help make this determination.  The 
“multipliers” can be found in various published documents.  Updated valuation tables 
are prepared by the International Code Council periodically to provide this resource to 
building departments. 

Codes in Other Communities 

The adoption of the 2012 ICC Codes will bring the City of Lone Tree into conformance 
with other jurisdictions throughout Colorado.  Having codes that are generally consistent 
with other jurisdictions results in predictability for the building industry and maintains the 
City’s competitive position.  Almost every city and town in Colorado, along with several 
State agencies, has adopted some version of the ICC codes.  Nearby communities that 
have adopted the 2012 Codes include: 
 

• Arapahoe County 
• Castle Rock, City of 
• Douglas County 
• Golden, City of 
• Greenwood Village, City of 

• Jefferson County 
• Longmont, City of 
• Parker, Town of 
• Thornton, City of 

 
 
Jurisdictions planning to adopt the 2015 slate of codes next year include: 

• Centennial, City of  
• Parker, Town of  

 

Public Notice and Outreach 

In addition to public notice and publishing requirements for an ordinance, staff will notify 
contractors who do business in Lone Tree of the proposed changes.  We have notified the 
Denver Metropolitan Home Builders Association and the Denver Metro Building Owners 
and Managers Association.  

 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 90 of 201



 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
Series of 2014                                                                                               Ordinance No. 14-05 

 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING BY REFERENCE AND AMENDING THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE, THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FUEL GAS 
CODE, THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE, THE NATIONAL ELECTRICAL 
CODE (2014 EDITION) AND THE 2009 INTERNATIONAL ENERGY 
CONSERVATION CODE; AND TO PROVIDE PENALTIES FOR CODE VIOLATIONS. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE,  
COLORADO: 
 

ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 

 
The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under the Lone 

Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a Municipal Code (the 
“Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to the Charter, the Municipal 
Code and the authority given home rule cities, the City may adopt and amend Ordinances.  

 

ARTICLE 2 – DECLARATIONS OF POLICY 

A. The City Council recognizes the need for modern, comprehensive Building Codes 
addressing the standards for the design and installation of building and related 
systems throughout the City that adequately protect the public health, safety and 
welfare. 

B. The International Building Code, 2012 Edition, the International Residential 
Code, 2012 Edition, the International Mechanical Code, 2012 Edition, the 
International Plumbing Code, 2012 Edition, the International Fuel Gas Code, 
2012 Edition, and the International  Fire Code, 2012 Edition, and all publications 
of the International Code Council, Inc., as well as the National Electrical Code, 
2014 Edition, a publication of the National Fire Protection Association, are 
recognized internationally by building professionals for their performance and 
prescriptive code requirements. More than just incorporating existing codes, they 
are designed to provide a comprehensive set of regulations for building and 
related systems that provide safety standards that do not unnecessarily increase 
construction costs, or restrict or give preferential treatment to the use of new 
materials, products or methods of construction. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 91 of 201



 

 

C. These Codes are fully compatible with each other and are part of an integrated 
plan for building construction and related standards for the industry. 

D. The City Council wishes to update and improve the standards for building 
construction and related systems in the City by adopting by reference these 
Codes, along with amendments reflecting the unique circumstances of the City, 
and to provide penalties for violations. 

 
ARTICLE 3 – SAFETY CLAUSE 

 
 The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of 
health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare. 
 
 
ARTICLE 4 – REPEAL AND ADOPTION 
 

Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code, Building Regulations, is hereby repealed in its 
entirety and re-adopted as attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A. 

 

ARTICLE 5 - PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE 

 The provisions of this Ordinance shall go into effect on January 1, 2015.  

 
ARTICLE 6 – CAUSES OF ACTION RETAINED 
 
 Nothing in this Ordinance or in the Building Regulations hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or 
liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or 
ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, 
impaired or affected by this Ordinance. 
 
 
ARTICLE 7 – SEVERABILITY 

 
 If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or 

circumstance, is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of 
such part, provision, or application shall not affect any of the remaining parts, provisions or 
applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision, part or 
application, and to this end the provisions and parts of this Ordinance are declared to be 
severable. 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 92 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE 8 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following publication after the first 
reading if no changes are made on second reading, or twenty (20) days after publication 
following second reading if changes are made upon second reading.  

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON OCTOBER 21, 2014. 
 
PUBLISHED IN THE DOUGLAS COUNTY NEWS PRESS ON OCTOBER 30, 2014, 
LEGAL NOTICE NO. 926345. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED WITH NO CHANGES ON SECOND READING ON 
NOVEMBER 18, 2014, TO BECOME EFFECTIVE ON JANUARY 1, 2015. 

 
 
  
      CITY OF LONE TREE: 
 
 
 
             

      James D. Gunning, Mayor 
  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
       
 
   
   
       (S E A L) 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 93 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 94 of 201



 

 

CHAPTER 18 

Building Regulations 

Article I General Provisions 
Sec. 18-1-10 Purpose 
Sec. 18-1-20 Valuation of work 
Sec. 18-1-30 Fees 
Sec. 18-1-40 USE Tax 
Sec. 18-1-50 Refunds 
Sec. 18-1-60 Noise mitigation 
Sec. 18-1-70 Site sanitation 
Sec. 18-1-80 Appeals 
Sec. 18-1-90 Penalties 

Article II Building Code 
Sec. 18-2-10 Title 
Sec. 18-2-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-2-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-2-40 Amendments 

Article III Residential Code 
Sec. 18-3-10 Title 
Sec. 18-3-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-3-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-3-40 Amendments 

Article IV Mechanical Code 
Sec. 18-4-10 Title 
Sec. 18-4-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-4-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-4-40 Amendments 

Article V Plumbing Code 
Sec. 18-5-10 Title 
Sec. 18-5-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-5-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-5-40 Amendments 

Article VI Fuel Gas Code 
Sec. 18-6-10 Title 
Sec. 18-6-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-6-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-6-40 Amendments 

Article VII Electrical Code 
Sec. 18-7-10 Title 
Sec. 18-7-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-7-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-7-40 Amendments 

Article VIII Fire Code 
Sec. 18-9-10 Title 
Sec. 18-9-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-9-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-9-40 Amendments 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 95 of 201



 

 

 

Article IX Energy Conservation Code 
Sec. 18-10-10 Title 
Sec. 18-10-20 Adoption by reference 
Sec. 18-10-30 Definition 
Sec. 18-10-40 Amendments 

Article X Reserved 
 

Article XI Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces 
Sec. 18-11-10 Adoption of Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces 
Sec. 18-11-20 Definitions 
Sec. 18-11-30 Penalty for violation 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 96 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE I 

General Provisions 

Sec. 18-1-10. Purpose. 

The purpose of the codes adopted herein is to provide standards for and to regulate the materials, 
design and construction methods for the planning, design and construction of buildings and other 
improvements and to provide a comprehensive fire code.  The codes adopted herein contain 
considerable data, requirements, procedures and technical information designed to ensure the public 
health, safety and welfare 

Sec. 18-1-20.  Valuation of work. 

The determination of value or valuation shall be established by the Building Official utilizing the 
most recent building valuation data printed in the Building Safety Journal, published by the 
International Code Council. When an applicant provides an estimated project valuation, the valuation 
shall include the total value of work, including materials and labor, for which the permit is being 
issued, such as electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing equipment and permanent systems. If, in the 
opinion of the Building Official, the valuation is underestimated on the application, the permit shall be 
denied, unless the applicant can show detailed estimates to meet the approval of the Building Official. 
Final building permit valuation shall be set by the Building Official. 

 
Sec. 18-1-30. Fees. 

(1)    Payment of fees. 
A permit shall not be valid until the fees, prescribed by law, have been paid; nor shall an 

amendment to a permit be issued until the additional fee, if any, has been paid. 
 

(2) Fee schedule. 
Fees for each permit shall be calculated and applied in accordance with the City of Lone Tree 

Administrative Fee Schedule. 
 
(3)    Related fees. 

The payment of the fee for the construction, alteration, removal or demolition for work done in 
connection to, or concurrently with the work authorized by a building permit, shall not relieve the 
applicant or holder of the permit from the payment of other fees that are prescribed by law. 

 
(4) Elevator/escalator inspection fee.   

An annual inspection fee in accordance with the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee 
Schedule shall be paid for each separate elevator/escalator installed in the city.  This fee shall 
cover annual safety inspections. Yearly notice of the fee shall be given to each conveyance owner 
by the building division. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 97 of 201



 

 

Sec. 18-1-40.    Use tax.   

The use tax for materials used in construction will be collected by the City at the time of the 
issuance of the permit, pursuant to Chapter 4 of the Lone Tree Municipal Code. 

 
Sec. 18-1-50.  Refunds. 

(1)   The Building Official may authorize the refunding of fees for the following: 
 

a. The full amount of any fee erroneously paid or collected. 
  

b. Not more than 80% of the permit fee paid when no work has been done under a permit issued 
in accordance with this Chapter. 

  
c. Not more than 80% of the plan review fee paid when an application for a permit for which a 

plan review fee has been paid is withdrawn or canceled before any plan review effort has 
been expended. 

  
(2) The Building Official shall not authorize a refund of any fee paid later than 180 days after the date 

of fee payment, except upon written application filed by the original permittee. 
 
Sec. 18-1-60. Noise mitigation. 

(1)   Interior Noise Level.  
All new residential structures, and the alteration or repair of existing structures, that are located 

in the Centennial Airport Overlay Area, requiring noise mitigation, shall comply with Table 18-1-
60. 

 

Exception: 

An acoustical engineer, registered with the State of Colorado, may certify that construction 
practices and/or materials of the structure will achieve an interior noise level of DNL 45 dBA.  
The acoustical professional shall submit documentation of the proposed measures to the 
Building Official before permitting. 

 
Field testing to show compliance with minimum STC ratings listed in Table 18-1-60, shall be 
performed and reported in accordance with ASTM E966 (current version at time of testing), 
‘Standard Guide for Field Measurements of Airborne Sound Insulation of Building Facades and 
Facade Elements’.   Field measured outdoor to indoor transmission loss (OITL) ratings shall be 
no more than 5-points less than the minimum STC ratings listed in Table 18-1-60. 

 
(2)   Penetrations. 

All membrane or through penetrations in the construction assemblies for piping, electrical 
devices, recessed cabinets, bathtubs, soffits, heating, combustion, ventilation or exhaust ducts shall 
be sealed, lined, insulated or otherwise treated to maintain the required ratings. 

 

Table 18-1-60 
Minimum Sound Transmission Class (STC)a 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 98 of 201



 

 

a.  The STC of construction assemblies shall be determined by a certified sound testing laboratory. 
 
Sec. 18-1-70.     Site sanitation.    

 
(1)    Sanitation facilities required. 

Every building site during construction, remodeling or demolition activities, shall be furnished 
with approved sanitation facilities for workers pursuant to the International Plumbing Code and an 
appropriate enclosure or other means approved by the City to contain trash and debris.  
 

(2)    Location. 
Sanitary facilities and approved trash enclosures shall be located within three hundred (300) 

feet of the building site. Sanitary facilities and trash enclosures shall not be located within the 
public right-of-way without the approval of the Public Works Department.  

 

Sec. 18-1-80. Appeals  

(1)    Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 
The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or 

determinations made by the building official relative to the application and interpretation of this 
Chapter, pursuant to Chapter 2, Article V of the Municipal Code. 

 
(2) Application. 
     An application for appeal shall be filed on a form obtained from the building official within 20 

days after a notice of an order, decision or determination is served. 
 

  (3) Notice of meeting. 
 The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall set a reasonable time for hearing the appeal, and the Director 
of Community Development shall provide notice to the parties. 

 
  (4) Board Decision. 

    The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall modify or reverse the decision of the building 
official by a concurring vote of four of its members. The building official shall take immediate 
action in accordance with the decision of the board. 

 

 Sec. 18-1-90. Penalties. 

Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this Article or any code 
incorporated herein shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and any such person, firm or corporation 
shall be deemed guilty of a separate offense for each and every day or portion thereof during which 
any violation is committed, continued or permitted, and upon conviction of any such violations, such 
person, firm or corporation shall be punished by a fine of not more than one thousand dollars 
($1,000.00) or by imprisonment for not more than one (1) year, or by both such fine and 
imprisonment. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plans and specifications shall not be 

A-weighted DNL 
Wall, Floor and Roof 

Assemblies 
Window and Door 

Assemblies 

> 75 50 42 

> 70 to 75 45 37 

> 65 to 70 39 28 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 99 of 201



 

 

deemed or construed to be a permit for or an approval of, any violation of any provisions of the codes 
adopted herein.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 100 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE II 

Building Code 
 

Sec. 18-2-10. Title. 

     This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Building Code.  

Sec. 18-2-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Building Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code Council, 
Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by reference and 
incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the building code of the City.  
Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the code are 
adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Building Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be 
available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the 
City.   

Sec. 18-2-30. Definition. 

     Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-2-40. Amendments. 

The International Building Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

103.2  Appointment.  The Building Official for the City, as designated by the City Manager, is 
hereby appointed the Building Official under this code. 

(2)  A new Section 105.3(8) is added to read as follows: 
 

8.  Include a soils test of the building site prepared by a professional engineer registered by 
the State of Colorado to be submitted with the application for a building permit. A professional 
engineer registered by the State of Colorado shall design the foundation in accordance with the 
Soils Report. When the building site is located in a hillside area, or in the opinion of the Building 
Official, is located in an area subject to geological hazards or steep slopes, the Building Official 
may require an engineering geologist, working within their field of expertise, to submit specific 
recommendations regarding the building site and the proposed location and design. Such 
recommendations shall include, but are not limited to, the relationships of site grading, structural 
integrity, site vegetation characteristics (or potential), location of septic drain fields, and 
protection of adjacent property. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 101 of 201



 

 

 

(3)  A new Section 105.3.1.1 is added to read as follows: 
 

105.3.1.1 Election to proceed under previous code.  Within the first 180 days following the 
adoption of this code, an applicant under subsection 105.3 may elect to, and if approved by the 
Building Official, proceed under the set of codes previously adopted and in effect on December 1, 
2011; provided, however, that said election must be made certain and in writing, and under no 
circumstances shall an applicant be permitted to proceed partially under one set of codes and 
partially under the other. 

 
(4) Section 109, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

109.1 Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(5)  Section 110.3.1 is amended by adding a new sentence to the end of the paragraph to read as 
follows:  

Inspections shall be performed by a Colorado licensed professional engineer.  A stamped 
written report shall be provided to the Building Official of the results for these inspections by a 
Colorado licensed professional engineer.  

 
(6) Section 113, Board of appeals, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

 113.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 

113.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 
the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 
proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code. 

(7) Section 1608.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

1608.2 Ground snow loads.  The ground snow load shall be a minimum 30 pounds per square 
foot.  

  
(8) Section 1609.3 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

1609.3 Basic wind speed.  
a) Category I buildings and structures the ultimate design wind speed (Vult) shall be 105 

miles per hour. 
b) Category II buildings and structures the ultimate design wind speed (Vult) shall be 115 

miles per hour. 
c) Category III and IV buildings and structures the ultimate design wind speed (Vult) shall be 

120 miles per hour. 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 102 of 201



 

 

(9) Section 1609.4.3 is amended by adding to the sentence at the end of the paragraph to read as 
follows: 

, but the design wind exposure for the City of Lone Tree shall not be less than Exposure C. 

(10) Section 1809.5 is amended by adding a new sentence to the beginning of the paragraph to read as 
follows: 

The frost depth for all areas in the City of Lone Tree shall be a minimum of 36 inches below 
the finish grade. 
 

(11) Section 3412.2 the first sentence of the paragraph is deleted and replaced by the following: 

Structures existing prior to the adoption and implementation of this code, in which there is 
work involving additions, alterations or changes of occupancy shall be made to comply with the 
requirements of this section or the provisions of Sections 3403 through 3409. 

 
(12) Section 114.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

114.4 Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or repairs a 
building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the 
building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be 
guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine 
and imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, 
including attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate 
offense. 

(13) Section 115.3 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

115.3  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue 
any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 103 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE III 

Residential Code 
 

Sec. 18-3-10. Title. 

This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Residential Code. 

Sec. 18-3-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Residential Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by 
reference and incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the residential code 
of the City.  Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the 
code are adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Residential Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be 
available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the 
City.   

Sec. 18-3-30. Definition. 

Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City. 

Sec. 18-3-40. Amendments. 

The International Residential Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section R103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

"R103.2  Appointment.  The Building Official for the City, as designated by the City 
Manager, is hereby appointed the Building Official under this code." 

(2)  A new Section R104.2.1 is added to read as follows: 
 

R104.2.1 Election to proceed under previous code.  Within the first 180 days following the 
adoption of this code, an applicant under subsection 105.3 may elect to, and if approved by the 
Building Official, proceed under the set of codes previously adopted and in effect on December 1, 
2011; provided, however, that said election must be made certain and in writing, and under no 
circumstances shall an applicant be permitted to proceed partially under one set of codes and 
partially under the other. 

 
(3)  Section R105.2(10) is deleted and replaced by the following: 

 
10. The replacement or repair of roofing less than one square (100 square feet). 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 104 of 201



 

 

 
(4) A new Section 105.3(8) is added to read as follows: 

 
 8.  Include a soils test of the building site prepared by a professional engineer registered by 

the State of Colorado to be submitted with the application for a building permit. A professional 
engineer registered by the State of Colorado shall design the foundation in accordance with the 
Soils Report. When the building site is located in a hillside area, or in the opinion of the Building 
Official, is located in an area subject to geological hazards or steep slopes, the Building Official 
may require an engineering geologist, working within their field of expertise, to submit specific 
recommendations regarding the building site and the proposed location and design. Such 
recommendations shall include, but are not limited to, the relationships of site grading, structural 
integrity, site vegetation characteristics (or potential), location of septic drain fields, and 
protection of adjacent property. 

(5)   Section 108, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

R108.1 Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(6)   Section R109.1.1 is amended by adding a new sentence to the end of the paragraph to read as 
follows:  

Inspections shall be performed by a Colorado licensed professional engineer or architect that is 
registered in the State of Colorado.  A stamped written report shall be provided to the Building 
Official of the results for these inspections by a Colorado licensed professional engineer or 
architect that is registered in the State of Colorado. 

 
(7) Section 112, Board of appeals, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

 112.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 

112.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 
the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 
proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(8) Table R301.2(1) is amended to read as follows: 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 105 of 201



 

 

"TABLE R301.2(1) 
CLIMATIC AND GEOGRAPHIC DESIGN CRITERIA 

 

GROUND SNOW LOAD: 30 

WIND SPEED (mph-3 sec. gust): 90 mph 
Exposure  

C 

SEISMIC DESIGN CATEGORY: B 

SUBJECT TO DAMAGE FROM:  

Weathering Severe 

Frost line depth 36" 

Termite Slight to 
Moderate 

WINTER DESIGN TEMP: -3°F 

ICE BARRIER UNDERLAYMENT REQUIRED: No 

FLOOD HAZARDS: Current 
FEMA 
FIRM 
Maps 

AIR FREEZING INDEX: 867 

ANNUAL MEAN TEMP: 48.1°F" 

 
(9) The Exception in Section R302.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

 Exception:  A common 2-hour fire-resistance-rated wall is permitted for townhouses if such 
walls do not contain plumbing or mechanical equipment, ducts or vents in the cavity of the 
common wall.  Electrical installations shall be installed in accordance with NFPA 70.  
Penetrations of electrical outlet boxes shall be in accordance with Section 302.4. 

(10) Section R313, Automatic Fire Sprinkler System, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the 
following: 

SECTION R313 
AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEMS 

   
  R313.1  Townhouse automatic fire sprinkler system.  Although not required, if an 
automatic residential fire sprinkler system for a townhouse is desired, it shall be designed and installed in 
accordance with Section P2904.  
  
    

R313.2  One- or two-family dwelling automatic fire sprinkler system. Although not 
required, if an automatic residential fire sprinkler system for a one- or two-family dwelling is desired, it 
shall be designed and installed in accordance with Section P2904 or NFPA 13D. 

 

(11) Section R315 is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 106 of 201



 

 

R315.1 Carbon monoxide alarms.  All dwellings with an attached garage or a fuel-fired 
appliance shall be provided with a carbon monoxide alarm.  All single-station carbon monoxide 
alarms shall be listed as complying with UL 2034 and shall be installed in accordance with this 
code and the manufacturer's installation instructions. 

  
R315.2 Alterations, repairs and additions.  When alterations, repairs or additions requiring a 

permit for interior work occur, the individual dwelling unit shall be equipped with carbon 
monoxide alarms located as required for new dwellings. 

  
Exception: 

Work involving the exterior surfaces of dwellings, such as the replacement of roofing or 
siding, or the addition of a porch or deck, are exempt from the requirements of this Section. 

  
R315.3 Location.  Carbon monoxide alarms shall be installed outside each separate sleeping 

area within fifteen (15) feet of a bedroom’s entrance. 
 
R315.4 Interconnection. When more than one carbon monoxide alarm is required to be 

installed within an individual dwelling unit, the alarm devices shall be interconnected in such a 
manner that the actuation of one alarm will activate all of the alarms in the individual unit. 

 
Exception: 

Interconnection of carbon monoxide alarms in existing areas shall not be required where the 
alterations or repairs do not result in the removal of interior wall or ceiling finishes exposing the 
structure, unless there is an attic, crawl space or basement available which could provide access 
for interconnection without the removal of interior finishes. 

 
R315.5 Power source.  Carbon monoxide alarms shall be supplied from two separate power 

sources.  The primary power shall be from the building wiring when such wiring is served from a 
commercial source, and when primary power is interrupted shall receive power from a battery. 
Wiring shall be permanent and without a disconnecting switch other than those required for 
overcurrent protection.  

 
Exceptions: 
1. Carbon monoxide alarms shall be permitted to be battery operated when installed in 

buildings without commercial power.  Battery-powered alarms shall be attached to the wall 
or ceiling in accordance with the manufacturer’s installation instructions. 

  
2. Hard-wiring of carbon monoxide alarms in existing areas shall not be required where the 

alterations or repairs do not result in the removal of interior wall or ceiling finishes exposing 
the structure, unless there is an attic, crawl space or basement available which could provide 
access for hard-wiring without the removal of interior finishes. 

 
(12) Section R905.7.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

R905.7.4 Material standards.  Wood shingles shall have a minimum class C rating, be of 
naturally durable wood and comply with the requirements of Table R905.7.4. 

(13)  Section R905.8.5 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

R905.8.5 Material standards.  Wood shakes shall have a minimum class C rating and comply 
with the requirements of Table R905.8.5. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 107 of 201



 

 

(14) Sections N1101 through N1105 are deleted in their entirety and replaced with a new section 
N1101 to read as follows: 

Section 1101 
General 

 
N1101.1 Scope.  This chapter regulates the energy efficiency for the design and construction 

of buildings regulated by this code. 
 

N1101.2 Criteria.  Buildings shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the 2009 
edition of the International Energy Conservation Code (IECC).  The climate zone for the City of 
Lone Tree is established as Zone 5B. 

 
(15) Section G2406.2(3) and (4), Prohibited locations, are deleted. 

(16) Sections G2417.4 and G2417.4.1 are deleted and replaced by the following: 

G2417.4.1 (406.4.1)  Test pressure. The test pressure to be used shall be 20 psi (137.8 kPa) 
gauge pressure.  For pipe conveying gas at or exceeding a 14 inch (356 mm) water column, the 
test pressure shall be 60 psi (413.4 kPa) gauge pressure. 

(17) Section G2425.8(7), Appliances not required to be vented, is deleted. 

(18) Section G2445, Unvented room heaters, is deleted in its entirety. 

(19) Chapters 34 through 43 (Part VIII – Electrical) are deleted in their entirety and replaced by a new 
chapter 34 General Requirements to read as follows: 

Chapter 34 
General Requirements 

 
Section E3401 

General 
 

E3401.1 Scope.  This chapter governs all electrical components, equipment and systems used 
in buildings and structures regulated by this code. 

 
E3401.2 Criteria.  All electrical components, equipment and systems shall be designed and 

constructed in accordance with the provisions of NFPA 70 (National Electric Code, NEC), as 
adopted and amended by the City of Lone Tree. 

 
(20) The provisions of Appendix G, Swimming Pools, Spas and Hot Tubs, are hereby adopted. 

(a) Section AG 105.2 of Appendix G, Outdoor Swimming Pool, Subsection No. 9 is deleted. 

(21) Section R113.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

R113.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or repairs a 
building or structure in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the 
building official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 108 of 201



 

 

guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine 
and imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, 
including attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate 
offense. 

(22) Section R114.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

R114.2  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue 
any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 109 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE IV 

Mechanical Code 
 

Sec. 18-4-10. Title. 

 This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Mechanical Code.   

Sec. 18-4-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Mechanical Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code 
Council, Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by 
reference and incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the mechanical 
code of the City.  Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to 
the code are adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Mechanical Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be 
available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the 
City.   

Sec. 18-4-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-4-40. Amendments. 

The International Mechanical Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

103.2  Appointment.  The building official for the City, as designated by the City Manager, is 
hereby appointed the code official under this code. 

(2) Section 106.5, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

106.5  Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

 (3) Section 109, Means of appeal, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

109.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 

109.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 
the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 110 of 201



 

 

proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code. 

(4) Section 108.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

  108.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or repairs 
mechanical work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the code 
official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and 
imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

(5) The last sentence of Section 108.5 is deleted and a new Section 108.5.1 is added to read as 
follows: 

 108.5.1  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to 
continue any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that 
person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 111 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE V 

Plumbing Code 
 

Sec. 18-5-10. Title. 

This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Plumbing Code.   

Sec. 18-5-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Plumbing Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code Council, 
Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by reference and 
incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the plumbing code of the City.  
Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the code are 
adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Plumbing Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be 
available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the 
City.   

Sec. 18-5-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-5-40. Amendments. 

The International Plumbing Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

103.2  Appointment.  The building official for the City, as designated by the City Manager, is 
hereby appointed the code official under this code. 

(2) Section 106.6, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

106.6  Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(3) Section 109, Means of appeal, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

 109.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 

 

109.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 112 of 201



 

 

the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 
proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code.   

(4) Section 305.4.1, Sewer depth, is deleted.  

(5) Section 903.1 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

903.1  Roof extension.  All open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated at 
least twelve (12) inches above the roof, except that where a roof is to be used for any purpose 
other than weather protection, the vent extension shall be run at least 7 feet above the roof. 

(6) Section 108.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

108.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or repairs 
plumbing work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the code 
official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and 
imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

(7) The last sentence of Section 108.5 is deleted and a new Section 108.5.1 is added to read as 
follows: 

108.5.1  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue 
any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 113 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE VI 

Fuel Gas Code 
 

Sec. 18-6-10. Title. 

This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Fuel Gas Code   

Sec. 18-6-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code Council, 
Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by reference and 
incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the fuel gas code of the City.  
Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the code are 
adopted only to the extent specified. 

 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be 
available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the 
City.   

Sec. 18-6-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-6-40. Amendments. 

The International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

103.2  Appointment.  The building official for the City, as designated by the City Manager, is 
hereby appointed the code official under this code. 

    (2)    Section 106.6, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

106.6  Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(3) Section 109, Means of appeal, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

109.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 114 of 201



 

 

109.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 
the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 
proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code. 

(4) Section 303.3(3) and (4), Prohibited locations, are deleted.   

(5) Section 501.8(8), Equipment not required to be vented, is deleted.   

(6) Sections 406.4 and 406.4.1 are deleted and replaced by the following: 

406.4.1  Test pressure. The test pressure to be used shall be 20 psi (137.8 kPa) gauge 
pressure.  For pipe conveying gas at or exceeding a 14 inch (356 mm) water column, the test 
pressure shall be 60 psi (413.4 kPa) gauge pressure. 

(7) Section 621, Unvented room heaters, is deleted in its entirety.   

(6) Section 108.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

108.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or repairs 
work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the code official, or of a 
permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor 
and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) 
or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  In 
addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees.  Each 
day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

(8) The last sentence of Section 108.5 is deleted and a new Section 108.5.1 is added to read as 
follows: 

108.5.1  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue 
any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is 
directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 115 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE VII 

Electrical Code 
 

Sec. 18-7-10. Title. 

This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Electrical Code.   

Sec. 18-7-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The National Electrical Code, 2014 Edition, as published by the National Fire Protection 
Association, One Batterymarch Park, Quincy, MA 02169, is hereby adopted by reference and 
incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the electrical code of the City.  
Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the code are 
adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the National Electrical Code, 2014 Edition, as amended by this Article, certified 
to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City Clerk and 
may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be available for 
sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the City.   

Sec. 18-7-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-7-40. Amendments. 

The National Electrical Code, 2014 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 210.52(B)(3),  Kitchen Receptacle Requirements, is amended by adding a new sentence 
to the end of the paragraph to read as follows: 

There shall be no more than four (4) outlet openings on a residential kitchen small appliance 
branch circuit. 

(2) Section 220.14(I), Receptacle Outlets, is amended by adding a new sentence to the end of the 
paragraph to read as follows: 

For dwellings and general purpose outlets, the number of outlets per circuit shall not exceed 
ten (10) on a 15-ampere circuit or thirteen (13) on a 20-ampere circuit. 

 

 

 

(3) The provisions of Appendix K from the 2012 International Building Code (IBC), Administrative 
Provisions, are hereby adopted. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 116 of 201



 

 

(a)  Appendix K is amended by the addition of a new Section K103.3, to read as follows: 

K103.3  Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems 
or alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in 
accordance with the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(b) Appendix K is amended by the addition of a new Sections K112, Means of appeal, to read as 
follows: 

K112.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals 

K112.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim 
that the true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted thereunder have been incorrectly 
interpreted, the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of 
construction is proposed.  The board shall have no authority to waive requirements of this 
code. 

 (c) Appendix K is amended by the addition of a new Section K111.8, to read as follows: 

K111.8  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters or 
repairs work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the code 
official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty 
of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one 
thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year or by both such 
fine and imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, 
including attorney's fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate 
offense. 

(d)   Appendix K is amended by the addition of a new Section K111.9, to read as follows: 

K111.9  Unlawful continuance.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to 
continue any work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that 
person is directed to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 117 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

FIRE CODE 

Sec. 18-9-10. Title. 

This Article shall be known as the Lone Tree Fire Code.   

Sec. 18-9-20. Adoption by reference. 

(1) The International Fire Code, 2012 Edition, as published by the International Code Council, Inc., 
4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478, is hereby adopted by reference and 
incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein as the fire code of the City.  Except 
as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in its entirety. Appendices to the code are adopted 
only to the extent specified. 

(2) One (1) copy of the International Fire Code, 2012 Edition, as amended by this Article, certified to 
be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City Clerk and 
may be inspected by any interested person between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and amended, shall be available for 
sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the cost to the City. 

Sec. 18-9-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means the City of Lone Tree and includes all areas within the 
corporate limits of the City and any area annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-9-40. Amendments. 

The International Fire Code, 2012 Edition, shall be amended as follows: 

(1) The following Appendices are hereby adopted as part of this code:   

 Appendix B, Fire-Flow Requirements for Buildings. 

 Appendix C, Fire Hydrant Locations and Distribution. 

(2) Section 103.1 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

  103.1  General.  The South Metro Fire Rescue Authority is hereby designated as the 
department of fire prevention within the jurisdiction of the City under the direction of the fire 
code official.  The function of the department shall be the implementation, administration and 
enforcement of the provisions of this code. 

(3) Section 103.2 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

  103.2  Appointment.  The Chief of the South Metro Fire Rescue Authority or a designee 
is hereby appointed as the fire code official for the department of fire prevention. 

 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 118 of 201



 

 

(4) Section 108.1 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

108.1  Board of appeals established.  In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or 
determinations made by the fire code official relative to the application and interpretation of this 
code, there shall be created a Regional Fire Code Board of Appeals by the entry of various fire 
districts into an intergovernmental agreement ("IGA").  The board of appeals shall be appointed 
through the operation of the IGA.  The fire code official shall be an ex officio member of said board 
but shall have no vote on any matter before the board.  The board shall adopt rules of procedure for 
conducting its business, and shall render all decisions and findings in writing to the appellant with a 
duplicate copy to the fire code official. 

(5) Section 507.3 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

507.3  Fire flow.  Fire flow requirements for buildings or portions of buildings and facilities shall 
be determined in accordance with Appendix B or by an approved method. 

(6) Section 507.5 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

507.5  Fire hydrant systems.  Fire hydrant systems shall comply with Sections 507.5.1 through 
507.5.6 and Appendix C. 

(7) Section 1103.7.6(3)  Group R-2, is amended to read as follows: 

3.  A fire alarm system is not required in buildings that do not have interior corridors serving 
dwelling units, provided that dwelling units either have a means of egress door opening directly to an 
exterior exit access that leads directly to the exits or are served by open-ended corridors designed in 
accordance with Section 1026.6, Exception 4. 

(8) Section 5601.1.3 Fireworks, is deleted and replaced by the following: 

5601.1.3  Fireworks.  The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks 
are prohibited. 

Exceptions: 
1.  The use of fireworks for display as allowed in Section 5608. 
2.  The possession, storage, sale, handling and use of permissible fireworks as defined by Section 

12-28-101, C.R.S. 

(9) Section 5704.2.9.6.1 Locations where above-ground tanks are prohibited, is deleted in its entirety.  

(10) Section 5706.2.4.4 Locations where above-ground tanks are prohibited, is deleted in its entirety. 

(11) Section 5806.2 Limitations, is deleted in its entirety. 

(12) Section 6104.2 Maximum capacity within established limits, is deleted in its entirety. 

(13) Section 109.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

109.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters, repairs or 
does work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code 
official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 119 of 201



 

 

misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and 
imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

(14) Section 111.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

  111.4  Failure to comply.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue any 
work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed 
to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 120 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE IX 

Energy Conservation Code 
 

Sec. 18-10-10. Title. 

The provisions of this Article shall be known and cited as the Lone Tree Energy Conservation 
Code.   

Sec. 18-10-20.  Adoption by reference. 

(1) The 2009 International Energy Conservation Code, as amended herein, published by the 
International Code Council Inc., 4051 W. Flossmoor Road, Country Club Hills, IL 60478-5795, 
is hereby adopted by reference and incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth herein, 
as the energy conservation code of the City. Except as otherwise provided, this code is adopted in 
its entirety. Appendices to the code are adopted only to the extent specified. 

(2) Copies of the 2009 International Energy Conservation Code, including the amendments herein, 
certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall be on file in the office of the City 
Clerk and Chief Building Official and may be inspected by any interested person between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as 
adopted and amended, shall be available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a 
price reflecting the cost to the City.   

Sec. 18-10-30. Definition. 

 Jurisdiction, as used in this code, means within the corporate limits of the City and any area 
annexed to the City.   

Sec. 18-10-40. Amendments. 

The 2009 International Energy Conservation Code shall be amended as follows: 

(1) Section 302.1, reference to "72°F (22°C)" is deleted and replaced by "70°F (21°C)." 

(2) Section 502.4.7 is amended to add new Exceptions as follows: 

7.  Doors protected with an engineered air curtain in compliance with ANSI 220. 

(3) Section 107, Fees, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

107.1  Fees.  For buildings, structures, electrical, gas, mechanical, plumbing systems or 
alterations requiring a permit, a fee for each permit shall be paid as required, in accordance with 
the City of Lone Tree Administrative Fee Schedule. 

(4) Section 109, Means of appeal, is deleted in its entirety and replaced by the following: 

 109.1 Means of appeal.  Appeals shall be heard by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 

109.2 Limitations on authority.  An application for appeal shall be based on a claim that the 
true intent of this code or the rules legally adopted hereunder have been incorrectly interpreted, 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 121 of 201



 

 

the provision of this code do not fully apply or an equally good or better form of construction is 
proposed.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have no authority to waive requirements 
of this code. 

(5) Section 108.4 is deleted and replaced by the following: 

108.4  Violation penalties.  Any person who violates a provision of this code or fails to 
comply with any of the requirements thereof or who erects, installs, constructs, alters, repairs or 
does work in violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the building code 
official, or of a permit or certificate issued under the provisions of this code, shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000.00) or by imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and 
imprisonment.  In addition, such person shall pay all reasonable costs and expenses, including 
attorneys' fees.  Each day that a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 

(6)  A new Section108.5 is added to read as follows: 

108.5 Failure to comply.  It shall be a violation of this code for any person to continue any 
work after having been served with a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed 
to perform to remove a violation or unsafe condition. 

 

 

 

ARTICLE X 

Reserved 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 122 of 201



 

 

ARTICLE XI 

Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces 

Sec. 18-11-10. Adoption of Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces. 

(a) Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces in the Unincorporated Area of Douglas County, 
Resolution R-991-128, is adopted by reference and incorporated into this Article as though fully set forth 
herein as the City of Lone Tree Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces, with the exception of 
Provision No. 2 of the Resolution. 

(b) One (1) copy of the Emission Performance Standards for Fireplaces in the Unincorporated Area 
of Douglas County, Resolution R-991-128, certified to be a true copy by the Mayor and City Clerk, shall 
be on file in the office of the City Clerk and may be inspected by any interested person between the hours 
of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, holidays excepted.  This code, as adopted and 
amended, shall be available for sale to the public at the City of Lone Tree offices at a price reflecting the 
cost to the City.   

Sec. 18-11-20. Definitions. 

(a) Douglas County, County of Douglas, unincorporated area of Douglas County and 
unincorporated territory of Douglas County means the City of Lone Tree. 

(b) Board of County Commissioners means the City Council.  

Sec. 18-11-30. Penalty for violation. 

Any person who violates any provision of this Article commits a criminal offense and, upon 
conviction, shall be punished by a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or by 
imprisonment not exceeding one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.  Each day a violation 
continues shall be considered a separate offense.   

Sec. 18-11-40. Exceptions. 

The Douglas County Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control ("GESC") Manual, as adopted in March, 
2004, is adopted by the City with the following exceptions: 

(1) Where the term Douglas County or County is found, the term City of Lone Tree or City shall 
be substituted. 

(2) Where the term Board of County Commissioners is found, the term City Council shall be 
substituted. 

(3) Where the term Douglas County Zoning Resolution is found, the term City of Lone Tree 
Zoning Ordinance shall be substituted.  

 

 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 123 of 201



 

 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
STAFF REPORT 

      
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Kelly First, Community Development Director 
    
DATE:  October 15, 2014 

FOR:   November 18, 2014 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Ordinance 14-06, an Ordinance Reconstituting the Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals (Second Reading) 

Summary 
Staff proposes consolidating the City’s Board of Adjustment and Board of Appeals into a 
single board known as the Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 

Cost 
No direct cost to the City outside of staff time to develop, adopt and implement changes.   
 
Recommended Action 
I move to approve Ordinance 14-06, reconstituting the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals, on second reading. 
 
Background 
The Board of Adjustment and the Board of Appeals are two boards that very seldom meet 
for official business.  The Board of Adjustment has met twice since the city incorporated 
and the Board of Appeals has met eight times during that same time period.  The Board 
of Adjustment is required by the City’s home rule charter and the Board of Appeals is 
required by the building code. 

Having two boards that seldom meet is an unnecessary use of resources to advertise, 
interview and train.  It is often disappointing to the members who get appointed to sit on 
a board or commission that seldom, if ever, meets.  Staff suggests amending the 
municipal code and the Council adopted policy on commissions, boards and 
committees to maintain one board instead of two.   
 

The essential elements of the proposal are as follows: 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 124 of 201



 

 

a) One board called the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
b) Five board members 
c) At least three members should have experience in the building trades, such as 

construction, architecture, fire protection, civil engineering or related legal 
experience.  Two members may not have any of the above background 

d) Terms of three years 
e) No term limits 
f) All current members of the two individual boards may be considered for the 

consolidated board 
g) Approval of zoning code variances would still require four affirmative votes 
h) Building code appeals would also require four affirmative votes. 

 
The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on October 14, 2014, as it 
relates to amendments to Chapter 16 (Zoning). The Commission recommended 
unanimously in favor of the amendments to Chapter 16, with Commission Roy Kline 
moving to approve, and Commissioner Godden seconding the motion.  
 
If approved on first reading, staff will prepare amendments to the Council adopted policy 
on commissions, boards and committees for consideration at second reading. 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 125 of 201



 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
 

Series of 2014                               Ordinance No. 14-06 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE RECONSTITUTING  
THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS             

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO: 
 
 
ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 
 

The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under the Lone 
Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a Municipal Code (the 
“Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to the Charter, the Municipal 
Code and the authority given home rule cities, the City may adopt and amend Ordinances.   
 
 
ARTICLE 2 – DECLARATIONS OF POLICY 
 

A. The City Charter, Article VII, Section 4, and City Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article 
V, provide for a Board of Adjustment and Appeals.  

 
B. To effectuate the intent of the Charter and City ordinances, the City divided the 

responsibilities between two Boards: the Board of Adjustment to hear variance 
requests and appeals; and the Board of Appeals to hear appeals under the building 
codes. 

 
C. Since the two Boards seldom have business before them, it is proposed that the 

Boards be combined into a single Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 
 

D. The Community Development Department brought amending language before the 
Planning Commission for the necessary changes to the Zoning Code, as is 
required by ordinance. 

 
E. The Planning Commission held a public hearing on October 14, 2014, where it 

evaluated the amendments, staff reports and public testimony. Following its 
evaluation, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval by the 
City Council.  

 
F. The City Council, following public hearings and consideration of the proposed 

amendments, now wishes to preserve and protect the public health, safety and 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 126 of 201



 

 

welfare of the residents of the City by adopting amendments to the Municipal 
Code and Zoning Code to consolidate and reconstitute the two Boards into one 
Board of Adjustment and Appeals.  

 
 

ARTICLE 3 – SAFETY CLAUSE 
 
 The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the health, 
safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the preservation of 
health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and welfare. 

 
 

ARTICLE 4 – ADOPTION 
 
A. Chapter 2, Articles IV and V of the Code are repealed and replaced by the 
following: 
 

ARTICLE IV 

Planning Commission 

 

Sec. 2-4-10. Establishment. 

The Planning and Zoning Commission, hereinafter referred to as the Planning 
Commission, is established pursuant to the provisions of Article VII of the Charter.  
 
 
Sec. 2-4-20. Powers and duties. 

(a) The Planning Commission shall elect from its members a chairman and secretary 
and such other officers as it may determine.  The chairman shall conduct the meetings of the 
Planning Commission, and the secretary shall keep and record the minutes of the Planning 
Commission. 
 

(b) The Planning Commission shall adopt rules for the transaction of its business and 
shall keep a record of its resolutions and actions.  The Planning Commission shall operate in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Law, Section 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S. 
 

(c) The Planning Commission shall have the power to expend those funds 
appropriated for its use by the City Council. 
 

(d) The Planning Commission shall have those powers delegated to it by City 
ordinances and resolutions, including but not limited to Chapters 16 and 17 of this Code. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 127 of 201



 

 

 
(e) The Planning Commission shall exercise those powers specified in Section 31-23-

306, C.R.S., acting in the capacity of a zoning commission. 
 

(f) The Planning Commission shall select one (1) of its members to serve as an 
alternate on the Board of Adjustment and Appeals in the event of an absence or vacancy on that 
Board.  
  

ARTICLE V 

Board of Adjustment and Appeals 

 
Sec. 2-5-10. Establishment. 

       The Board of Adjustment and Appeals is established pursuant to the provisions of Article 
VII of the Charter and shall consist of five members to be appointed by resolution of the 
Council. Each member shall be a registered elector of the City and shall have resided 
within the City for at least one year. If any member ceases to reside in the City, his or her 
membership shall automatically terminate. The term of each member shall be three years or 
until the member's successor takes office. Members shall be appointed on an at-large basis 
without reference to residence in a particular Council District.  No Council member shall 
serve as a member of the Board of Adjustment and Appeal. When a member of the Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals is unavailable, a member of the Planning Commission may serve as 
an alternate member. 
 
 
Sec. 2-5-20. Organization. 

(a) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall elect from its members a chairman 
and secretary and such other officers as it may determine.  The chairman shall conduct the 
meetings of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals, and the secretary shall keep and record the 
minutes. 
 

(b) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall adopt rules for the transaction of its 
business and shall keep a record of its actions.  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall 
operate in accordance with the Open Meetings Law, Section 24-6-401 et seq., C.R.S. 
 

(c) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have the power to expend those funds 
appropriated for its use by the City Council.   
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 128 of 201



 

 

Sec. 2-5-30. Powers and duties. 

(a) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall have those powers delegated to it by 
City ordinances and resolutions, including but not limited to Chapter 16, Zoning, and Chapter 18, 
Building Regulations, of this Municipal Code. 
 

(b) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals may grant variances from Chapter 16, 
Zoning, when a strict application of the Chapter would cause peculiar and exceptional practical 
difficulties or exceptional and undue hardship, subject to the limitations and approval criteria set 
forth in Chapter 16, Article XX.   
 

(c) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall hear and decide appeals from and 
review any administrative order, requirement, decision or determination made by any 
administrative official charged with the enforcement of Chapter 16, Zoning, in accordance with 
the procedures established in Article XXVI of said Chapter and this Article. If all five members 
of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals are not present, the hearing shall be postponed to a later 
date. 
 

(d)  The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall also serve as the Board of Appeals 
and shall hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the building 
official relative to the application and interpretation of Chapter  18, Building Regulations, in 
accordance with the procedures established in said Chapter and this Article. If all five members 
of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals are not present, the hearing shall be postponed to a later 
date.  
 
  (e) The concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of any such 
administrative official or building official or to decide in favor of an applicant on any matter 
arising under Chapter 16 or Chapter 18, including the granting of variances. 
 
 
Sec. 2-5-40. Appeals process. 

(a) Any person who desires to appeal a decision of an administrative official 
enforcing Chapter 16 or 18 of this Municipal Code shall first file with the Planning Department 
an application and other documentation, as required by Chapter 16, Article XXVI, or Chapter 18, 
within the time specified, or if no time is specified, within a reasonable time.  When the 
application is complete, the Director of Planning and Community Development (the "Director") 
shall transmit to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals the application and all papers constituting 
the record on which the action appealed from was taken.  The applicant shall be responsible for 
complying with the public notice requirements contained in Chapter 16, Article XXVI. 
 

(b) An appeal stays all proceedings in furtherance of the action appealed from unless 
the official from whom the appeal is taken certifies to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals, 
specifying the facts that justify his or her opinion, that a stay would cause imminent peril to life 
or property.  In that case, proceedings shall not be stayed unless a restraining order is granted by 
the District Court.  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 129 of 201



 

 

 
(c) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall set a reasonable time for hearing the 

appeal, and the Director shall provide notice to the parties.  Such hearings shall be informal, and 
no transcript of proceedings or compliance with the rules of evidence shall be required. The 
Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall make its decisions, in writing, within a reasonable time.   
 

(d) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall not have the power to grant a use 
variance or any variance authorizing a violation of any City ordinance or to waive the 
requirements of the codes in Chapter 18.  
 
 
Sec. 2-5-50. Review by Court. 

Every decision of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall be subject to review by the 
District Court in and for Douglas County. The appeal shall be filed no later than thirty (30) days 
from the final action taken by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals.  The appeal may be taken 
by any person aggrieved or by an officer, department or board of the City.  

 
 

 
 

B. Chapter 16, Article XXVI of the Code is hereby repealed and replaced by the 
following: 

 
 

ARTICLE XXVI 

Variance and Appeal Standards and Procedures 

Sec. 16-26-10.   Intent. 
 

The purpose of this Article is to provide a process and criteria for varying from certain 
provisions of this Chapter so as to afford a measure of flexibility in the standards, while ensuring 
that development is sensitive to the natural and built environment and to existing and future 
residents, and to support or advance community goals and policies.  
 
 
Sec. 16-26-20.   Variance limitations. 
 

(a) Variances shall be limited to the following: 
 

 (1) Minimum area of a lot. 

 (2) Maximum height of structures or fences. 

 (3) Minimum setbacks. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 130 of 201



 

 

 (4) Minimum off-street parking requirements. 

(b) A variance for the following shall be strictly prohibited: 
 

 (1) A use variance to permit a use other than those listed in a specific zoning district. 

 (2) A variance authorizing a violation of this Chapter or any duly adopted ordinance 
of the City.   

 
Sec. 16-26-30.   Variance; approval criteria. 
 

(a) A variance may be granted only where it can be demonstrated that such: 
 

 (1) Is sensitive to and compatible with adjoining existing and future land uses; 

 (2) Will not adversely impact the natural environment through unwarranted or 
undesirable grading, altering of drainages or vegetation removal; 

 (3) Maintains a desirable balance with the overall bulk and massing of building 
architecture; and 

 (4) Promotes other community goals as set forth in the City’s Comprehensive Plan, such 
as a well-planned, high-quality and, where appropriate, compact development. 

(b) A variance may be granted, provided that no substantial detriment to the public good 
is created and that the intent and purpose of this Chapter is not impaired.  
 
 
Sec. 16-26-40.   Administrative variance. 
 

The Director may grant up to a twenty-five-percent adjustment in the zoning 
requirements for those items listed in Subsection 16-26-20(a) in accordance with the approval 
criteria listed in Section 16-26-30.  The applicant shall submit the processing fee and the 
information required in Subsection 16-26-50(d) below to the Community Development 
Department.  The applicant shall notify abutting landowners affected by the appeal or the 
request.  Such notification shall be either a notice of the variance request sent by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, at least ten (10) days prior to the Director's consideration of such 
request, or the applicant may obtain a signed statement from the abutting landowners stating that 
they were notified of the variance request and submit those signatures with the application.  A 
decision by the Director to deny such variance may be appealed to the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals in accordance with the procedure in Section 16-26-50 below.  A written appeal shall be 
submitted by the applicant to the Community Development Department within ten (10) days of 
such denial. 
 

   
Sec. 16-26-50.   Appeals or variances to Board of Adjustment and Appeals. 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 131 of 201



 

 

(a) Appeal.  An appeal may be taken to the Board of Adjustment and Appeals by any 
person aggrieved by an inability to obtain a building permit or by an administrative decision of any 
official based upon or made in the course of the administration or enforcement of the provisions of 
this Chapter. 
 

(b) Vote required.  The concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board of Adjustment 
and Appeals shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement, decision or determination of any 
such administrative official or to decide in favor of the applicant on a variance request. 
 

(c) Preapplication review for variance or appeal.  The applicant shall discuss the 
variance or appeal informally with staff to discuss the procedures and submittal requirements. 
  

  (d) Submittal requirements.  The applicant shall submit the following to the Community 
Development Department: 
 

 (1) A completed application form. 

 (2) Proof of ownership of the land which is the subject of the variance or appeal. 

 (3) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development 
Department). 

 (4) A site plan, when applicable, indicating how the variance relates to the affected land 
drawn to scale, including the height and setbacks of all existing and proposed structures and any 
other information requested by the Director. 

 (5) An explanation in narrative form explaining the variance or appeal and how it meets 
the approval criteria in Section 16-26-30 herein. 

(e) Formal review process. 
 

 (1) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness and the applicant notified of any 
inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal shall not be processed. 

 (2) Once the submittal is determined to be complete, staff shall submit the application to 
the appropriate referral agencies, schedule the variance or appeal before the Board of Adjustment 
and Appeals and notify the applicant of the date and time of the public hearing. 

 (3) The applicant is responsible for posting notice on the property and notifying the 
abutting landowners in accordance with the public notice requirements in Section 16-26-60 
below. 

 (4) The Board of Adjustment and Appeals shall evaluate the application, referral agency 
comments, staff report and public testimony, and shall approve, conditionally approve, table for 
further study or deny the appeal or variance. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 132 of 201



 

 

 (5) The concurring vote of four (4) members of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals 
shall be necessary for a variance.  The Board's determination shall be based on the evidence 
presented and compliance with the applicable criteria.   

 
Sec. 16-26-60.   Public notice requirements. 
 

The applicant shall be responsible for public notification.  In calculating the time period for 
public notification, the day of posting or mailing shall be counted toward the total number of days 
required.  The day of the hearing shall not be counted toward this total. 
 

(a)  Mailed notice.  At least fifteen (15) days prior to the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals hearing, the applicant shall send a written notice of said hearing by first class mail to 
all adjoining landowners and to homeowners' associations which have authority over property 
located within two hundred (200) feet of the land under consideration.  The notice shall 
include: 

(1)  An explanation of the variance or appeal in narrative form; 

(2)  A vicinity map; and 

(3)  A site plan (when applicable). 

At least five (5) days prior to the public hearing, the applicant shall submit to the Community 
Development Department a copy of the notice sent to the landowners, an alphabetical listing 
of the parties receiving notice and a map illustrating the location of the abutting landowners. 

(b)  Posted notice.  At least fifteen (15) days prior to the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on the land under consideration.  The sign 
posting shall consist of at least one (1) sign facing each abutting right-of-way, within ten (10) 
feet of the lot line abutting the right-of-way, visible from the right-of-way, placed on posts at 
least four (4) feet above ground level.  Each sign shall measure not less than three (3) feet by 
four (4) feet.  Letter size shall be a minimum of three (3) inches high.  The notice shall read: 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND 

APPEALS 

This land shall be considered for (a variance/ appeal) pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Lone 
Tree Municipal Code to allow for a change in _________.  For more information, call the 
Community Development Department, [list the phone number provided by the City].  The 
public hearing is (date), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of 
Lone Tree, CO 80124 [or other designated place, if applicable] at (time). 

Name of Proposal:_________________________ 
File Number:  _______  Hearing Date:_________ 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 133 of 201



 

 

a. An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the Community 
Development Department at least five (5) days prior to the hearing.  The signs shall be 
photographed by the applicant and attached to the affidavit as follows: 

(attach photo here) 

I, (applicant/representative), attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location) 
pursuant to Chapter 16 of the Lone Tree Municipal Code. 

         (signature)               
(applicant/representative) 

File name and number:__________________ 

Signed and sworn before me this date: ______ 

NOTARIZED BY:_____________________ 

b. The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals or withdrawal of the application. 

(c)  Additional public notice may be required by the Director.   

 
Sec. 16-26-70.   Variance requests heard by City Council. 
 

The City Council may grant a variance to the zoning requirements for those items listed in 
Subsection 16-26-20(a), where such request is made concurrent with a Site improvement Plan (SIP) 
application. 
 

(a)  Submittal requirements.  In addition to the submittal requirements for an SIP, the 
applicant shall include a narrative explaining the need for the variance and how the request meets 
the approval criteria in Section 16-26-30 herein. 

(b)  Public notice.  In addition to the notice of such variance request being sent to referral 
agencies and homeowners' associations as part of the SIP process, the Director may require 
additional noticing as provided in Section 16-26-60. 

(c)  Approval criteria.  A variance or appeal may be granted by the City Council where it 
is determined that the applicant has met the approval criteria in Section 16-26-30.  

  
Sec. 16-26-80.  Post-approval action. 
 

Construction pursuant to approval of a variance or an appeal shall be completed within 
eighteen (18) months from the date the variance/appeal was granted, unless otherwise specified by 
the reviewing authority as provided herein.  An extension of time may be granted by the reviewing 
authority as provided herein for good cause shown, upon a written request by the applicant.  

 
  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 134 of 201



 

 

Sec. 16-26-90.   Post-denial application. 
 

If denied by the Board of Adjustment and Appeals or City Council, a resubmittal of the 
same or substantially same variance or appeal application shall not be accepted within one (1) 
year from the date of denial by the Board or, in the event of litigation, from the date of the entry 
of the final judgment.  However, if evidence is presented to the Board of Adjustment and 
Appeals showing that there has been a substantial change in physical conditions or 
circumstances, the Board may reconsider the variance/appeal.  A new application and processing 
fee shall be required.  

 
  

Sec. 16-26-100.  Review by Court. 
 
     Every decision of the Board of Adjustment and Appeals related to provisions of this 
Chapter shall be subject to review by the District Court in and for Douglas County.  The appeal 
shall be filed no later than thirty (30) days from the final action taken by the Board of 
Adjustment and Appeals.  The appeal may be taken by any person aggrieved or by an officer, 
department or board of the City.   
 
 

C. Section 16-36-20 of the Code is hereby amended by repealing the definitions to 
Board of Adjustment and Board of Appeals and replacing them with the following definition: 

 
Board of Adjustment and Appeals means the persons appointed by the City Council and 

acting pursuant to the provisions of the Charter. 

 

ARTICLE 5 - PROVISIONS EFFECTIVE 
 
 The provisions of this Ordinance shall go into effect on January 1, 2015.  

 
 
ARTICLE 6 – SEVERABILITY 
 
 If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or circumstance 
is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such part, 
provision, or application shall not affect any of the remaining parts, provisions or applications of 
this Ordinance which can be given the effect without the invalid provision, part or application, 
and to this end the provisions and parts of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 
ARTICLE 7 – CAUSES OF ACTION RETAINED 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 135 of 201



 

 

 Nothing in this Ordinance hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any suit or 
proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, or liability incurred, or any cause or 
causes of action acquired or existing, under any act or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any 
just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance. 
 
 
ARTICLE  8 – EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days following publication after first 
reading if no changes are made or twenty (20) days following publication after a second reading 
if changes are made upon a second reading. 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED ON OCTOBER 21, 2014. 
 
PUBLISHED IN THE DOUGLAS COUNTY NEWS PRESS ON OCTOBER 30, 2014, 
LEGAL NOTICE NO. 926351. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED WITH NO CHANGES ON SECOND READING ON 
NOVEMBER 18, 2014, TO BECOME EFFECTIVE ON JANUARY 1, 2015. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
       
       
 
             
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
      
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
      (SEAL) 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 136 of 201



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Beer and Wine Liquor License for 5 to 1 Enterprises, LLC d/b/a 

Painting With a Twist 
 
MEETING DATE: November 18, 2014 
 
STAFF PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE: Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DESCRIPTION: Beer and Wine Liquor License for 5 to 1 Enterprises, LLC d/b/a 

Painting With a Twist, 7600 E. Park Meadows Drive, Suite 950, 
Lone Tree, Colorado. 

 
SUMMARY: The application for a new Beer and Wine Liquor License at the 

above location was submitted and completed in all material 
respects. The necessary fees accompanied the application. 

 
 This establishment is located at 7600 E. Park Meadows Drive, 

Suite 950. A retail lease agreement was entered into between 
Roseben LT, LLC and 5 to 1 Enterprises, LLC as tenant on 
September 25, 2014. A Commencement Date Memorandum was 
filed which confirms the commencement date is October 1, 2014 
and the expiration date is September 30, 2019.  

  
 Documents reviewed include the License Application, Individual 

History Records, Lone Tree Business License, Certificate of Good 
Standing issued by the Colorado Secretary of State, Red-lined 
Drawing of the Premises, Franchise Agreement Affidavit of 
Posting, Affidavit of Publication and Petitions. 

 
 Background checks were submitted through CBI; there were no 

adverse comments or events reported. All posting and publication 
requirements have been met and the petition results have been 
reviewed. Staff recommends approval of the application 
conditional upon the applicant obtaining all necessary building 
permits and approvals. 
  
Beer and wine licensees shall have sandwiches and light snacks 
available for consumption on the premises during business hours, 
but need not have meals available for consumption. 

 
 
RECOMMENDED 
COUNCIL ACTION: Convene the Public Hearing for a new Beer and Wine Restaurant 

Liquor License and consider a motion to approve the application 
for a Beer and Wine Liquor License conditional the applicant 
obtaining all necessary building permits and approvals. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 137 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 138 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 139 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 140 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 141 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 142 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 143 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 144 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 145 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 146 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 147 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 148 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 149 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 150 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 151 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 152 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 153 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 154 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 155 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 156 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 157 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 158 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 159 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 160 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 161 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 162 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 163 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 164 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 165 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 166 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 167 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 168 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 169 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 170 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 171 of 201



11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 172 of 201



DENEB DR

SPICA DR

TEDDY LN

MAXIMUS DR
ANTARES DR

SA
GE

BR
US

H T
RL

DEL
PH

I DRALTAIR DR
PEGASUS DR

SIRUS DR

DIONE PL

OLYMPUS CIR
RIGEL DR

OMEGA LN

BROOK LN

QU
EB

EC
 ST

HA
DA

R D
R

PARKWAY DR WESTVIEW RD

MIMAS PL

MERCURY CIR

PIN
YO

N T
RL

PARK MEADOWS DR
PEACOCK DR

DIANNA DR
JUPITER DR

COUNTY LINE RD

SATURN PL
YO

SE
MIT

E S
T

MERCURY DR
KIMMER DR

APOLLO CT
PLUTO CTTHOR CT

CHAPARRAL RD

TIMBERLINE RD

ACRES GREEN DR

MERCURY DR

QUE
BEC

 ST

MAXIMUS DR

COUNTY LINE RD

QU
EB

EC
 ST

COUNTY LINE RD

MAXIMUS DR

PARKWAY DR

ACRES GREEN DR

YOS
EMITE

 ST

RIGEL DR

DENEB DR

PARKWAY DR

YO
SEM

ITE
 STPARK MEADOWS DR

ALTAIR DR

YOSEMITE ST

PARKWAY DR

COUNTY LINE RD

MERCURY CIR
C470

COUNTY LINE

QU
EB

EC

CH
ES

TE
R

YO
SE

MIT
E

MO
NA

CO

DRY CREEK

AK
RO

N

NICHOLS

OTERO

WILLOW

NEWPORT

LONG

ROSEMARY

PHILLIPS

NIA
GA

RA

JAMISON

PO
PLA

R
MINERAL

PANORAMA

JAS
MIN

E

WABASH

KRAMERIA

ULSTER

LEY
DEN

ON
EID

A
ROSLYN

LOCUST
TRENTON

VINCENNES

SPRUCE

UINTA

MA
GN

OL
IA

KETTLE

OLI
VE

QUINCE

SYR
AC

US
E

VAL
ENT

IA

PO
NT

IAC

KEARNEY

IRWINIRISH

XE
NIA

XANTHIA

MIN
ERA

L

PHILLIPS

KETTLE
MO

NA
CO

JAMISON

MINERAL

WABA
SH

NICHOLS

WILLO
W

OLI
VE

NIAGARA

JAS
MIN

E

MO
NA

CO
KETTLE

LONG

WILLOW

KETTLE

PHILLIPS

LEY
DE

N

LOCUST

LONG

DRY CREEK

NIAGARA

KETTLE

LONG

PHILLIPS

LONG

OTEROKRA
MERI

A

SPRUCE

OTERO

OTER
O

WILLOW

TRENTON

XENIA

LO
NG

TRENTON

UIN
TA

ULSTER

TRENTON

LO
NG

ON
EID

A

KRAMERIA PO
PLA

R

PHILLIPS

TRENTON

NIAGARA

®0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Legend
Lone Tree Boundary

1 Mile Buffer

a 7600 E. Park Meadows Drive, Suite 950

7600 E. Park Meadows Drive
Suite 950 

1 Mile Radius11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 173 of 201



 

1 
 

 
CITY OF LONE TREE 

STAFF REPORT 
  

 
TO:   Mayor Gunning and City Council 

FROM:  Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
   Torie Brazitis, Management Analyst 

DATE:  Tuesday, October 14, 2014 

FOR:   Tuesday, October 21, 2014 City Council Meeting 

SUBJECT: Library Agreement with Douglas County Libraries, Rampart 
Range Metropolitan District No. 1, and Lincoln Commons South, 
Inc. 

Background 
As previously discussed, the Douglas County Library District has identified funding to 
build libraries in Parker, Castle Pines and Lone Tree, and has chosen an architect that 
will design all three projects. The new Lone Tree library will be to be located in the 
Lincoln Commons district in RidgeGate and will be twice the size of the current facility 
on Lone Tree Parkway.  
 
Library Agreement Purpose and Process 
The agreement provides for the transfer of the necessary 2.376-acre parcel to build the 
new Lone Tree Library, from RidgeGate developers Coventry Development Corporation 
to Douglas County Libraries through the City of Lone Tree and other entities. The 
agreement presented today is between four entities: 

1. City of Lone Tree 
2. Douglas County Libraries, a special district providing libraries services to 

Douglas County, Colorado 
3. Rampart Range Metropolitan District No. 1 (RRMD), a metropolitan district 

providing infrastructure services to the Lincoln Commons district, and  
4. Lincoln Commons South, Inc., the developer’s legal entity which owns the land 

on which the new library will be built.  
 
Transfer of Land for New Library: The land for the new library will be conveyed first from 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc. to the City when RidgeGate Design Review Committee 
and the City have given all required approvals for the site. The City would then convey 
the parcel to the Library District no later than April 1, 2015, at which point the District 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 174 of 201



 

2 
 

agrees design, construction, finish, and furnish the new Lone Tree Library. The 
construction of the new library will start by March 31, 2016.  
 
Infrastructure Improvements: Additionally, the agreement says that RRMD will construct 
several streets and streetscapes in the area of the new library. The District will provide 
streetscape improvements in the public right of way to the east of the new library, prior 
to receiving their certificate of occupancy. The City will construct a new road known as 
Town Ridge Drive next to the site by July 1, 2015. 
 
City Purchase and Reuse of Old Library Building: Finally, the agreement provides for 
the City’s purchase of the existing Lone Tree Library building and property at 8827 Lone 
Tree Parkway. As previously discussed, the City will repurpose the existing Lone Tree 
Library for other community use when the new Lone Tree Library opens in RidgeGate. 
Staff are planning now for the transition of that building’s use toward a different Lone 
Tree community benefit, and will return to Council early in 2015 with an update on that 
process. As discussed in previous public meetings, Douglas County Libraries has agreed 
to provide “limited library services” at the old library site for two years following the 
transfer of the facility to the City, with annual evaluations of City resident usage of 
those services.  
 
The transfer of this property to the City will take place within 60 days of the opening of 
the new library. The Library’s appraisal of the building shows it valued at $1,250,000. 
Through this agreement, the City is permitted to purchase the property for $800,000.  
 
New Library 
As outlined in the agreement, the new library in RidgeGate Lincoln Commons South will 
be a stand-alone structure between 24,000-30,000 square feet with associated 
indoor/outdoor space. This is more than double the size of the current Lone Tree 
Library, which is 9,740 square feet. The new library will have 80-120 parking spaces 
allocated to it. It will include the full range of library services, including public meeting 
rooms. The agreement states the new facility will cost no more than $11,000,000.  
 
Retains Existing Name: Through its entire useful life, the new library will be known only 
as the “Lone Tree Branch” or “Lone Tree Library” and cannot be renamed.  
 
Easy Access to New Library: Through this agreement, City residents will enjoy easy 
access to the new library in a walkable, central area through ample parking located on 
that site. Other sites considered for the new library either had one half of the required 
100 parking spaces, or required the Library to pay common area maintenance 
expenses for shared parking.  
 
Cost 
The City will pay $800,000 to purchase the existing library building upon completion of 
the new building.   
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 175 of 201



 

3 
 

Suggested Motion or Recommended Action 
I move to approve the Library Agreement with Douglas County Libraries, Rampart 
Range Metropolitan District No. 1, and Lincoln Commons South, Inc. 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 176 of 201



 

 

LIBRARY AGREEMENT 
BY  

AND BETWEEN  
THE CITY OF LONE TREE 

DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARIES 
RAMPART RANGE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 1 

AND 
LINCOLN COMMONS SOUTH, INC. 

 
 

THIS LIBRARY AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this 
_______ day of _______________, 2014, by and between the City of Lone Tree, Colorado, a 
Colorado home rule municipal corporation (the "City"), Douglas County Libraries, a library 
district and political subdivision of the state of Colorado (the "District"), Rampart Range 
Metropolitan District No. 1, a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state 
of Colorado (“RRMD”) and Lincoln Commons South, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“LCS”), 
each individually the "Party" and collectively the "Parties". 

RECITALS 

A. C.R.S. § 29-1-203 authorizes the City, District and RRMD to cooperate and 
contract with one another regarding functions, services and facilities each is authorized to 
provide; and the City, District and RRMD are authorized to enter into contracts with private 
parties. 

B. The City and the District are passionate advocates for literacy and lifelong 
learning. Through engagement, education, and entertainment, libraries transform lives and build 
community. 

C.  The District currently owns and operates a public library within the City (the 
“Existing Library”). The Parties agree that the needs of City residents have outgrown the 
services the Existing Library is capable of providing. 

D.  The City, District, RRMD and LCS desire to cooperate to meet the needs of City 
residents in regard to public library space and, as such, to advance the goals of both 
organizations, serve community and cultural resource needs, and enhance the quality of life for 
all residents of the City. 

E. The City has approved a replat in the Lincoln Commons District of the RidgeGate 
development.  LCS owns real property in the replatted area described as Lot 2, RidgeGate 
Section 15, Filing No. 21, 2nd Amendment and consisting of 2.376 acres, which real property is 
described in Exhibit A attached hereto and hereby incorporated by reference (the “New Library 
Property”). 

F. LCS plans to convey the  New Library Property to the City, following which the 
City plans to convey the New Library Property to the District for design, construction, finishing 
and furnishing of a new public library consisting generally of a stand-alone structure of between 
24,000-30,000 square feet, associated indoor/outdoor space, between 80 and 120 parking spaces 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 177 of 201



 

2 

and hosting a full array of library services, including public meeting rooms; all for a cost not to 
exceed $11,000,000 (the “New Library”).  

G. RRMD is a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of 
Colorado formed and organized pursuant to Title 32, Colorado Revised Statutes, to provide, 
among other things, the construction, operation and maintenance of streets and streetscapes.  

H. RRMD has the responsibility to construct certain streets and streetscapes in the 
vicinity of the New Library Property, as hereinafter defined, which is the subject of this 
Agreement. 

I. The New Library is anticipated to include functions, services and facilities that 
are mutually beneficial to both the City and the District. 

J. In conjunction with construction of the New Library, the City desires to purchase 
from the District the Existing Library in order that the City may establish a community center 
providing services and meeting facilities for City residents. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and 
promises set forth herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are mutually acknowledged, the 
Parties hereby agree as follows. 

1. Effective Date of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon the date of 
execution by all Parties. 

2. New Library Property Conveyance from LCS to City. 
 

A. Conveyance of New Library Property to City/Reservations/Restrictions.  LCS 
shall convey the New Library Property to the City by special warranty deed in the form attached 
hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, as Exhibit B (the “City Deed”).  The City 
Deed reserves to LCS certain rights as set forth therein and conveys all other rights in New 
Library Property for the Permitted Use, all as defined in and subject to the provisions of the City 
Deed.   

 B. Timing of Conveyance.  LCS’s conveyance of the New Library Property to the 
City shall take place once the District has obtained all required approvals of the RidgeGate 
Design Review Committee (the “DRC”) and final approval of the SIP Amendment by the City, 
as provided in Section 4(A)(i) and Section 4(A)(ii) below.  If such approvals have not been 
obtained by the District prior to the first (1st) anniversary of the effective date of this Agreement, 
then this Agreement shall automatically terminate on such date and the parties shall have no 
further obligations hereunder.   

C. Library Property Conveyance.  The New Library Property will be conveyed to the 
City subject to the following provisions: 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 178 of 201



 

3 

(i) No Implied Representations.   The City acknowledges and agrees that LCS 
has not made, and LCS specifically disclaims, any representations or warranties of any 
kind or nature whatsoever, whether express or implied, oral or written, past, present or 
future, of, as to, concerning or with respect to the New Library Property, including, 
without limitation:  (a) the nature, quality or condition of the New Library Property, 
including, without limitation, the condition with respect to water, soils or geology; (b)  
the marketability of the New Library Property, the existence or availability of any 
entitlement approval or governmental approvals with respect to the New Library Property 
or any potential to develop, subdivide, zone, construct or alter improvements on, or lease 
or sell the New Library Property; (c) the habitability, merchantability or fitness for a 
particular purpose of the New Library Property; or (d) the compliance of or by the New 
Library Property with any laws, rules, ordinances or regulations of any applicable 
governmental authority, including, without limitation, Environmental Laws; and that LCS 
has not made, and LCS specifically disclaims, any representations concerning hazardous 
materials.  The City acknowledges and agrees that the City is relying solely upon its own 
inspection of the New Library Property and not upon any information provided by or on 
behalf of, or to be provided by or on behalf of, LCS or upon any representations made to 
the City by LCS or any agent, employee, officer, director, broker, contractor or 
representative of LCS.  The City further acknowledges and agrees that any information 
provided or to be provided with respect to the New Library Property was or may be 
obtained from a variety of sources and that LCS has not made any independent 
investigation or verification of such information and makes no representations as to the 
accuracy or completeness of such information. 

(ii) Definitions.  As used herein, (i) the term “Environmental Law(s)” means 
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, 
42 U.S.C. Sections 9601, et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 
42 U.S.C. Sections 6901 et seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 
2601 et. seq., the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. Sections 1801 et 
seq., the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. Sections 1251 et seq., the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. 
Section 7401 et seq., the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. Sections 300f et seq., as 
said laws have been supplemented or amended to date, the regulations promulgated 
pursuant to said laws, and any other federal, state or local law, statute, rule, regulation or 
ordinance relating to protection of health, safety or the environment, and (ii) the term 
“Hazardous Material” means (1) any substance which is designated, defined, classified or 
regulated as a hazardous substance, hazardous material, hazardous waste, toxic substance, 
pollutant or contaminant under any Environmental Law, as currently in effect or as 
hereafter amended or enacted, (2) a petroleum hydrocarbon, including crude oil or any 
fraction thereof and all petroleum products, (3) PCBs, (4) lead, (5) asbestos, (6) 
flammable explosives, (7) infectious materials, or (8) radioactive materials. 

3. New Library Property Conveyance from City to District. 

A. Conveyance of New Library Property from City to District.  On the same date that 
LCS conveys the New Library Property to the City, and no later than April 1, 2015, subject to 
District’s receipt of the approvals referenced in Sections 4(A)(i) and 4(A)(ii) below the City shall 
convey the New Library Property to the District by special warranty deed and free and clear of 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 179 of 201



 

4 

all liens and encumbrances which would, in the District’s estimation, interfere with the District’s 
ability to construct and operate the New Library.  Prior to conveyance, the District or its retained 
contractors or consultants shall be allowed to access the New Library Property to perform soils 
and other tests related to design and construction of the New Library on the New Library 
Property; provided that any such party shall first sign LCS's standard form of License Agreement 
allowing for such activities. 

If the City fails to convey the New Library Property to the District as required herein the 
City shall be solely responsible for any payments required to be made to LCS per the transfer of 
title to the Property from LCS to the City.  The District shall have no financial responsibility.   

B. Deed to District.  The form special warranty deed conveying the property to the 
District from the City is attached hereto as Exhibit D, incorporated hereby by this reference, and 
will be subject to the provisions of the City Deed.  No right, title and interest in and to any oil, 
gas, and ground water located within and under the New Library Property are owned by the City 
and, accordingly, no oil, gas or ground water rights are conveyed.  

4. New Library Property Development. 

A. Design Review and Approval and Site Plan.   

 (i) Design Review Approval.  The District shall, at its sole cost and expense, 
apply for and obtain all required approvals of the DRC, prior to submitting the 
application for a SIP Amendment (as defined below) to the City.  LCS agrees to sign as 
landowner all necessary applications, requests or other documents as may be required by 
the DRC to obtain design approvals for the New Library, subject to approval thereof by 
LCS.  

 (ii) SIP Amendment.  Within ten (10) days after obtaining design 
development phase approval from the DRC, the District shall, at its sole cost and 
expense, prepare and submit an application to the City for an amendment to the Lincoln 
Commons South Site Improvement Plan (the “SIP Amendment”) to allow for the 
development of the New Library on the New Library Property as per the DRC approved 
design.  Such application shall be subject to the prior approval of LCS prior to submittal 
to the City; provided that the District shall pay all costs relating to the preparation and 
processing of such application. 

 (iii) The City and the District agree to cooperate with each other to ensure that 
the New Library will advance the goals of both organizations and will serve as a 
community and cultural resource.  LCS and the City shall be entitled to participate in all 
design reviews related to the facilities to be constructed on the New Library Property to 
ensure that the quality of the project is consistent with the quality envisioned for 
RidgeGate, as reflected in City and project development standards.  LCS and the City 
agree to cooperate with the District prior to the transfer of the property to the District to 
ensure the District is able to perform or obtain any and all testing, studies, permits or 
reviews necessary for design and construction of the New Library; provided that any such 
party shall first sign LCS's standard form of License Agreement allowing for such 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 180 of 201



 

5 

activities while LCS is the owner of the New Library Property.   The District will make 
all decisions on the New Library’s internal content, furnishings and layout.  

  (iv) In consideration for the City’s conveyance of the New Library Property to 
the District, the District agrees that the New Library will for its useful life be referred to 
as the “Lone Tree Branch” or “Lone Tree Library.”  Signage for the New Library will 
include either the “Lone Tree Branch” or “Lone Tree Library” reference along with the 
“Douglas County Libraries” name.  

 (v) The District further agrees to consider the availability of existing public 
meeting space within the City such that the New Library meeting spaces complement and 
do not duplicate existing facilities. 

 B. Payment of System Development Fee.  In accordance with the Joint Resolution 
Concerning the Imposition of Development Fees adopted by RRMD on April 16, 2007, the City 
shall pay the $12,000 per acre system development fee (the "SDF") upon conveyance of the New 
Library Property to the City.  Upon the City’s conveyance of the New Library Property to the 
District, the District shall reimburse the City for the SDF paid by the City.   

 C. Utilities.   The term "Utilities" as used in this Section shall mean and include 
power, phone, data, water and sanitary sewer mains in public rights of way adjacent to the New 
Library Property and storm water mains in public rights of way adjacent to the New Library 
Property with capacity in regional detention facilities to satisfy the site discharge requirements of 
the New Library Property such that no on-site detention or retention is required on the New 
Library Property. 

 (i) Off-Site Utilities. RRMD agrees to provide such information 
regarding existing off-site Utilities installed by RRMD and needed for the New Library 
as the District may reasonably request.  The term “off-Site Utilities” does not include any 
connections or service lines to the New Library Property, all of which shall be installed 
by the District at its sole cost and expense in accordance with all applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations of the City, and RRMD or other utility service provider. 

 (ii) On-site Utilities. The District will pay for and provide its own on-site 
Utilities, including connections to off-site Utilities adjacent to the New Library Property. 

 (iii) Storm Water Drainage Limitation.  No storm water or developed flows 
from properties adjacent to the New Library Property shall be conveyed either via surface 
conveyance methods or underground, detained or retained within the New Library 
Property.  The District shall not have any responsibility for any costs associated with 
storm water detention improvements for adjacent properties.  All storm water and 
developed flows generated and collected on the New Library Property shall be piped to 
the storm sewer main in the right-of-way adjacent to the New Library Property, and none 
of the storm water or developed flows generated and collected on the New Library 
Property shall be retained on the New Library Property. 

D. Road and Streetscape Improvements.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 181 of 201



 

6 

(i) RRMD shall design, construct and complete the road and streetscape 
improvements described in Exhibit E, including sidewalks, landscaping and irrigation, 
by the deadlines set forth in Exhibit E, subject to any delay resulting from strike, lockout 
or extraordinary labor difficulty, explosion, sabotage, accident, riot or civil commotion, 
act of war, fire or other casualty, adverse weather conditions, or other event not within 
the reasonable control of RRMD. 

(ii). The District shall design, construct and complete streetscape 
improvements in public rights of way adjacent to the east side of the New Library 
Property, including sidewalks, tree lines, landscaping and irrigation, prior to the issuance 
of the certificate of occupancy, subject to any delay resulting from strike, lockout or 
extraordinary labor difficulty, explosion, sabotage, accident, riot or civil commotion, act 
of war, fire or other casualty, adverse weather conditions, or other event not within the 
reasonable control of the District.  

E. New Library Construction.  The District agrees that the New Library’s 
construction shall commence by March 31, 2016, or at a later date if the District, the City and 
LCS all agree in writing to such later date in order to accommodate the development process.   

F. Verified Statements of Claim.  The City and the District shall comply with all 
requirements contained in Section 38-26-107, C.R.S. with respect to persons who furnish labor, 
materials, sustenance or supplies used or consumed by contractors working on the New Library 
so as to avoid if possible, and otherwise insure proper release of, verified statements of claim by 
subcontractors.   

5. Existing Library – City Purchase and Use 
 

A. Right to Purchase.  The District has obtained an appraisal of the Existing Library 
from National Valuation Consultants, Inc., dated January 8, 2014 and exclusive of value related 
to appurtenances or personal property (the “Appraisal”). The Appraisal values the Existing 
Library at $1,250,000.   However, and in consideration of the following, the City shall have the 
exclusive right to purchase the Existing Library for $800,000.00: 

 (i) the City is donating the property for the New Library to the District; and 

 (ii)  the City is donating the property for the New Library over other 
properties previously considered by the parties for a new library, which properties had roughly 
one-half of the approximately 100 dedicated parking spaces associated with the New Library and 
which properties included common area maintenance expenses for non-dedicated parking; and  

 (iii) the City has agreed to undertake design, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the Town Ridge Drive adjacent to the New Library.  The construction shall be 
completed prior to July 1, 2015.  

The transfer of the Existing Library is to occur within 60 days of the opening of the New 
Library. If the City desires to purchase furnishings or personal property contained within the 
Existing Library, that purchase shall be separately agreed between the City and the District. 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 182 of 201



 

7 

B. Deed Form.  Any conveyance of the Existing Library to the City shall be 
effectuated by special warranty deed, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances which would, 
in the City’s estimation, interfere with the City’s ability to use the Existing Library for City 
purposes. 

 C. Limited Library Services.  The District agrees to provide limited library services 
at the Existing Library following conveyance to the City and upon the City’s occupation of the 
premises for a period of two (2) years following the conveyance. Such services shall be subject 
to annual budgeting and appropriation by the District in accordance with Colorado law and 
Section 6 of this Agreement.  Further, the District and the City shall annually evaluate use of the 
services by City residents.  If, following the initial two (2) year period, the District believes it no 
longer makes sense for the District to provide the services, then the District may discontinue the 
services upon sixty (60) days’ notice to the City. 

6. Remedies.  The Parties hereto acknowledge and agree that each Party may exercise all 
rights and remedies in law or in equity, by a decree in specific performance, or such other legal 
or equitable relief as may be available. 

7. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 
be deemed to have been sufficiently given for all purposes if sent by certified mail or registered 
mail, postage and fees prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom such notice is to be given, at the 
address set forth below, or at such other address as has been previously furnished in writing, to 
the other Parties.  Such notice shall be deemed to have been given when deposited in the United 
States mail. 

To the City: City of Lone Tree 
Attn:  Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
9220 Kimmer Drive, Suite 100 
Lone Tree, CO 81024 
 

To the District: Douglas County Libraries  
Attn: Director 
100 South Wilcox Street 
Castle Rock, Colorado 80104 

To LCS: Lincoln Commons South, Inc.  
 c/o Coventry Development Corporation 

Attn: Robert Asselbergs 
1041 Third Avenue, 2nd Floor 
New York, NY 10065 
 
and 
 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc. 
c/o Coventry Development Corporation 
Attn:  Keith Simon 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 183 of 201



 

8 

10270 Commonwealth Street, Suite B 
Lone Tree, Colorado 80124 

 
To RRMD: Rampart Range Metropolitan District No.1 
 Attn:  Denise Denslow 
 8390 East Crescent Parkway, Suite 500 
 Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111 

 

8. Appropriation.  Pursuant to section 29-1-110, C.R.S., any financial obligations of the 
City, the District and RRMD contained herein that are payable after the current fiscal year are 
contingent upon funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted and otherwise made 
available on an annual basis. 

9. Additional Documents.  The Parties agree to execute any additional documents or take 
any additional action that is necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement. 

10. Governing Law and Venue.  The laws of the State of Colorado shall govern this 
Agreement.  Venue for any action hereunder shall be in the District Court, County of Douglas, 
State of Colorado and the Parties waive any right to remove any action to any other court, 
whether state or federal. 

11. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  The enforcement of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the 
Parties, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or allow any such claim or right of 
action by any other or third person under such Agreement.  Any beneficiary of the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement are not intended beneficiaries but are incidental beneficiaries only. 

10. No Waiver of Governmental Immunity Act.  The Parties hereto understand and agree that 
the District and RRMD, their respective board members, officials, officers, directors, agents and 
employees, and the City, its councilmember’s, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees 
are relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive by any provisions of this Agreement, the 
monetary limitations or any other rights, immunities and protections provided by the Colorado 
Governmental Immunity Act, sections 24-10-101 to 120, C.R.S., or otherwise available to the 
District and the City.    

12. Entirety.  This Agreement merges and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations 
and agreements between the Parties hereto relating to the subject matter hereof and constitutes 
the entire agreement between the Parties concerning the subject matter hereof.   

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 184 of 201



 

9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the Parties hereto as of the 
date first written above. 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 

____________________________________ 
Jim Gunning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUFFICIENCY: 
 
______________________________ 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 

DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARIES 
 
____________________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUFFICIENCY: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title]  
  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 185 of 201



 

10 

 
 
 
 

RAMPART RANGE METRPOLITAN 
DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
____________________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 
 
\ 
 
 
 

LINCOLN COMMONS SOUTH, INC. 
 
____________________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 

 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
______________________________ [name/title] 
 
 
 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 186 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

New Library Property Description 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 187 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT B 

City Deed 

  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 188 of 201



 

 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

 LINCOLN COMMONS SOUTH, INC., a Delaware corporation (“Grantor”) hereby sells 
and conveys to the CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO, municipal corporation of the State of 
Colorado (“Grantee”), whose address is 9220 Kimmer Drive, Suite 100, Lone Tree, CO 80124, 
Lot 2, RidgeGate – Section 15 Filing No. 21, City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of 
Colorado (the “Property”), together with all its appurtenances, excepting the Reserved Rights (as 
defined below), and Grantor warrants the title to the same against all persons claiming by, 
through or under Grantor, subject to all matters of record. 
 
Grantor and Grantee agree that the following terms and provisions are an integral part of this 
Deed and that this Deed is given and accepted, and the Property is conveyed, upon and subject to 
the following terms and provisions.  Acceptance of this Deed by Grantee shall constitute the 
agreement by Grantee, for itself and its successors and assigns, to be bound by and to comply 
with the following reservations, covenants, conditions and restrictions, which shall constitute 
covenants and equitable servitudes running with the land and binding on subsequent owners of 
the Property (except that all of the following reservations, covenants, conditions and restrictions 
shall be null and void and of no further force or effect in the event that Grantor reacquires title to 
the Property at any time): 

 1.  Limitation on Use of Property.  Grantee acknowledges that Grantor is conveying the 
Property to Grantee solely for the purpose of the construction and operation of a public library 
thereon, including ancillary services such as coffee shops or similar eateries and meeting rooms, 
by Douglas County Libraries in accordance with the site improvement plan approved by Grantor 
(the “Permitted Use”), and Grantee covenants and agrees that the Property shall not be used for 
any other purpose or in any other manner for a period of at least fifteen (15) years.  The 
foregoing covenant is for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, and at the discretion of 
Grantor, and no other party shall have any rights with respect thereto. Grantor agrees that in the 
event that the Property is sold or transferred by Grantee in violation of this Section 1, Grantor 
shall receive payment of the Land Price from Grantee as provided in Section 4 below. Once the 
Property is conveyed by the Grantee to Douglas County Libraries, Grantor agrees that it shall 
have no recourse, legal or otherwise, against Grantee for uses not in accord with the Permitted 
Use.  

 2.  Design Review.  Grantee acknowledges and agrees that no improvements shall be 
constructed within the Property unless and until the same have been approved by the RidgeGate 
Design Review Committee. 

 3.  Repurchase Option for Failure to Commence Construction.  Grantor hereby reserves 
an option to repurchase the Property (the “Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase 
Option”) in the event that construction of a library in accordance with the SIP has not 
commenced on the Property within five (5) years after the date of recording of this Special 
Warranty Deed (the “Construction Deadline”).  Grantor shall have the right to exercise the 
Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase Option by giving Grantee written notice of 
exercise within 180 days after the Construction Deadline.  Within 60 days after Grantor gives 
notice of the exercise of the Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase Option, Grantee 
shall tender to Grantor Grantee's Special Warranty Deed for the Property in exchange for "good 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 189 of 201



 

 

funds," as defined under Colorado law, from Grantor in the amount of Ten Dollars ($10.00) (the 
“Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase Price”).  Grantee shall deliver title to Grantor at 
the closing of the Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase Option in the same condition 
as when delivered by Grantor to Grantee by this Deed.  Grantee agrees to pay all costs and 
expenses for such closing, including the premium for a standard title insurance policy, insuring 
that title to the Property is vested in Grantor.  For purposes of this Section 3, construction shall 
be deemed to have commenced upon the pouring of the foundation for the library. 
 
 4.  Payment of Land Price to Grantor if Property is Sold or Transferred.  Grantee 
acknowledges and agrees that Grantor is donating the Property to Grantee pursuant to this Deed 
on the condition that Grantee abides by the requirements of Section 1 of this Deed.  Accordingly, 
in the event of any sale or other transfer of the Property in violation of Section 1 of this Deed to 
any third party Grantee shall pay to Grantor in immediately available funds, on or before the date 
of any such sale or transfer (the “Due Date”), the sum of $1,400,000.00, escalating from and 
after the date hereof at a rate of 3% per annum, compounded annually (with such annual 
escalations occurring on each anniversary of the date of recording of this Deed) (the “Land 
Price”).  Grantor hereby reserves the right to place a lien on the Property in order to secure 
payment of the Land Price, plus interest thereon from and after the Due Date until paid in full at 
the rate of 12% per annum, and any costs incurred by Grantor in the collection thereof 
(including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees) upon a conveyance in violation of 
Section 1 of this Deed. 
 
 5.  Reservation of Water and Mineral Rights.  Grantor excepts from the Property hereby 
conveyed and reserves to itself and its successors and assigns all right, title and interest in and to 
any oil, gas, and ground water located within and under the Property, and all rights to ownership, 
development and use thereof; provided, however, that Grantor hereby unconditionally 
relinquishes any and all rights to enter upon or use the surface of the Property for the purpose of 
exploring for, extracting, developing or otherwise exercising its reserved ownership and rights 
with respect to such oil, gas and ground water. 
 
 

EXECUTED as of ________________, 2014. 
 
 

 
       LINCOLN COMMONS SOUTH, INC., 
       a Delaware corporation 
 
 
       By:_________________________ 
            Robert Asselbergs, President 
 
 
 
 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 190 of 201



 

 

 
 
 

ACCEPTANCE 
 

 THE CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO hereby accepts the real property conveyed 
herein this ____ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 
a Colorado municipal corporation Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
By:        By:      

 James Gunning, Mayor Neil Rutledge, 
  Assistant City Attorney 
 

Attest: 
 

 
By:   

 Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF ___________________   ) 
       ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________  ) 
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________, 
2014, by Robert Asselbergs, as President of Lincoln Commons South, Inc., a Delaware 
corporation. 
 
 Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
(Notarial Seal) 
 
      __________________________________________ 
      Notary Public 
 
My commission expires: ________________ 

 

  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 191 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT C 

Intentionally omitted 

 
 
 

 

  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 192 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT D 

District Deed 

 

 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 193 of 201



 

 

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED 

The CITY OF LONE TREE, a Colorado home rule municipality, whose street address 
is______________________________________, County of Douglas, State of Colorado, 
Grantor, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, hereby sells and conveys to the DOUGLAS COUNTY LIBRARIES, a library 
district formed in Douglas County, whose street address is 100 S. Wilcox Street, Castle Rock, 
Colorado 80104, County of Douglas, State of Colorado, Grantee, the real property described in 
Exhibit 1, attached hereto and made a part hereof, together with improvements, if any, and with 
all its appurtenances, if any (collectively referred to as the “Property”), and WARRANTS THE 
TITLE against all persons claiming under Grantor. 

This conveyance is made subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth in 
the Special Warranty Deed (the “Vesting Deed”) whereby Grantor acquired the Property from 
Lincoln Commons South, Inc. (“LCS”), which, as stated therein, constitute covenants and 
equitable servitudes running with the land and binding on all owners of the Property. Without 
limiting the foregoing, Grantee acknowledges and agrees that (a) the Property is subject to the 
use restrictions set forth in Section 1 of the Vesting Deed, and Grantee will be obligated to pay 
the Land Price to LCS in the event of a sale or other transfer of the Property in violation of 
Section 1 of the Vesting Deed, as provided in Section 4 of the Vesting Deed, and (b) the Property 
is conveyed to Grantee subject to the Failure to Commence Construction Repurchase Option in 
favor of LCS, as provided in Section 3 of the Vesting Deed. 

Grantee acknowledges that no right, title and interest in and to any oil, gas, and ground 
water located within and under the Property are owned by Grantor and, accordingly, no oil, gas 
or ground water rights are conveyed. Provided, however, that Grantor hereby unconditionally 
warrants that no third parties claiming under Grantor have retained ownership of the oil, gas and 
ground water rights have any right to enter upon or use the surface of the Property for the 
purpose of exploring for, extracting, developing or otherwise exercising its reserved ownership 
and rights with respect to such oil, gas and ground water. 

Signed this _____ day of ______________, 2014. 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO 

____________________________________ 
Jim Gunning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 194 of 201



 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUFFICIENCY: 
 
______________________________ 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney 

 

 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF DOUGLAS ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________, 
2014, by Jim Gunning, Mayor, and Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, of the City of Lone 
Tree, Colorado. 

My commission expires:  ______________________   

SEAL    __________________________________ 

Notary Public 

 
 

  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 195 of 201



 

 

EXHIBIT E 

RRMD Road/Streetscape Improvements 

RRMD shall provide, at RRMD’s sole cost and expense the following improvements: 

1.  Construction of Arts Center Drive on south side of the New Library Property no later than July 
28, 2015. 

2.  Construction of streetscape in public rights of way adjacent to and located within Sky Ridge 
Avenue, Commons Street and Arts Center Drive such that all streetscape is completed in 
conjunction with, and not after, completion of the New Library; provided, however, that if the New 
Library is completed during the winter months, such streetscape may be completed in the 
immediately following spring as weather permits. 

 

 

 

 

 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 196 of 201



Q
:\

D
EN

\P
ro

je
ct

s\
50

87
-0

1-
RR

M
D

 O
ve

ra
ll\

D
es

ig
n\

20
13

-0
5-

Li
nc

 C
om

 II
 - 

Fl
g 

21
\E

xh
ib

its
\2

01
4-

05
02

 A
lt 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 B
lo

ck
 C

ol
or

 E
xh

.d
w

g,
 E

XH
, 5

/2
/2

01
4 

12
:1

6:
12

 P
M

, D
W

G
 T

o 
PD

F.
pc

3,
 1

:2
.1

94
29

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 197 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-19 

   
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF 

LONE TREE PLANNING COMMISSION 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-5, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree 
created a Planning Commission (“Commission”); and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Section 3 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of 
Lone Tree, the City Council established guidelines concerning the appointment and 
qualifications of members of the Planning Commission; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 23, 2003, the Planning Commission adopted Guidelines and 
Procedures as authorized by City Ordinance No. 97-5, and the Guidelines and Procedures 
provide that each member shall serve until his or her term expires or until the City Council 
appoints a successor; and 

 WHEREAS, there will be two vacancies on the Commission on January 1, 2015; and  

WHEREAS, one of the members who currently occupy one of those expiring terms 
wishes to be re-appointed, qualifies for that seat and is a member in good standing and City 
Council desires to reappoint the member; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to appoint an additional new member to fill the 
remaining vacancy such appointment is to be effective on the date of expiration of the previous 
term;   
  
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 

1. That Dave Kirchner is hereby reappointed to the Planning Commission for a three 
(3) year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.  
 

2. That Andrew Dodgen is hereby appointed to the Planning Commission for a three 
(3) year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018.  
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 
 

 
       THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 
      __________________________ 
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 
ATTEST 
         
 
         (SEAL) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk  

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 198 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-20 

 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE  

CITY OF LONE TREE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

WHEREAS, on May 6, 2003, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree adopted 
Resolution No. 03-14 creating the Audit Committee (the “Committee”), for the purpose of 
enhancing the independence of the external financial auditor and the reliability of the City’s 
financial statement audits; and 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 09-15, increased the membership of the Committee to consist of 

six (6) members: three (3) appointed City residents who are certified public accountants or 
otherwise possess the expertise and experience in accounting, auditing, financial reporting and 
finance needed to understand and resolve issues raised by the independent audit of the City’s 
finance statements; one (1) member of the City Council; the City Manager; and the City’s Chief 
Financial Officer. The City Manager and the City’s Chief Financial Officer serve as ex-officio, 
non-voting members; and 

 
WHEREAS, there will be two vacancies on the Committee on January 1, 2015; and  
 
WHEREAS, the member who currently occupies one of those expiring term wishes to be 

re-appointed at the expiration of their term, qualifies for that seat and is a member in good 
standing. City Council desires to appoint that member for an additional three (3) year term; and 

   
WHEREAS, there will be an additional vacancy, due to the resignation of Andrew 

Dodgen, on the Committee. City Council desires to appoint a member to this vacancy, such 
appointment to be effective on the date of expiration of the previous term;   

 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 
1. That Suzanne Gibson is hereby reappointed to the Audit Committee for a three (3) year 

term effective on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018. 
2. That Dan Reeb is hereby appointed to the vacancy created by Andrew Dodgen’s 

resignation, for the remainder of his term effective on January 1, 2015 and expiring on 
December 31, 2015. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
         (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 199 of 201



 

 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-21 

 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING AND APPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE CITIZENS’ 

RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 06-09, the City Council created the Citizens’ Recreation 
Advisory Committee (the “Committee”) which promotes the City’s recreation opportunities and 
services, and develops recommendations to improve these opportunities and services; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Resolution No. 06-09, established the Committee membership to seven (7) 
members; and  
 
 WHEREAS, there will be two (2) vacancies on the Committee beginning on January 1, 
2015; and 
 

WHEREAS, one (1) of the members who currently occupies that expiring term wishes to 
be reappointed at the expiration of their term, qualifies for that seat and is a member in good 
standing and City Council desires to reappoint that member; and 

 
  WHEREAS, in regard to the other vacancy on the Commission, City Council desires to 

appoint a new member to a three (3) year term.   
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 
1. That Levi Schroeder is hereby reappointed to the Citizens’ Recreation Advisory 

Committee for a three (3) year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on 
December 31, 2018. 
 

2. That Katie Beeler is hereby appointed to the Citizens’ Recreation Advisory Committee, 
for a three (3) year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 
2018. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 
 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

       
     James D. Gunning, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
          (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 200 of 201



CITY OF LONE TREE 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-22 

 
A RESOLUTION APPOINTING AND REAPPOINTING MEMBERS TO THE  

ARTS COMMISSION FOR THE CITY OF LONE TREE 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lone Tree established an Arts 
Commission by Resolution 99-19 (the "Commission") to consider requests for 
sponsorship of or assistance with artistic and cultural events within the City; and 

 
 WHEREAS, Resolution 10-42 established the Commission membership to seven 
(7) members; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there will be three vacancies beginning on January 1, 2015 and three 
of the members who currently occupy those expiring terms wish to be reappointed at the 
expiration of their term, qualifies for that seat and is a member in good standing; and 
 

WHEREAS, there is currently one vacancy, due to the resignation of Carin 
Buster, on the Commission. City Council desires to appoint a member to the fourth 
vacancy, such appointment to be effective on the date of expiration of the previous term;   
  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LONE TREE, COLORADO: 

 
1. That Janice Hubbell is hereby reappointed to the Arts Commission for a three (3) 

year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018. 
 

2. That Kerry Jamison is hereby reappointed to the Arts Commission for a three (3) 
year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018. 
 

3. That Nora Pearson is hereby reappointed to the Arts Commission for a three (3) 
year term beginning on January 1, 2015 and expiring on December 31, 2018. 
 

4. That Susan Stiff is hereby appointed to the Arts Commission, for the vacancy 
created by Carin Buster’s resignation, beginning on December 1, 2014 and 
expiring on December 31, 2016.  

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 

 
      CITY OF LONE TREE 
 
 

By:       
 James D. Gunning, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
         (S E A L) 
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

11/18/14 City Council Packet Page 201 of 201


	2014-11-18 Agenda
	2014-11-18 Agenda
	2014-10-21 CC Minutes
	Morningstar-Complete
	1 - CC MorningStar Staff Report
	FROM: Kelly First, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: November 12, 2014
	FOR:  November 18, 2014 City Council Meeting
	C. SITE CHARACTERISTICS:
	The property was originally planned in 2008 as part of a mixed-use retail area.  Since then, for a variety of reasons, the master developer for RidgeGate has said that the retail concept in this area is not feasible. Instead, the new plan includes a s...
	F. DESCRIPTION:
	The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning Commission meeting held on October 14, 2014:
	I. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff finds that the application is in conformance with the SIP requirements of the Lone Tree Zoning Code, the Subdivision Code, the Comprehensive Plan, and the RidgeGate Lincoln Commons Commercial Mixed-Use Sub-Area Plan.
	Staff notes that the Comprehensive Plan supports senior friendly housing development, including “assisted living facilities, [located] near social services, public facilities, and commercial areas to reduce feelings of isolation and to ensure access t...
	Staff recommends approval of the SIP to City Council, subject to:
	1. Final approval by the Public Works Department
	2. The local park dedication for the property in the amount of $19,200 will be paid to the City by the applicant, prior to issuance of a building permit
	END

	2 - Application
	3 - Project Narrative - Lone Tree
	4 - Revised Master Statement of Design Intent 20141019
	5 - Parking Letter - Morningstar at Ridgegate 10.07.14
	6 - Revised SIP and Elevations-red c
	7A - Referral Dan Clawson
	7B - Referral Responses
	8 - DRC - Morningstar 07 11 13 Pre Submittal
	9 - DRC - Morningstar 09 13 13 Schematic Design
	10 - DRC - Morningstar 02 06 14 Design Development
	12 - DRC - Morningstar 04 08 14 Design Development
	13 - DRC - Morningstar 09 10 14 Design Development Resubmittal
	14 - DRC Approval letter

	City of Lone Tree - Memo Public Hearing 11-18-14
	1of2 Building code CC staff report 2nd reading
	2of2 Bldg CodeOrdinance 14-05
	James D. Gunning, Mayor

	1of 2 BOAA CC staff report 2nd reading
	2of2 BOAA Ordinance 14-06
	ARTICLE 2 – DECLARATIONS OF POLICY

	1of2 2014 Agenda Cover Painting With a Twist
	STAFF PERSON
	RECOMMENDED

	2of2 PaintingwithaTwist
	1of3 Staff Memo - Library Agreement - 10 15 2014
	2of3 Lone Tree Library Agreement COLT Final (2) 10-19-14
	SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

	3of3 2014-0502 Alt Multi-Family Block Color Exh
	Res 14-19 Planning Commission
	A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING & APPOINTING MEMBERS OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE PLANNING COMMISSION
	__________________________

	Res 14-20 Audit Comm
	Res 14-21 CRAC
	Res 14-22 Arts Commission



